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Corporate Profile
N RN

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 1993. The Group is a renowned container
manufacturer in the world and having comprehensive depot
operation networks in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
five factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range
of products including dry freight containers, collapsible
flatrack containers, open top containers, bitutainers, tank
containers, offshore containers, customised containers and
other specialised containers and container parts. We have
started the container leasing business in recent years by
allowing an additional option to the customers on top of
direct purchase.

Our logistics business includes container depots and
logistics company, and is currently running eight container
depots at the major ports in the PRC — Dalian, Tianjin,
Qingdao, Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou and Xiamen. We also
operate a logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

RARBRREMLER (BIR)

19,438
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Ep FER
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0
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Revenue -]
Profit (loss) attributable to RARIRREG RN (EBE)
owners of the Company
Basic earnings (loss) per share (US cents) ERGREF(EE)(EML)
Net asset value per share (US cents) BREEFEGEML)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATREEGER
Bank balances and cash RITER KRS
Total borrowings (Note) RIS (M)
Current ratio BN &
Gearing ratio BEARBEELE
Net debt to equity ratio B FRERRES LK
Interest coverage ratio F B A F &
Return on equity (%) A& AN L 2 2R (%)

Note:  Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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PRODUCTION OUTPUT

Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Mr. TEO Siong Seng R = 5 4E
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FTEREETRARE
TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS FENURR

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby HRNAZREEZEZ=S([E=2 ) IREBMHEIE
present the operating results of Singamas Container B%2ERAR([AAE])REMBAR (A
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries 8 [AN&EH| THMEHEE_ZET_=F+—
(collectively, the “Group”/“we”) for the year ended 31 AB=+—HILFEE QL ELE o

December 2023.
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During the latest financial year, the operating environment
has been difficult owing to high inflation, interest rate
hikes by the world’s central banks, and various geopolitical
tensions. With global trade volume underperforming, the
demand for dry freight containers was affected, with average
selling price (“ASP”) maintaining a downward trajectory.

For the Group, our specialised container business continued
to grow healthily, particularly for the energy storage system
(“ESS”) segment, thus testifying to the effectiveness of our
diversified business model in helping mitigate the impact
of dry freight container market volatility. In addition, we
have been expanding the container leasing business to
better serve our customers — allowing them to have the
additional option of leasing on top of direct purchasing, and
to capitalise on synergies with the Group’s manufacturing
operation. While fully prepared to face market challenges
in an adaptive and flexible manner, we will be proactively
enhancing our business model with the aim of boosting
profitability.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
total consolidated revenue was US$382,470,000 (2022:
US$776,455,000). Consolidated profit attributable to
owners of the Company was US$19,438,000 (2022:
US$46,340,000). The decline in revenue and ASP was
attributed to a slump in demand for dry freight containers
in the wake of overproduction by the industry in 2021,
compounded by the aforementioned weak global
trade which directly impacted on gross profit margins.
Basic earnings per share was US0.82 cents (2022:
US1.92 cents), while cash and bank deposits stood at
US$300,963,000 (2022: US$369,770,000).

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacturing and Leasing

The manufacturing and leasing operation recorded revenue
of US$354,983,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
US$748,847,000), which accounted for 93% (2022: 96%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Segment profit before taxation
and non-controlling interests was US$19,495,000 (2022:
US$84,272,000).

During the review year, the total sales volume of our
manufacturing operation was approximately 106,000
twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUs”) (2022: 242,000
TEUs) of dry freight and I1SO specialised containers. The
ASP of 20’ dry freight containers fell to US$2,075 (2022:
US$2,836).

On dry freight containers, total production volume was
dropped by approximately 50%. Dry freight containers and
specialised containers (including customised containers)
accounted for 53% and 47% of segment revenue (2022:
82% dry freight, 18% specialised) respectively. Given the
lower demand for the former, we have directed greater focus
on controlling costs at the Group’s dry freight container
factories. Specialised containers have enjoyed healthy
uptake both locally and internationally. In particular, ESS
containers have outperformed; achieving an increase of over
170% in overall sales revenue compared with 2022.

On the leasing of dry freight container business, we have
witnessed healthy and significant growth in 2023. This has
helped generate synergy with the manufacturing operation
and enhanced overall margin. As our existing manufacturing
facilities allow for more flexible production and timely
delivery of containers to our leasing customers, the Group
is able to better seize relevant opportunities that arise in the
market. Consequently, we will be able to derive relatively
stable revenue in the future as leasing arrangements with
customers are long term, ranging from three to over 10
years. We believe that the leasing operation will serve as a
potential growth driver in the long run, we will invest more
resources in developing this business moving forward.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2023
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Logistics Services

Our logistics services business was performing well during
the review year, generating revenue of US$27,487,000
(2022: US$27,608,000) and a segment profit before
taxation and non-controlling interests of US$8,147,000
(2022: US$5,653,000). As at 31 December 2023, the
logistics operation handled approximately 704,000 TEUs
(2022: 703,000 TEUs) of containers and repaired 133,000
TEUs (2022: 119,000 TEUs), with average daily container
storage reaching 23,000 TEUs (2022: 21,000 TEUs).

To encourage the ongoing development of the logistics
services business, we will review its operations with the
objective of increasing efficiency and bolstering its business
portfolio. Already, we have plans in place for strengthening
the management team, optimising its business model and
enhancing profitability.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

Prospects

According to the World Bank, global growth is projected
to slow for the third consecutive year, falling from 2.6% in
2023 to 2.4% in 2024. With regard to the outlook for the
dry freight container industry, its performance will depend
in part on the recovery of global trade. Further stimulus
will come from new vessel deliveries in 2024, which will
spur new container orders. However, overcapacity remains
a concern for the dry freight container market. As for
specialised containers, demand is anticipated to grow
robustly, particularly for ESS containers that are associated
with the renewable energy sector.

As for the Group, our focus will be on areas pertaining to
green energy, data equipment, housing, transportation
solutions, etc. In particular, we will dedicate greater
resources to developing the ESS segment, which will
include expanding production capacity and adding more
overseas sales offices. We will continue exploring business
opportunities outside conventional manufacturing so as
to diversify the Group’s business operations and expand
income streams.

APPRECIATION

| wish to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to all of our business partners, customers and stakeholders
for their tremendous support in 2023. | would also like
to extend my gratitude to the Singamas family for their
outstanding effort, commitment and passion, which have
been the catalysts for driving the Group forward amid these
unprecedented times. In the coming year, | trust that we
will make further headway in developing key facets of our
operation, empowered by the strength of our people and
trusted allies.

TEO Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2024
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Frequently Asked Questions

With global trade volume underperforming due to
various macroeconomic factors, plus the industry still
digesting the impact of overproduction from previous
years, what is the Group’s view on the industry and
opportunities ahead?

- Although the market anticipates global
growth to slow for the third consecutive
year in 2024, it is believed the global
economy is in a better position than a year
ago as recessionary risk has receded. The
industry’s performance will depend in part
on the recovery of global trade as headwinds
from high interest rates gradually weaken,
encouraging greater consumption. Further
stimulus is also expected to come from new
cargo vessel deliveries in 2024, which will spur
new container orders. However, overcapacity
remains a concern for the dry freight container
market.

- Singamas will continue dedicating resources
to developing non-shipping related containers
with specific focus on renewable energy
storage and equipment containers, the
demand of which is anticipated to grow
robustly. We believe such strategic focus
will allow the Group to tap the tremendous
potential of the green energy market as
the world becomes more conscious about
environment conservation.
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Frequently Asked Questions

How does the Group’s latest sales mix look like and
what’s your target split moving forward? What will be
the key factors impacting your performance moving
forward?

The Group’s sales mix in 2023 was
approximately 53% dry freight containers
and 47% specialised containers in terms of
revenue.

With increased usage of specialised containers
in various industries globally, and our flexible
production facilities to increase output of
specialised containers as needed, we expect
the sales proportion of specialised container to
increase further moving forward.

Global container demand, trade volume and
vessel deliveries will still affect overall results
yet impact will be smaller moving forward as
the Group diversifies income sources through
investing in developing new specialised
containers.

The demand of specialised containers is less
volatile, and in general the profit margin for
specialised containers is better than traditional
dry freight containers. We are on the way to
achieve an optimal split of 50:50 of dry freight
containers.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2023

SEBANEEHEE B ER ? KK
EEEREEETERZHEXE
HiRHYRIR ?

REREHYE  £ER-F
SEEMBEAAKN53% KA
B 470 R

%%%ﬁxﬂﬁ¥WME%ﬁ
BEENR MLEI%ﬁ
FIEERNE @ OJiEH ﬁm
BHEEEHRNES - ﬁﬁﬁ%
HEESREANHELEETE
—HRF o

FIRERBET K -BHFERM
ﬁxﬁimﬁéiéﬁﬁi
EREESEERINERE
ﬁm%EE#“¥$ = A
RKEEZl  SEAIZTE
HNEERBERD -

%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf
E%E%ﬁﬁMMﬂ
BE N BN ERME ﬁZTFﬁIE
A BRIV EEMEASBER
2 EFRESH0:50/ BB

)

Frﬁ—%
\

e



Renewable energy segment looks like having
good potential moving forward. What is Singamas’
view towards market demand for specialised and
customised containers in 2024 and beyond?

- Qver the years, Singamas has been committed
to providing excellent tailor-made container
solutions to suit diverse needs of customers.
Thanks to our excellent customer service, we
have been able to attract satisfactory orders of
specialised and customised containers.

- In recent years, we saw increasing demand
from both local and overseas customers for
renewable energy storage and equipment
containers. We believe renewable energy
storage containers possess tremendous
potential given the current environmental
conservation trends. Other customised
containers with good potential include 5G
equipment and digital-data related containers,
and modular integrated construction (“MIC”")
containers.

- Other customised containers produced by
Singamas include housing, power generation,
electronic equipment, sewage treatment and
medical applications etc. It is believed with
the rapid growth in renewable and “green”
energy to meet with global trends of carbon
neutral, and the rise of big data industry are
all favourable factors for the growth in demand
for specialised and customised containers in
2024 and beyond.
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Frequently Asked Questions

#REE

How is the average selling price of the Group’s

containers lately? What do gross margins of the
various types of containers look like?

ASP of 20’ dry freight containers fell sharply
in 2023, due in part to drop in steel cost
resulting from slowdown in the Mainland
China property sector. Overall weak container
demand resulting from slowdown in global
economy, decline in global trade volume and
overproduction of containers also contributed
to the fall in ASP of 20" dry freight containers.

Prices of ISO specialised containers, like
flatrack, open top and bulk containers in
general decreased in line with dry freight
containers. For customised specialised
containers, prices are more stable as there
is no standard specification for each batch
of orders. Price setting for each order of
customised specialised containers is based on
the complexity of the specification along with
the labour hours and material cost required for
the production.

With customised specialised containers
expected to take up a more substantial
portion of the Group’s sales moving forward,
Singamas will be less impacted by demand
and competition of dry freight containers.
As demand and selling price of customised
specialised containers are expected to be
relatively stable, the increase in its weighting
will enhance the overall gross margin of the
Group going forward.
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What does the order book look like in 2024 for
dry freight containers and specialised containers
respectively?

- Demand for dry freight containers is affected
by the impact of overproduction in previous
years and low consumption demand globally.
We currently only have approximately one
month of orders on hand.

- For customised specialised container, each
project has its specific production process.
From product design, technical drawings, and
production until delivery, the whole process
may last from few weeks to few months.
We are continuously receiving orders for
customised specialised containers without
seasonal trends, yet outlook is looking robust
for the sector.

Why did the Group venture into the container leasing
business? How has the business been performing
and what is the Group’s expectations on the
segment?

- The management sees synergies between the
Group’s manufacturing and leasing operations
as the Group’s well-established manufacturing
facilities can support flexible production and
timely delivering of containers to its leasing
customers.

- The segment delivers relatively stable revenue
as leasing arrangements with customers are
relatively long term, ranging from three to over
10 years. Overall margin of the Group can
also be enhanced as the container leasing
business guarantees a stable profit margin
once the leasing terms are fixed.

- Performance of the container leasing business
has been satisfactory so far with significant
growth achieved in 2023. The management
has decided to invest more resources in
developing the business as it believes the
segment will be a growth driver in the long run.
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Frequently Asked Questions

FREE
7. What other plans does the Group have to improve its

results performance in the coming years?

We review our business model regularly
to adjust strategies suiting latest market
developments. The New Singamas is still on
its way to expanding its product range and
clientele, as well as looking into peripheral
opportunities that are beneficial for the Group.
Specifically, the renewable energy storage
container segment and the container leasing
business are some of the Group’s future
growth drivers.

It is also worth noting that the Group’s flexible
operating mode has enabled it to agilely
satisfy rising orders for specialised and
customised containers. This demonstrates
the management’s foresight in planning well-
ahead to prepare for changes in the operating
environment. We believe our long-term
strategy will enable us to be more resilient and
less vulnerable to market volatilities in future.

Apart from the manufacturing, leasing and logistics

services businesses, does the New Singamas have
any new business or investment plans coming up?

The New Singamas always strives to look for
new opportunities which bring stable cash
inflows and good margins. With our current
healthy financial position, we are actively
seeking new opportunities that can bring
synergies in the long run.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2023
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERSEEEAEEN

The directors of the Company (“Director”) at the date of this RAFEHFHBAGEEZ AR ES([ES )W

annual report are as follows: e
DIRECTORS =
Mr. Teo Siong Seng " Chairman and SRILER S Ao FEFREREITHAE
Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie * Executive Director and EEEg HITEEF
Chief Operating Officer B & BB
Ms. Chung Pui King, Executive Director, sEmER r HITEE -
Rebecca * Chief Financial Officer and BE B
Company Secretary NEIWE
Ms. Lau Man Yee, Non-executive Director 2Rt ERITEE
Vanessa *
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, Independent Non-executive B8 B 4 A oo BUIHITESE
David # Director
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan #2  Independent Non-executive B B 4t 4 Hetor BUIHHITESE
Director
Mr. Ho Teck Cheong **  Independent Non-executive )15 B 4 A #a B IFITEE
Director
#  Audit Committee Member t EEZEEKE
" Management Committee Member L BEZEEHKE
°  Nomination Committee Member o EHEZEEHE
4 Remuneration Committee Member b HWZEEEMKE
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EESRsEEEAS/BN

Brief biographical details of the Directors at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B. Sc. (Naval Architect), aged 69,
was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997 and was appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Teo started his shipping career with
Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL") Group
in Singapore since 1979. PIL is the controlling shareholder
of the Company as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Teo was appointed as
the managing director of PIL in October 1992 and appointed
as executive chairman of PIL in April 2018. PIL activities
include shipowning, liner shipping, ship agencies, freight
forwarding, container manufacturing, container depot/
terminal operation, warehousing and logistics park. Mr. Teo
retired as independent non-executive directors of COSCO
SHIPPING Energy Transportation Co., Ltd (HKEX stock
code: 1138 and SSE stock code: 600026) and COSCO
SHIPPING Holdings Co., Ltd. (HKEX stock code: 1919 and
SSE stock code: 601919), both companies listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, with effect from 8 July 2022 and 16 November
2023 respectively. Mr. Teo is also currently a non-executive
and non-independent director of Keppel Ltd. (formerly
known as Keppel Corporation Limited) (stock code: BN4)
and a non-executive and independent director of Wilmar
International Limited (stock code: F34), both companies are
listed on the main board of Singapore Exchange. He is the
Immediate Past Chairman of Singapore Business Federation
and Honorary President of Singapore Chinese Chamber of
Commerce & Industry. Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of
The United Republic of Tanzania in Singapore.
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Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie, aged 52, joined the Group on 1
October 2021 as Chief Operating Officer Designate and
was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the Company
on 1 January 2022. She also serves as director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Siu graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor’'s Degree
of Business Studies (Majors in Marketing) and obtained
an MBA from IMD Lausanne in Switzerland. She has over
27 years of extensive experience in container shipping,
manufacturing, leasing and trading plus global logistics.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, MBA, HKICPA, FCCA, aged
55, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on
2 July 2015. She was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of the Company on 2 February
2013 and 10 September 2013 respectively. She is also the
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chung
joined the Group on 1 January 1996. She has more than
32 years of combined experience in public accountancy,
sourcing and manufacturing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Lau Man Yee, Vanessa, FCCA, MBA, BBA, aged 56,
was appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 April 2023. She has been the Group Controller, Head
of Digital Finance of PIL, the controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange), since 6 February 2023.
She has over 30 years of experience in accounting field.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EESRsEEEAS/BN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 75, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
had assumed the position of independent non-executive
director of Grandland Shipping Limited from 1 January
2016 to 30 June 2022. Mr. Cheng has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1827), with effect
from 19 December 2016. He has also been appointed as
Independent Director of Sincere Navigation Corporation, a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (stock code:
2605), with effect from 28 June 2019. Mr. Cheng has retired
from the Head of Shipfinance in Asia of Credit Agricole CIB
with effective from 1 May 2014. He has also retired from
the Senior Advisor to Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 30
June 2016 and retired as a director and honorary chairman
of Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited with effect
from 10 July 2020. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for a two years term as Member of the Maritime
and Port Board (“MPB”) and Chairman of the Promotion
and External Relations Committee under the MPB with
effect from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2018. He was also the
Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Maritime Museum up
to November 2022. In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred
the Distinction of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Mérite”
by the French Government.
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Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 65, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. He had been appointed as independent
non-executive director of China United Venture Investment
Limited (formerly known as Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited), a company listed on the growth enterprise
market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8159), from
13 December 2001 to 1 March 2020. He had also been
appointed as independent non-executive director of GBA
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 261), from 14 August
2002 to 9 June 2022. Mr. Lau is currently an independent
non-executive director of CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 138).

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, MBA, aged 65, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 October 2019. Mr. Ho graduated from McGill
University, Montreal, Canada in 1984. Mr. Ho is currently
an independent director and has been appointed on 2
December 2021 as a Non-Executive Chairman of China
Shenshan Orchard Holdings Co. Ltd. (formerly known as
Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited), a company listed on
the main board of Singapore Exchange. He is also currently
an independent director of NorthCape AS, a Norwegian
financial advisory company. He possesses extensive
experience in assets management and banking industry.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. For the particulars of
the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, please refer to the circular for the
2024 Annual General Meeting to be dispatched in May for
details.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie  Chief Operating Officer

Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer
Rebecca and Company Secretary

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Details of the senior management at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February 1997, then
appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie, was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer of the Company on 1 January 2022. Please refer to
the Directors section for details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013 respectively.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.
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Corporate Governance Report

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with all the applicable
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles, except for the deviation disclosed
below:

Code Provision C.2.1

Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not
separated. The Board considers that this structure has the
advantage of a strong and consistent leadership which is
conducive to making and implementing decisions efficiently
and consistently.

Save for the above deviation, none of the Directors is aware
of any information which would reasonably indicate that the
Company is not, or, was not during the year in compliance
with the code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/“Directors”)
believes that appropriate corporate governance practices
are essential for the Company to enhance its accountability
and transparency so as to achieve a balance of the
interests of shareholders, customers, employees and
investment partners of the Company in all material respects.
Accordingly, the Company aims at maintaining high
standards of corporate governance practices.

SHEABE

HE_Z-_=ZF+-_A=+—HULEFE &
NE—EMWRMRETREBBAERINE
RARI(TAR])ESHFLEMABRB(T LA
Al MigxClLATE 2 BRI <A1 &Y
FRB#EASTANES - tERBIE AR RRIBEE
BRAZFE - TIREZRBET AR :

T RIMESCEC.2. 115

RINBEARKEETARRZETEEER
BETHAE - MEENEFETRAAEME
WD RBILBG EFSR/UEER
Bhoafe R BRRE 2 BEE - RmAFRIED
KREWBEE —BZIREK -

FRIA LIRBESN - EFMAANBTMER - -
NAEBWBRRARBRFEFAREGAARGET
78 S FfT T AR BB $% C1 AR &7 <7 Al 2 <7 BIE
3 o

ArREFe((EFe ] TEX)REEE
WEBREEERATRAPREARRF A
BEMMERE  EMEARBRR - &F
BERKRERHEETENER 2 HIUSF
- Bl ARREERFRERNEERE
AER

“ToCHFR - BEEcRERAR 2D



Corporate Governance Report
hEERBME

Key corporate governance principles and corporate ARAFZFEPES AR LPEESER

governance practices of the Company are summarised  #ufizn T -
below:
Comply (“C"/
Explain (“E")
Code Ref. Code Provisions #F([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 FAIKRI BRE(E) | LEERER
A. CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY AND GOVERNANCE
TEER - EBRER
Al Corporate strategy, business model and culture
REREE - EBEXRUE
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs.
EECREEBERERNANET  TERBEEREREBRRIER -
Al.l The board should establish the © e Company’s purpose:

RAFE Y -

company’s purpose, values and
strategy, and satisfy itself that these

and the company’s culture are aligned.
All directors must act with integrity,
lead by example, and promote the

The Company is committed to create a chain of energy-saving,
environmentally friendly and sustainable container industry, providing
fast and convenient container logistics service solution, integrating the

desired culture. Such culture should
instil and continually reinforce across
the organisation values of acting
lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

EEGRHEAANAEN  BEK O
W WHERER AN XL —B -
FIBESITSAFERN - LAHE
Al BhHEEAEXL - % XULE
k¥ ETOER - WAETINE [T
aFEE  BREEEEINER -

world and giving back to the society.
ARRBAPITEEERR - ATREEMNI R EMEERE - 24t
RIR - ERENERBEVERE SR  RANE - BEte -

Company’s values and strategy:
RAFHEEREKE

noow

“Top quality”, “safe production”, “customer orientation”, “
conservation”, “corporate harmony” and “sustainability”
(RBEE—] [R24EE| [RPEL]  TERRKR] - [RERME]
RS8R

energy

— The Group devotes itself to producing and providing high quality
and safe products for customer. The Group actively integrates
environmental responsibility into daily operation activities by
upgrading the equipment to automated machinery in order to
minimise the impact on the surrounding environment and achieve
safe production.
REEFNREPEAERREEET AR EMNER - AEBEER
BHRREARAZCERABKETAT  WIRARBMAEH
B - R ERABRRBERNTERERT 2 EENER

— The Group respects the labour rights and basic rights and interests
of all employees. It implements a fair and equitable employment
mechanism. Meanwhile, it keeps improving the human resources
system and occupational health and safety system to nurture talents
of core competitiveness and protect the physical and mental health of
all employees.

AEEESMEE TN TEMNREAER  BITRAT - AEX
EREEH : ARTETEANERERNBERRELDER -
%%%ﬂﬁﬁ%bﬁﬁ%ﬁ WEEAL HREFMBEIN S LR

— To establish a “green factory” is an important part of the Company’s
commitment to sustainable development and a necessary way to fulfil
corporate social responsibility.

Bl [#EITHRIRAARBRSEERAFENEEZ R T2
BITREMSEENNBERKE -
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TEERME

Code Ref.
2Z58

Code Provisions
FAHKX

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")
#¥(c)/
()

Corporate Governance Practices
LEERER

Al.1l
(cont'd)
(%)

e Corporate culture:
hEXL :

The Board is committed to developing a positive and progressive culture
that is built on the Group’s purpose, values and strategy. The Board
continues to cultivate the culture that it needs to create the desired
future.

EEERNUALELRE  BEBLREEAE  AIRED - @
ELTHX - ERGRHEBERIABERERRAFBHIXL

The Group adheres the corporate culture of “practice with integrity”. It
upholds the highest ethical standards of business integrity and foster
a culture of compliance throughout the Group to ensure legitimate
operation. It reinforces the safety culture to ensure occupational health
and product safety of the Group.

REEFA [HEBEINCEXL  BBHEXAENERERE
£ WEAEERNRESRXLUBRERALS - SEEELZE2X
b BRBERRNERZS -

The Group adheres to the corporate culture of “high efficiency and
innovation”, strengthening the product research and development and
integrating ideas for sustainable development.

REBFA [&UEFTINCEUE - R B FHERFE - AR
FHEERES -

The Group advocates the corporate culture of “harmony and
sustainability”. It respects the labour rights and human rights of all
employees and promotes an inclusive culture within the Group. In
order to achieve sustainable development, the Group adheres to the
development concept of staying green, to create a healthy and green
community and to protect the environment.

REERE [MEKEINEX - BEMEE IS TEMRA
# TEEEREZERAX  c AERFRBELRRE  AEBERFHK
ERANBERES  ITERRGELR - RERE -

The Group’s corporate culture of “practice with integrity”, “high
efficiency and innovation” and “harmony and sustainability” is
communicated to employees from time to time through regular journals,
e-magazines and billboard display to let them know about the culture.
REE [HEBE]  [SREIF] - [M#EKEINCEUL - FBTE
Hjﬁﬁ{;@ CEBTHRBERAERERR THANETISE  FETRHA
EIb<ia

The directors should include a
discussion and analysis of the group’s
performance in the annual report, an
explanation of the basis on which the
company generates or preserves value
over the longer term (the business
model) and the strategy for delivering
the company’s objectives.
EFREFHRATREROMEBRRK
0 EMPAAREREELANREE
BEONER(EKEX) RERABM
AVA=RES:

e The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s sustainable development strategy on pages 8 to
12 of this annual report.
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B n] 354 3R R RS BB L Al ©

STo=EE ¢ BEHEEcEERAT 27




28

Corporate Governance Report

RSB E
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FHHKX BR(El) | C¥ERER
A.2 Corporate Governance Functions
LEEEME
Corporate Governance Principle
ﬂé% B /EI F E”J
The board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties. It may delegate the responsibility to a committee or
committees.
EEQERERTOEBARRE  WAHEEERT —EAlZEEZEE -
A2l The terms of reference of the board (or C * No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board

a committee or committees performing
this function) should include:
E=g(HBRTHBENEES)N
BiESEREE

— develop and review the company’s
policies and practices on
corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;
HE R AR e R R R EE IR
&ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%%AﬁﬁLm3

— review and monitor the training
and continuous professional
development of directors and senior
management;

BT REREERSREEASR
I RFEEERR

— review and monitor the company’s
policies and practices on
compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

B RERAAEETAERE
ERTETEONBRLER

— develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and
#lE m¢&w$@a&§$m
BFEARERFMAAE)

— review the company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

i 2 A8 5T 1R K E R ST RN
/R&T_‘_tﬂ:\;iﬁ S i&immﬁﬁﬁ °©

is responsible for the corporate governance functions with the following
duties:

AABWEEBIPCEEREZES  pEERBEHESEEEE I
BETHIBE

(a) to establish the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and
satisfy itself that these and the Company’s culture are aligned;
EXGRHTAQRFANAN  BEIEKER  LHEREEXQIFN
XAt —8:

(b

=

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations

AT BB A D MM DR EARE R - WIRHEE

NG

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors;

B RERESNIEIRSEEREEE

(c

(d) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

B RERAARNEETEEREERTETEANBREER |

N

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

ing R REEERANMEEREFNBRTTARAKFMON

(e

(f) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; and
B AR REFTFANBERRNEEERRETELARE
54

=

such other corporate governance duties and functions set out in
the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board is
responsible

%ﬁ YWW§$A%AW&%ﬁm¢¥E/ (B KBk eE (T
ET z DT

(€
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TEERME

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")

Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2Z58 | FHHKX BE(E) | LEERER

B. BOARD COMPOSITION AND NOMINATION
ERSEMRIESR

B.1 Board composition, succession and evaluation
EERMENX  EERTZ
Corporate Governance Principle
hEERRE
The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company'’s business and should ensure that the directors devote sufficient time and make contributions to the Company that
are commensurate with their role and board responsibilities. It should include a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive Directors so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised. Non-executive directors should be of sufficient
calibre and number for their views to carry weight.

EXGRBBEAAEBMHAGESNTTH SREASENEHEASYEERSEFHLEAAECRESFERENRD
AIRARAREWEHER - EFGHRNTESRIFNTESNHEESBZRFHE - UEEHE DU LB 7 HIE -
FNTEESRBERHIBNMAR  UEEERABXE) -

B.1.1 Independent non-executive directors C e The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors
should be identified in all corporate including the names of the Chairman, the executive Directors, the non-
communications that disclose the executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors, is
names of directors. disclosed in all corporate communications.
NEITERBEEUEH D FEA EMARRBAFEREFAFILBE(REERE  WITES - 3
o ERZSABEMIFRITESSD - HITEEREFATESOUR)REESSNEK -

e The Board currently consists of a total of seven Directors, comprising

three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. More than one-third of the Board
are independent non-executive Directors of which more than one
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Details of the composition of the Board
are set out on page 19 of this report.
EEEHEUBEEEAR  BEZMNTES  —(IFRTEEK=
UBIIENTES - NP ESGXNERBIIIENTES -
EHRBEE—(UBVIFNTERAEEEEEER  JABEENSG
PSRRI BERER - EEQAKGBIIEHNILFREIIE -

e The Company maintains on its corporate website and on the Stock
Exchange’s website an updated list of Directors identifying their roles
and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors.

RATEE PP KB MEN FIRESTNEESRERE
WHIEAEAEMBE  ARTPRAREBEIINTES

e The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 19 to 24 of

this report.
EEEAERIHERNEFREIOEEFE24E -
B.1.2 The company should maintain on its © e The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of the

website and on the Stock Exchange
website an updated list of its directors
identifying their role and function and
whether they are independent non-
executive directors.

ANAECEPU RABRAE EH
FRRESHNESGHELE -
WHBRE AEFBEE - ARTHAE
EREYIENITES -

Company and Stock Exchange, identifying their respective roles and
functions, and whether they are independent non-executive Directors.
B ESREDEHRN AR RABZAEL - WIHAEAGRE
B R MIAERSE I IERITES -

e The Company has also posted on its website and the website of Stock
Exchange the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees to enable the
shareholders to understand the roles played by those independent non-
executive Directors who serve on the relevant Board Committees.
ARBMRERUMRERMEEEHEETSRE T RESHE -
gg%zT%%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ%%%@%?é%%\5%%

TEROFFR o BREEAEERAE
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LEERRE
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FHHKX BE(E]) | EERER
B.1.3 The board should review the © e The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1

implementation and effectiveness
of the Company’s policy on board
diversity on an annual basis.
EEEREBFERINARANESEES
TALBER B B e S B U o

September 2013 (“Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board, details of which are summarised as
follows:

EE2A_T -FNA-BERMREFEX B ZITIEER - #I)
EEEREBKE LU L MMM FE - BB ET

(@) In considering the Board’s composition, a wider range of
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service will be duly considered in the selection of
candidates.
REERAGERESSNANX WEZEEBKGEAEES
B BEERRAER - Fik - MERBEESR  HELER -
BEE - MBEARBER -

(b) All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria.
FIBEEZENEZEMARARS BRA - AR EBIREE FIRE
A o

o
&

The Board will take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board appointment.
EEeN SR ENERBEEEEFAERAREESIER L
MR BRI o

e To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee will review it annually or as appropriate and
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
REZEEREBFIERRNEFTGNE L L BUER Rl E[ Al
BB ENER]  MBERETZAEN  TRBRESSEZ RIUEEM

EASCHIN

During 2023, the Board considered and resolved the appointment
of a female candidate as a new board member. At the date of this
annual report, there are three female Directors on the Board, bringing
the female representation to about 43% of the Board. The Board
considered current proportion of female members on the Board is
appropriate.

R-T =480 EFEZWRTEET L2 MEREANRTD
EEgHE  MNAFREE EE2ehE=2LMUES  SMtE
EEEHHOLAEEDLNAIZ% - EZERARARLMEKNERESTE L
LLBl& i o

e As at 31 December 2023, the male and female ratio for the workforce

and senior management of the Group was 88.5%/11.5% and
33.3%/66.7% respectively. The company hires workforce based on
business needs and strategy and the nature of work, expertise and
experience required for the position.
RZE_=F+-_A=+—H AEEN2BEEILSEEEAS
o BMRMZ SIS R 588 5%,/11.5%833.3%,766.7% °
RABBEEBHFEMREARBUNTELE  IENSEEANHR
KEIRERSET -
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JL%M\Aﬁd:

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z58 | FHHKX BRIE) | LEERES
B.1.4 The Company should establish © e The Company had established channels through formal and informal
mechanism(s) to ensure independent means whereby Independent Non-executive Directors can express their
views and input are available views, these include but not limited to private meeting session with the
to the board and disclose such Chairman and interaction with senior management and other Board
mechanism(s) in its Corporate Members including the Chairman outside the boardroom.
Governance Report. The board AARERYL T TARMERFIIEERXARIE - FBIIFNITEERRE
should review the implementation and REMMHER - ELURBEREBEETRNEEZFENLAGE - L/USZ
effectiveness of such mechanism(s) HEEERABNMEMESENE(RRER)EERINESD -
on an annual basis.
NEEHI TS UEERESE 0] e When assessing suitability of the candidates for election as Independent
BESBIMEBLMER  WEH(D Non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee will review their
RERAWME)PRELME - EXEE profiles, having regard to the Board Diversity Policy and the list of
FEGF R S B e A R - nomination criteria set out in the Nomination Policy. Those policies
are subject to review annually to ensure their effectiveness and
independent views and inputs are provided to the Board.
TERIABUFNTESREANGHENR  REZESHERIE
EENEZTEBR RIBRABEMEHIERER - BEHRE ST
FHEITHR  URREABRUELRESSBREBIBENER -
B.2 Appointments, re-election and removal
T HERE
Corporate Governance Principle
JL% B E H‘
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for
orderly succession for appointments. All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.
§§$§{£$%ﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁ CRBEERWAFRE  WERTAERFNESFETTE - MEEFHEERE TREET
B.2.1 Directors should ensure that they can C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year.

give sufficient time and attention to
the company’s affairs and should not
accept the appointment if they cannot
do so.

EEREREN L AN E RS
%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘a%ﬁ C DA EER

Please refer to C.5.1 below for the attendance records.
FRNEEFESRLEREARE - BERBFR TXECS]
H o

e All Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track
record, whose interests are aligned with that of the Company. Every
Director has given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs. The independent non-executive Directors have brought
a wide spectrum of their extensive knowledge and experience in
their respective business undertakings to the Board for the fullest
performance of its functions.

“%%ﬂﬂﬁffﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬂéﬁ%&@‘ﬁﬁﬁ@E,%Eéﬂﬁz TPk

RANAG@ — B - BHRESEHARF 2 B E B AN HE R
?EP BUFHTEEMAGBNRESBERGENEZSE NHE
Ris%  BOHEETSIHEBITHB -

—=EER « pEsEcEsRAs 31
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LEERRE
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FHHKX BE(E]) | EERER
B.2.2 Every director, including those © e According to the service agreements entered into between each of

appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
BREF(RREAECEHNES)
EWmRRE E2LB=F—R-

non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director and
the Company, the term of appointment is three years but subject to
retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at annual general meeting
(“AGM”) under the articles of association of the Company (“Articles”).

BESIFNTESTHB LN TESRADB ]2 RGHH - E
BR=F ERBEAAF cEBEZMB([ERMADRE - AR
ARBIZRRBAFERG([REAFAE ) BRAER]BERET -

Under the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years
but shall be eligible for re-election.

BEERMA - REERRBAFAG L SHR/B=P)2—HNES
HARBERE MERERAZLPE=FRRIREAFAE LRE—
R BRIFE BEIREEER -

Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such
new Director shall hold office until the next following general meeting of
the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next
following AGM of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board)
and shall then be eligible for election at the same general meeting.
BEERMAA  EEE0 TREEESUE/BREHRIOULRE
BEKE - EEFZEMEARRR T RRRAE (10 EE R
ZH)IEARB TERRBEFAS(NBERESGKE) B
WEEBBRRR—RERE E2E -

Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.
AARIEMEHESS AN  BMREFSHEAERAGAQAEDR
FIBER - THRREBZ ANTHEK -

e The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director on its website.

BRHEEEMALZ2MEETEE BT - EERRARBTHUA -
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JL%M\Aﬁi

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")

Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2Z58 | FHHKX BE(E) | LEERER

B.2.3 If an independent non-executive © e As at the date of this annual report, Messrs. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Cheng
director had served more than Fu Kwok, David have been serving as independent non-executive
nine years, such director’s further Directors of the Company for more than nine years. Each independent
appointment should be subject to a non-executive Director who was subject to retirement by rotation was
separate resolution to be approved appointed by a separate resolution in the Company’s AGM. Each
by shareholders. The papers to independent non-executive Director who was eligible for re-election at
shareholders accompanying that the AGM had made a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
resolution should state why the board 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
(or nomination committee) believes BERFRAH A RAEERBHBLE—HETARRTBIIE
the director is still independent and BITESCBBNE - RARRIZRRAFAE £ BUERRS
should be re-elected, including the BRZBUEPTESUBLRBZRZT - BURAREAFTAE £
factors considered, the process and E%@f%Zéﬁiakinﬁé%ﬂEh:zﬁ”imﬁﬂwfﬁs.1311%%%%%%%
the discussion of the board (or the TIEERRER o
nomination committee) in arriving the
determination. e The Company'’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information on
BBEMERNTEFTEACBNE - re-election of Directors, including detailed biographies, interests and
,H:KETZ%Zi{£FELA§%_L/;%u§ E/EE (where appropriate) independence of all Directors standing for re-
R R E R E election. If an independent non-executive Director serves more than
[E] B 45 BL R Yﬁﬂ}] nine years, the information would be included in the circular to advice
e(HREBEEE) 7%@ RY-F&2 shareholders the reasons why the Board believes the relevant Director
EENBREAYALTREESTENRT is still independent and should be re-elected.
H - piEFEENEE  FEg(5 RRARRRBEFRE Luﬁﬁiké$m¢%§ﬂ BIERIESEE
REAEZBG)FIAENBRIERAHR EENMAEENFABERE e k(ER) B - BB IEH
AR o TEEEACBNE  E—FTERBEHABRNA - ﬁk%%ﬁfﬁ%%

ERAMBRESTNEBIIATREESENRA -

e Messrs. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan and Cheng Fu Kwok, David will retire from
office as independent non-executive Directors at the 2024 AGM,
however, they will not offer themselves for re-election. The Board will
identify suitable candidates to fill the vacancies due to their retirements.
%TT%E&%ﬁ.%f%ﬂfjfmgkﬁﬂiﬁAiLEﬁl
FEMTEFRY  BETEEET -EFSTRWEEE AELUAR
EHIREZ =5 -

B.2.4 Where all the independent non- © e As at the date of this annual report, Messrs. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Cheng

executive directors of the Company
have served more than nine years on
the board, the Company should:
BRRMNEEGNABBEIIFNT
EEHEEBBNTF - RF)E

(a) disclose the length of tenure
of each existing independent
non-executive director on a
named basis in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the
notice of the annual general
meeting; and
TER R EF A& s PrbE Mt e
AR PR3 BRI K S v B R 1 R R R
BREEBUIRITESTNES
AR &

(b

appoint a new independent non-
executive director on the board at
the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
ETRRREFREG LEZE—
MEBIEMITES o

Fu Kwok, David have been serving as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company for more than nine years and Mr. Ho Teck
Cheong has been serving as independent non- executive Director of the
Company for not more than 5 years.

HERFRBE - BIr AL ERBEE L ERERRFEIIERT
%$Ei@ﬂ¢ CMAEEREEEARARRBIENTESTHEBA

—=EER - BEsEcEERAT 33
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LEERRE
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FHHKX BE(E]) | EERER
B.3 Nomination Committee
REEAR
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRA
In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under
Sections B.1 and B.2 in the Code.
REZEGRTRER  AxHZREGEECTAEBIRB2EHAKRE -
B.3.1- — The nomination committee should © e The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March
B.3.3 be established with specific written 2012 for nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing

terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.
NAEEBEAREEEGAE
Q{H%ﬁ%%ﬁ B AR B
=T o

— It should perform the following
duties:
RELZEQEBITUATEE

(a) review the structure, size
and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board
at least annually and make
recommendations on any
proposed changes to the board
to complement the company’s
corporate strategy;
ZLOBFRINEFTGNERE
ABRAK(BERRE - MH
Rgs A mE) - WM AR
BRRKBMBEERSIEL
MW BIRLER

(b

=

identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board
members and select or make
recommendations to the board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

mMeREEEAKAERES
AT WHEREEEAL
E%%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁtﬁ%%@%f#\

the nomination of Directors, assessing the independence of each
independent non-executive Director and making recommendations
to the Board on such appointments. The full terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(https://www.singamas.com).

EEREORN T AT tHRUIERZEGHEUREAE
BEHEEANE FBREBRENES IRELBIFRTEEN
BUMRREREZEINEESRLES - FAREEZESRESRE
R 15 38 B8 8 X AT U (https://www.hkexnews. hk) B AN A &) 49 v
(https://www.singamas.com) °

e The current members of the Nomination Committee include one
executive Director being the Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr. Teo
Siong Seng (Chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David.
REZEERAKERE BT ESRESSEIF-RNELEE
() RMEB L IERITEE- B G ERBER L o

e The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BRe®k REZEQIRCNEFTERABRNES -

In 2023, the Nomination Committee met once and attendance of
individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in the year is
summarized below:

g@:;ﬁzzi CIREZEEGRE X HERIKENEREREE®R
AR -

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEGRE HERE
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) SRILEE (/&) 171
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan ElEIEE 171
Cheng Fu Kwok, David B = 1/1

e The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties. The Nomination Committee is accountable to
the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for
information.

REZEGVRRALGAZRERUBITERE - REZEGERNES
SERALHESREBARRERZEEM -
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JL%M\Aﬁd:

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z£38 | FAKX BRIE) | LEERES
B.3.1- (c) assess the independence of e The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
B.3.3 independent non-executive during the year under review:
(cont'd) directors; and EREFA  REZBeNIERRAT -
(#8) IR BFERTEENE L

MRk
(d

=

make recommendations to the
board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors
and succession planning
for directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief
executive.
HEEFZEXENEZAARE
F(LEREFRITHER ) #
FrEMESSREER -

— The nomination committee
should make available its terms of
reference explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the
Stock Exchange website and the
company’s website.
REZESEREBRAMBILEA
AL FAREBERE - AR
%ﬁ@u&%%@@ﬁ%ﬁ%%

— The company should provide
the nomination committee
sufficient resources to perform
its duties. Where necessary, the
nomination committee should seek
independent professional advice, at
the company’s expense, to perform
its responsibilities.

NRIEAREZLZESRMTREE
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁoﬁ% ~EeR
THRERNERE  ESRkBT
BEER  BRAQRXN -

(a) made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and assessed
independence of independent non-executive Directors;
RURBERELEES AL ZANEHEZEESAERS
REZBRIRERER  URAZBIIRTES 2B

(b

=

identified suitable individual qualified to become Board member
and make recommendation to the Board on the nominated
individual for directorships;

meREs *ﬁ%TﬁE§$mAi’ﬁﬁ%%E%AiﬁE
BEENESFEREER

(c) reviewed the terms of reference of Nomination Committee;

mEREZ B EMBERE
(d

=

reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board;

WA EFEKNEZTLBUR

(e) reviewed the nomination policy; and

WEREEE Rk

(f) reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and
assessed the balance of skills and experience of the Board
as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.
BHNEEENAE  BEERZ T Wil ESSRENLR
e RBEZ T EUEES RAFRARRINEBEL -

e The Board has also adopted a nomination policy effective from
26 March 2019 (“Nomination Policy”) setting out the criteria and
procedures when considering candidates to be appointed and re-
appointed as Directors.

BEEEE T -NF=ZAZTNARTEERMNRRBECK  JIHRE
BREAMEAREFEAAE SR ERRIZF «

Nomination criteria

B AER

All new appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based on
the following criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

EEENMZERENRERU T EAFHEREARTAE

(a) Integrity
i

(b) Independent mindedness

BIMER

(c) Possession of core competencies that meet the current needs
of the Company and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors
%ﬁfiﬂ%ﬁﬁéﬁ@iﬁﬁ%g~Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%&
A8 N N

—=EER « BEsEcEERAT 3D
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Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FHHKX BE(E]) | EERER
B.3.1- (d) Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
B.3.3 responsibilities effectively
e S EBERAES - AR TR RRE
i)

(e) A good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
organisations

ERA/ BEHEREESREERNBERFER

(f) Financial knowledge

BEHBPBEMER

These criteria are for reference and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate.

FEHERIHR2E  WABEEREMERER - b TERTEHIER -
REZEEATIREEMERBEEMAL

Nomination procedures

REREF

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee for consideration of a proposed candidate
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee shall
nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to the shareholders for election as Directors at general
meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies or as additional
Directors. Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in relation to the candidates as required in Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates to provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary. In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will be sent
to shareholders. The names, brief biographies (including qualifications
and relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any
other information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular
to shareholders. According to the Articles, the shareholders may also
propose a person for election as a director, details of which are set out
in the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting, Put
Forward Proposals at Annual General Meeting and Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” of the Company and available on the website of the
Company.
REZESNEACRREZE e lIRES E @ RIEANIRE
A e };E%*,\E.Z MEERELEE B UHESREERAK
%%&%Wﬂxik TERERES - %ﬁ%%Aifiﬁ%$MﬁﬁEm
i’aﬁﬂzf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁi‘§$ EEAESERERRIBE ETHRAUE
13 51(2) &AM &5 2 F B 53 EE)\PfrﬁﬁEr’Ml}\éﬂ RELZBENRA
BRE - "JLA;(M%L/\H BONERRX - BRAEHEEES
REBERRAE FR2ENREAER  ARABSMARRE @K -
PR AR EE %ﬁ(’ﬂ%éﬁ&ffﬁﬁ%i«‘%ﬁ) B ERME
REAMBEBERNZERE  RAUKROIFHNEXTRRBEHOER -
BBEZRMA - RETAIIRE2BERHAE - FAFBHINER
AR ARBRRARE RIRREFAGREZZEIERENAL
DBEEEZRFIAN - WEBIHRARA R -
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B.3.4 Where the board proposes a © e Mr. Ho Teck Cheong will stand for re-election as the independent non-

resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive director at
the general meeting, it should set out
in the circular to shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

EEEERIBRERG LIRZ2RE
REFEALTRBIUIIFPITES -
BEREANGRETHEN S BARR
B SRR R - ERRTIEA

1. the process used for identifying
the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should
be elected and the reasons why
it considers the individual to be
independent;
BUmEZAANTHRIE - EF
ERA/EEMZBATHERIA
RiFIRRZAATEEIAL
HRA :

2. if the proposed independent
non- executive director will be
holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why
the board believes the individual
would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the board;
IMEREE Y IFRITES ST
FER(KUAL) ETRATNE
F EBEZERAZBALTMHAR
ARHRERBETESFEANR
i

3. the perspectives, skills and
experience that the individual can
bring to the board; and
ZHANTAI REEGEIRNER
HAE  BRERER: R

4. how the individual contributes to
diversity of the board.
%ZE/\iZZD@TE%E%%@EZE%
Ttk e

executive Director of the Company in the forthcoming AGM of the
Company according to articles 92 and 92A of the Articles.
RIBERMAIEO2RO2AM - AIRE L EHRARBEEREAF
AREBEEERRAEILIFNTES -

The Company'’s circular of AGM set out the information in considering
the re-election of Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, having due regard to the Board
Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy and assessment of Mr. Ho's
independence.

AARRREFRAGBEHHEERBEMEE SR ENHA - HEE
lﬁﬂi%%%%lﬁ(%ﬁ&%%@ﬁi%%ﬁftﬁﬁzﬁ%b&&%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%iZﬁﬁ
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& DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES, DELEGATION AND BOARD PROCEEDINGS

BEXHT RHIERRERSREF

C.1 Responsibilities of directors
EEHE
Corporate Governance Principle
JL% E/DEQ‘

Every Director must always know their responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and
development. Given the essential unitary nature of the board, non-executive directors have the same duties of care and skill
and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

BERERARZ Ef?%¢ﬁf’ﬁi%27§$ﬂ’lﬂskz IEARNKEFN  XBEHRER -BHRNESSAE L2E— 88
B FRTEFEAEATESHRNZEETURNEEZHEEMREETENEE -

C.1.1 Newly appointed director of © e On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive briefing and
the company should receive related materials of the Group’s business activities, induction into their
a comprehensive, formal and responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.
tailored induction on appointment. MEFREZERBEY —E2HARLAHEN ST EEEEE
Subsequently they should receive BEN EEEERBEEN - REMETEK -
any briefing and professional
development necessary to ensure that e All Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly provided
they have a proper understanding with comprehensive reports on the management’s strategic plans,
of the company’s operations and updates on lines of business, financial information, etc.
business and are fully aware of their FEER(REFNTES) ETHEEEBRHERBUETRNEZE
responsibilities under statute and HRE - EREFEFEL - MBERSE -
common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements e The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors updated
and the company’s business and on Listing Rules and other appllcable statutory requirements.
governance policies. ARANEAEBRABESNEBBE WA REMETERNE
MEZEANESHYREXZERER %ﬁéﬁﬂ
iﬁ FERXFHFRAMIBHER

CHETEESHEONBRE e Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie was appointed as an executive Director
%?"E@ AR IR P98 R A Y iE E on 1 January 2023. She has obtained legal advice from Allen &
REBHBEREENER  UERTE Overy, a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong laws,
HMBAFEEHARLEBE - LR on 30 December 2022. Allen & Overy certified that Ms. Siu has
Bl - AERHEMEERTEUARRQA acknowledged to understand her obligations as a director of the
RIEBRERABUR THEE - Company.

BEBLLIR - E_=F-—A—AEZERANTES - EN %
—E+ A ARG BEREMELM(—KEBERRED
FRRERERMAZMTIMEZER - REERZMEBAERS
LIEARTREERARARNEENELE -

e Ms. Lau Man Yee, Vanessa was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 April 2023. She has obtained legal advice from Allen
& Overy, a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong
laws, on 11 April 2023. Allen & Overy certified that Ms. Lau has
acknowledged to understand her obligations as a director of the
Company.

%H@ﬁl%ﬁ:’:ﬁé:%:iimﬂ —HELZERIEWNITES - &IﬂEJ‘ﬁé\:
Z=FNAT-HESREEBEMESEM(—REERRSE
SRR iﬂ’]@ﬁﬂiﬁ)mié A ﬁﬁl?‘@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ*’*ﬁﬂ%
L+ BERTREEBAANEENE -
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Corporate Governance Practices
LEERER

C.l1.2

The functions of non-executive
directors include:

FHTEENRERRE

— bring independent judgement

on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct at board
meetings;
DEBEEFE  EPRRE
BE- - pElRE  MEE-A
B EERERRTEAEER
L REBYNER

— take the lead on potential conflicts of
interests arise;
EHRBEENREREBEER
SI8ER

— serve on the audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance
committees, if invited; and
ERLHEEZEZES FTMEE
g REZEERAEMEREZER
gXKE &

— scrutinise the company’s
performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and
monitoring performance reporting.
FmE N MRS EDE
ENEEBZRMEN  WERE
BRARKRRHEE °

C

e Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have
been actively performing them. On an on-going basis, Directors review
with management in respect of the Group’s strategic development and
direction, emerging risks and opportunities available to the Group.
EMTERBREMBEEANBAE LEREITHERE - EFHER
BABBNREEEEARBNREFRLAM - URAEE L
RE AR ke -

Board should establish written
guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employees
in respect of their dealings in the
company’s securities.

EEQRNAFUEEEERRES
EHRTEMEIES - Ea3lNBEZ
PHRESFATER ©

e The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

RRATEFM ETARRIMERCITNEHM BT AEFHTESFRZS
IR AN([IEESFRI ) RAR AR ESTNBEFRRHTHATA -

e Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors have
complied with, for any part of the accounting period covered by this
report, the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
RARMMBEEELEEERNE  MEESEAREMBEZE
STHARM 2 AR - 28T RETRIFRENSTE -

e Written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating to
securities transactions for relevant employees are set out in the “Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees” of the Company.
ARARFIBEREEEEES 2 EEES| - ZFiEo| RRFESFRIAR
ZERARIRE ©
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C.l4 All directors should participate in C e As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors are
continuous professional development updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
to develop and refresh their knowledge other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
and skills. This is to ensure that their compliance of the same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to
contribution to the board remains attend external forums or training courses on relevant topics which may
informed and relevant. The company count towards continuous professional development training.
should be responsible for arranging ERHESHERIZ 3D EBETREFFELTHRARE
and funding suitable training, placing HEREERTECEMEREN  UBRE2BESETABAT -
an appropriate emphasis on the AR EREFTHRIINABRPERARE 2 BEAGHIEIIRIE -
roles, functions and duties of a listed VERISBEEXRIEZ—Zp
company director.
FMEESERE2HFEFZERRE - 3 e Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous
BRI E A M R AL - AERE professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
HETEFEIEEARYEMESN skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
BATHESSELER - AFIE informed and relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2023, all
BETHABENEIWIRREBL Directors namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie,
B PURBEYEELFTARIESEH Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, Ms. Lau Man Yee, Vanessa, Mr. Cheng
Al BERET- Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ilvan and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong had
confirmed that they had complied with the code provision C.1.4 of
the Code by participating in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses or by reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors duties
and responsibilities.
BT EFED2EFEFTERRE - BRI LM R
B UERHEEBETCABIEAMRYEMENERTHESS
EEEE - BE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HLtEE 2BEHE
FBRINELAE  BEEHELLT - @MRLT - 2IgELLT - BEHEL
& BIRTEE S A RATBE S R - BB IR IR T2 sk Bl
AARERKNEFBERBERBERS I 2HESEIHETE
BRFIES  BBREFRIZTFANEXEC. LARZIRTE °
C.1.5 Directors should disclose to C e The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their

the company at the time of his
appointment, and in a timely manner
for any change, the number and
nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and
other significant commitments. The
identity of the public companies or
organisations and an indication of the
time involved should also be disclosed.
The board should determine for itself
how frequently this disclosure should
be made.
EERNEZIZABMAREER
RRRAEI S EBETEBZNEE
RUEBAREMEREE  Higg
BREMEEHEREREE o LINTE
BRI EN AR R A SAEBNE
BARBTREEZEEEBBE LK
WER - EEFERETREMERS
AVEH — IR R -

appointment and at least once a year thereafter the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments, identifying the public companies or
organisations involved.
EENEZZARCAARARR(WREBREEEL—R)ARR
BATI ARS8 RME - A REAERRE - WiRM
ZERNBARNMEEATE -
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C.16 Independent non-executive directors © e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee
and other non-executive directors, as meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and the independent
equal board members, should give the non-executive Directors and the general meetings during the year.
board and any committees on which Please refer to C.5.1, D.3.1, B.3.1-B.3.3, E.1.2, C.2.7 and F.2.2 for
they serve the benefit of their skills, details.
expertise and varied backgrounds FARESZER EFQ uﬁéé\@@aﬁ F JE BE N FEHAT
and qualifications through regular EEeEMREREZHBEERHLSARE - F1EHFL2HECH],
attendance and active participation. D.3.1,B.3.1-B.3.3, E.1.2, C.2.7)F.2.218 °
Generally, they should also attend
general meetings to gain and develop e Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both
a balanced understanding of the views quantitatively and qualitatively.
of shareholders. 2HGHERELERNIEERIHELES M EIETTE
BUFNTESREMIENTES
{’Eﬁéﬁiﬁﬁté$%ﬁﬁ EES:kva:0kS ¢ All non-executive Directors attended the AGM held on 23 June 2023.
EFENE  EEHHERFESFRH FBFERITESHER S _=F R NAZT=ZARTHIRRAFK
HETHj{EK,\@BZEEﬁ;,%@E@@ g
BWEBSEGE  UHEE - F
ERMBRTANE SR REBIELE
BRe MY EEEIRE RS - R
ARROERABAERNTHE
C.1.7 Independent non-executive directors © ° Please refer to C.1.6 above.
and other non-executive directors F2M EXECL6HE -
should make a positive contribution
to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and
informed comments.
BUFPTEEREMIEANTES
RERREEBEY  EEIMERER
B E RN A6 E R R E
HIEE AR
C.1.8 Arrange appropriate insurance cover © e The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers Liability

in respect of legal action against the
directors.

NEIESEE RS HEREET
§1J1’E EHRIREHE

msurance coverage for its Directors and officers.

REABNEREERSRABRFBEENESTRSBABEER

o
rA
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C.2 Chairman and Chief Executive
FERITBUBE
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRA
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of
business of the Company to ensure a balance of power and authority.

ETEMNREEENESNASEENERRBEERE D + UERENMBIED Mgl -

c21 — Roles of chairman and chief E e Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of the Board

executive should be separated and and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles of Chairman
should not be performed by the and Chief Executive Officer are not separated. The Board considers that
same individual. this structure has the advantage of a strong and consistent leadership
FTRFETHESZNACES R which is conducive to making and implementing decisions efficiently
5 WA ER— ARIBEZRLE - and consistently.

— Division of responsibilities between RABEARRBETARRCESSIREREFETHEE  MEFE
the chairman and chief executive LRERTBEEMBY T2 ABL B EEeRAULEES
should be clearly established and gt RERMBRE 2B AMBFNMMELREBB R L —B 2R
set out in writing. ®K o
FEETHAEH  BBENS T
EBRRELIAEZESIE -

c.2.2 The chairman should ensure that all © e With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management and
directors are properly briefed on issues the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
arising at board meetings. are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
ITHREEREECCELMEES adequate documents and information about the Group in a timely
HEEMEBERMSEIE o manner.

EHTES  BEERAANMENHYT  FEINBRE2EES
OREZEENEESSGBMEIECEE U ERRRSERNEBEAE
o X RER -

C.2.3 The chairman should be responsible © e The Board papers including supporting analysis and related
for ensuring that directors receive, in a background information are normally sent to the Directors at least three
timely manner, adequate information working days before the regular Board meetings.
which must be accurate, clear, EERERXNMERBEZIONMEKEEEREN  —RRESETEH
complete and reliable. EAMA TR =ZALEEHERES -
FEEEERRES BRI RS
BB MABEMNINNBERES e Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to facilitate the
BT K SEfE R 58 o communication between the Directors to ensure that queries

raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and
further supporting information and/or documentation is provided as
appropriate.

RAMEERHFAEREEZHNEDR  BRESHRERBLEK
{%;%Z%IE%?%@E% TR — S EEER RS (W iE
&) o
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C.24 — The chairman should provide © e The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director who is responsible

leadership for the board. for the leadership and effective running of the Board.
FENACRREESTY - EZXFANTESHE  AEREBRENERESES
The chairman should ensure that e The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction of
the board works effectively and the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-
performs its responsibilities, and level oversight of management.
that all key and appropriate issues EE ST EARAES SR ASBERERE IR YAER R
are discussed by it in a timely BERNEBERENTE-
manner.
TEEREREESHSULEE - e All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any
BERTEABE  WRERAE matters in the agenda. The Chairman of the Board designates the
EEEEEE TR ° Company Secretary to draw up the agenda by taking into account the
matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the
The chairman should be primarily agenda
responsible for drawing up and BEEY %Eguﬁ]‘égﬁﬁcﬂ$lﬁ§i ABRERN - EBGEEIE
approving the agenda for each /)E AMERTEESD; n%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁ@%%%%ﬁ@%lﬁ(ﬁﬂ
board meeting. He should take BIINAZEA -
into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the other e With the support of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary,
directors for inclusion in the agenda. the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key
The chairman may delegate this and appropriate issues on a timely manner.
responsibility to a designated EHRTESRARMERY T - TERNERABESHERNE
director or the company secretary. FBEEREEEHE -
Ifﬂgix%,\gijﬁ?tt}&?’ﬂ
$E = ua» uﬁ*% ’ jﬁ%—t@%l‘%
RTJ&&@%%T&%MA%E
WEMEE - FFAIKERET
EREFTNESHRARWE -

(G705 The chairman should take primary © e The Chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company Secretary,
responsibility for ensuring that good takes primary responsibility to establish good corporate governance
corporate governance practices and practices and procedures of the Company.
procedures are established. EEEXRAATINENHD TEERLARRIRTEEELRTER
ITFEEEFERT  BRARAGTE EEFZEERE -

RIFOGCEELATHREER
C.26 — The chairman should encourage all © e The Chairman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various
directors to make a full and active matters of the Group and encourages the Directors to express their
contribution to the board’s affairs views concerning the management of the Group.
and take the lead to ensure that FREEE TR BRI RASETASENEERIBAEES
it acts in the best interests of the REHEHREEAREENER -
company.
TRESBMEESE2 IRAE
EGEG - WAHER - BRE
ERITENERARIRKEN
The chairman should encourage
directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient
time for discussion of issues and
ensure that board decisions fairly
reflect board consensus.
FREEBETRERNESY
RELASBINEE  LTE
LETFERMEAR - URER
EECMATHLAIRBRESTS
B
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Cc.2.7 The chairman should at least annually © e The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent non-
hold meetings with the independent executive Directors to ensure effective communication. In addition to
non-executive directors without the regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board had met with the
presence of other directors. independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the other
FREEVBFRBIENTES Directors.
BIT-RNRBEMESHENEE TR AR IENITEFRFF T H AU RREROER - RE
FeTHeR) BEEEXFENRBEVIIFNTEREL BEMNEM
EEMNERTRITEE -
c.28 The chairman should ensure that © e The Company provides updated information of the Group to all

appropriate steps are taken to
provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the board as a
whole.

FFRBEREDGEE P RRFER
REWEE  URBEBRERRERA
BEIBREEES -

shareholders when it becomes available and appropriate, through the
publication of interim and annual reports, circulars, notices, media
releases or other means in compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements. The Company has made such information available
on the Company’s website (https://www.singamas.com) as well as
on an independent website provider (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/
singamas). The purpose is to provide our shareholders an alternative
channel to access the Group’s information easily and reach the potential
shareholders globally.

RARBAORMMAERRIBHASERNER  WEZSERNEHL
ERENTETFHRERER  BE - BE  SEEEMIETE
EREEHRENHEMER - XARIEEZEEN FHRALQ AR
Uk (https://www.singamas.com) * [E B 75 _E &R — I8 L B uh (L fE g
(http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas) * It B ) 2 7Sk IR 58
gﬁ%@%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%tﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁéE’Uéﬁﬂ&%*ﬁ?&iﬂ%ﬁ%%iﬁ?’%ﬁ
B o

e Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with shareholders
in the Company’s general meetings during the year, the Company
continuously enhances shareholders’ communications by holding press
and/or analyst conferences during any reporting period or year. In
addition, the Company has a “Frequently Asked Questions” section in
its annual report providing its shareholders with more clear and concise
information that may be of common concern. Besides, the Company
has responded to letters and telephone enquiries from shareholders
and potential shareholders throughout the year under review.
REBFA > REARRFBRRASG HRM— (AR EE EHHEN T
A% KRR EFHELRERRBRANKE  MELAMHENFE
REN  AARMTERITEER IOMEEH o Wi AQAE
REBRARAE [ RIS - FELIRMEEM R LR
BRHGERR - ZHN 0 AR AR BEE AT EEEREBRER R
BERRER M BEEEA o

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general meetings
can deposit a written request at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King's Road,
Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, for the attention of
the Company Secretary. The written request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, signed by the
shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of those shareholders.
BRREHBRRAGZER
RIBRAERB T LRI RN T2 ERRFARENHRR - AL
EERIGRERRAINGEMPERE - BB RZE75-83REE HIR
AEL9HE - BEFARAWMER - ZEMARERM SR FIGE
BEBH—MIEE  WARPEEERREHFERAIBZHERXHA
K §MAH LR —ZgA ERREE -
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C.28 ¢ Procedures for putting forward proposals at AGM
(cont'd) Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
(&) shareholders having at the date of the request the right to vote at the

AGM; or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company
who have a right to vote at the resolution of the AGM can submit a
written request to move a resolution at the AGM. The written request
must state the resolution, signed by all the shareholders concerned and
may consist of several documents in like form (which between them
contain the signatures of all the shareholders concerned). The written
request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King’s Road,
Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the meeting to which
it relates or if later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting.
Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having a relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote, may request the Company to circulate,
to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to (a)
a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that
meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt with at that meeting. The
request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King’s Road,
Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, identify the statement
to be circulated, signed by all the shareholders concerned and be
received by the Company not less than seven days before the meeting
to which it relates.

RERREFAEREERBZER

UTATAIMARARRRE®E #RAERREAFAE EBH RS
R EZAKERLNBBFELAIRNRRAFRG ERA - BT
LRFTEREARFEN25% A TNPR0BIFEARARBIABEE
ARERIRER - ZEEARARMZRER  EHXBEEARRES
R BZMARX AR (HE2BERRREZTNGFKE) - 25
His RETERARBNTMPER - HEBEREE75-83%K WS H IR
REL19E - A AR RWEWY - WEETDRPIHE KRR EF
RERITZNERAI (NRE) BHRRBF NG ®M 2 FEEZ
B FENPNREEBREE 2 FTEIRE 2 BRIREN2.5% ;

FADRE0EFFE AL A H R RFE R IRER AT 2 kAR Bl A R
FRWAGmE CRRERH —HTZRN],000FHRME - NEH
R@EFEZRRAE LEENEWREAAZMANET 5 5k
(L) EMBEFEZRRAG FRIENSEH - WELKFFEARARAI 2
MR EBL2E75-835Ma HRAE1948 - 51T TEMZ
Rt - WHEBEBRREE  ZERLFRTIOREEERETA
TRIKERRNT o
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Cc.2.8 e Shareholders’ enquiries
(cont'd) Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
(&) to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor

Services Limited. Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent
that such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also refer
to the contacts under “Investor Relations” section in the Company’s
website (https://www.singamas.com) for enquiries. Shareholders have
the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing
and sent by post to the registered office of the Company or by e-mail to
info@singamas.com for attention of the Company Secretary.

RERER

BREERAARABOBEFELE-BEATRELFELEAERA
Al EBEREZRME BRERBEALIABERE X
ZEMBEBEARRZERAHER - RRINATRIEAD A AU
(https://www.singamas.com) [ &% & & B & | WK B 4 75 R /E B
B -BENEBEANEZTSELEN MBEHRHEANEEFLR
Bl UEZTFARARAIMERBFEARAAMBHSEXNEHE

info@singamas.com ©

e Shareholders’ communication policy

The Board established a shareholders communication policy and
made it available on the Company’s website. This policy aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the Company’s
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company (including its financial performance,
strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance and
risk profile), in order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. Shareholders may
also, at any time, make enquires and communicate their views on
various matter affecting the Company by writing to the Company
Secretary or directly by raising questions at general meetings.

The Board will review the policy on annual basis and considered the
policy is still effective.

RERBABE

EESHTERFBABER - WEBHNAL B o ZBCRATEHE K
NEEBRRARAFTBRRE - AFEARKERR  REFEZELTE
B —REEALT  HAERDRGEE2HEH  HEREFEROARDAE
HBEEMBRER  BBAEKAS  EXBRE - EhR kAR
) —HEERRAEMNBELTTEESN  S—HEHBERR
RIE AL EARDE NEEB - BRRIFAIBERSERDAME - WA
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%% RAMEEEEERER AEERKRERE

FE A ©

EESHTFRIZBE - URB/ZHRENEEKK -
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C.2.9 The chairman should promote a © e The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages
culture of openness and debate by Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully engaged
facilitating the effective contribution of in the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the Board’s functions.
non- executive directors in particular Eﬁ?ﬂzﬂaﬁﬁﬁﬂj{b WEBSEEETREENESREER UKk
and ensuring constructive relations H2HEZSMER  UHEESHNBEELER -
between executive and non-executive
directors. e Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication
FTREEREAH BER:ImHX between executive and non-executive Directors are achieved through
1t - fesEsE %( #ﬂ']nz#ﬁﬂﬁ%%) discussions in Board meetings, various Board committee meetings and
HEETeEEAERER @ THEARH other Board activities/programmes.

TEFHFNTEFT 2 HEEFER RENEZEER SEZZECORKHMEZEEY FTEM
MR RR - A ARRIEEBFRITERNERER RAITEFEIENITE
EZHERER

C.3 Management functions
BIEIEE
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to
management.

NRAEA—HERNTEATEE - JIHFHNEEETSUANFTELREEERBRENEHE -

C.3.1 When the board delegates aspects of © e Management meetings are held periodically where executive Directors
its management and administration and heads of senior management of the respective business divisions
functions to management, it must, at are present and clear directions are given as to the management’s
the same time, give clear directions powers.
as to the management's powers, in ERESTHRTOG  JITEERFRERIFINSRERAS
particular, where management should RIEABeHREEH  WHEEBBNEHG T EMBES -
report back and obtain prior board
approval before making decisions or e Any issue that is considered to be material will be referred to the Board
entering into any commitments on the for approval.
company’s behalf. AREEERCEHEARFIHIRHESTSEM
%%%@H@Eﬁ@&ﬁﬂzm EE
WEHER TER= E¢ A 78 [ e Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or
BREEREEBEMNREN  £T3E MﬁE’]#E. other applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure will be

gl - FHRIREE IEEFE MESZE made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’
=5 L/(&Eﬁ?% BE AR E K approval will be obtained in accordance with the requirements of the
ANV EREERERSESSIE applicable rules and regulations.
EEHAE ° B EMARASEMERNRASROIMAETREC EEEE @ 1
SEHBEE 2ER  URFTERRBERA R RROIZR - T2
3 EK S BUS IR SR 2 BEE o
C.3.2 Formalise functions reserved to C e Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the

the board and those delegated to
management and to review those
arrangements periodically to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the
company s needs.
NEIEHALRE TES SR BAE

&ﬁﬁﬁtih?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁ JﬁE
TR - 0 E BVERR ST AR G R
ZHRNERAINEE -

Chairman of the Company, management is responsible for the day- to-
day operations of the Group.
EERTRAE(BRTARARRAIZER)FET  BEEEAELRER
B -

e The Company has established clear terms of reference for the Board
which are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

ARFCREFSHFEMNBELE - X ERRTERERES
i o

—=EER « BHsEesRAT 47
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C.3.3 Directors should clearly understand © e Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key terms
delegation arrangements in place. The and conditions of their respective appointment. Each newly appointed
company should have formal letters of Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
appointment for directors setting out FEESFCWRIEXNZEE  URAFTHEZEZETZRRRIE
the key terms and conditions of their o BENMEAESNIBERLEEE -
appointment.
%%F’*‘f”ﬂﬁﬂ%mﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬁr
e AREBERANEEEEE -
ET%%E%%EE@?EQ\%?X&M%% °

c.4

Board Committees

E=gETNERES

Corporate Governance Principle

EERRA

Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.

E=ZgR TR ZEENNYETEERNNERESRE  BSRIBZESRHIIBE

c.4.1

Where board committees are © e Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration
established to deal with matters, the Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee, have
board should give them sufficiently been established with specific terms of reference. Please refer to B.3.1
clear terms of reference to enable -B.3.3,C.3.2, D.3.3 and E.1.3 for details.

them to perform their functions %%‘%EK_LPIIWET?E\@ MEZZEe  HFWEZE® 2%
properly. fé'f& EREZEY  SARABESE - FAF2H%B3.1 -
EENVZEGRESEH EFE B.3.3,C.3.2, D.3.3/%E.1.3% -

EMA@ZE é@rﬂ Bbanipiadio)
HEEE - EELEEEITREE -

C.4.2

The terms of reference of board @ e Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
committees should require them to recommendations at the Board meetings.
report back to the board on their EERE [ ZESNESEERNESTERIAE RES -
decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions
on their ability to do so (such as
a restriction on disclosure due to
regulatory requirements).
EEER TR LESNBESRERE
REZZEGEMESTERALAL
ﬁiﬁi% CHRIEREEEGR AR
ELE IR Bl AT BR M 1 Ak 1 1L BE 3k (451
ﬁﬂlﬁ“ﬁiﬁ,mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ)

C.5

Conduct of board proceedlngs and supply of and access to information

EEgRBURERRHRRER

Corporate Governance Principle
BEERRA

The Company should ensure directors can participate in board proceedings in a meaningful and effective manner. Directors
should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make an informed
decision and perform their duties and responsibilities.

NAEBERESEAUEEZNERN AL ,\§$ EEET  BERERMCEENEREN  AEARZEZAR
ERRNEEZRERFRERNBERTIELRE - YEBETHEBAERET -
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EA5N| Regular board meetings should © e The Board held four meetings in 2023. The Board would meet more

be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in
person or through electronic means
of communication, of majority of
directors.
EregcHesReFELERN
R RKRBAERRBRHHE - HFE
BETFRATEBGRHE o

frequently as and when required.
EEEN_ZT_=FERTHREE B ER
mINGE o

CEBEEAAH

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. No
alternative Director was appointed during 2023.
ESERE-EATES  —EIRNEER-RBUFNTES
B o —BE_=FAUEZEEAEEES -

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to

the date of this annual report and details of Directors’ attendance at the

Board meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out

below:

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HILFERBEXFHE HHZ§$’\

W,a&%%ﬁ}*%z%f? =T A=t HILEFENESRS
EEF S

Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EENA HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Teo Siong Seng RINE 4/4
(Chairman and Chief (TEFEE
Executive Officer) T A8 B
Siu Wai Yee, Winnie EEE 4/4
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEE @ i
(appointed on 1 January (R=—FE=—= i
2023) — B — AEZEE)
Chung Pui King, Rebecca  4& 1l Ix 4/4
(Chief Financial Officer and (& JZ 81 48 &
Company Secretary) RAEjfE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Lau Man Yee, Vanessa 2\8& 3/3
(appointed on 1 April 2023) (RZZE_Z=4
P9H—HEZ(F)
Kwa Wee Keng B 0/1
(resigned on 1 April 2023) (R-—ZE—=
/98— H & HE)
Chan Kwok Leung R B R 0/0
(resigned on 24 February — (R-ZZE =4
2023) 7/7 + 00 HEHE)
Independent BUFHITES
Non-executive Directors
Cheng Fu Kwok, David B0 5 [ 4/4
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2l m] 4/4
Ho Teck Cheong EE 4/4
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(G151} e The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone conference

(cont'd) or by means of a similar communication equipment or by their alternate

(&) in accordance with the Articles. An updated and consolidated version

of the Company’s Articles (both English and Chinese versions) are
available on the websites of the Company (https://www.singamas.com)
and Stock Exchange (https://www.hkexnews.hk). The Company has
amended the Articles to tie in with the amendments to the Listing Rules
(in particular to conform to the core shareholder protection standards as
set out in Appendix Al to the Listing Rules) in 2023..
BEERMA - ERAURS FREEFSRIBCUBMBIMLE
% JAEBFEEERBEE - RARARERMABZ&HEFERE
(RXEHXHR) © BESHR AR (https://www.singamas.com) &
7B BT (https://www.hkexnews.hk) 48k « R =T - =4F » A 7%
BEERSCHEL TIER] - BEURE EmRAMBET (FARFE
ETARAITERAL A B ORI R AR EKTE) o
E15%2 All directors are given an opportunity © e All Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter in

to include matters in the agenda for the agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is issued.

regular board meetings. NEEFETHRELB RN  CHARBOMBEESRLENM

PRESEAKIIELANFET EREEPSIPN -+ 2

AEBFeTrTHeRER -

EI58 — At least 14 days notice for regular © e The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each regular
board meetings. board meeting and gives reasonable notice for other board meetings.
AHREESTHeREREED REBXEBREESTHERNZ D THREFEHERBM  WisTH
TEHRBEA - thEEEERSBEREZEBH -

— Reasonable notice for other board
meetings.
BREMEFSSRELRLESE
A o
Cbh5.4 Minutes of board meetings and © e The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board,

meetings of board committees should
be kept by a duly appointed secretary
of the meeting and should be open for
inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director.
KEAZANGRWERBETES
ERABRTZEGNGRLE &
EAMEZEEHHAEBA - EAR
FHEgRCEEEEEMNGENR
BER -

Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee
meetings. Another duly appointed secretary is responsible for taking
minutes of Remuneration Committee meetings.
NANEEEREEEE FHREET  BEXLZEEehEHEZEY
@i%%afﬁz MM EEEERLBRABRINUEEEEIWESR
EIEIE °

e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all
Directors/Board Committee members within a reasonable time after
each Board and Board Committee meeting.
BREZGRABTZEGGRARE  REERRANEEEER
%?%T%%i@@Eﬁ%ﬂﬁi/?ﬁ%%%i%%é%/ﬁi%?éEa@ﬁfi
B o

e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are made available
for inspection by Directors/Board Committee members at the registered
office of the Company.
EFeRHEETZE SRR RERIHES HETZEE
KERAABFMRERER -
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E1515 — Minutes of board meetings and © e Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record
meetings of board committees contain sufficient details of matters considered and decisions reached
should record in sufficient detail the including concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by the
matters considered and decisions Directors.
reached. EEERHEETZE N SR LSRN LEREHIIMEREIE 25
EEGRABETZEENEER ERFTERIATE HPBREEFRENEAREIRENRYEE
¥ EHEB IMEREFEKE R
BHPRTEVE R e e ek o
e Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board meeting
— Draft and final versions of minutes minutes and draft Board committee meeting minutes.
for all directors to comment and to EE RN ES e R RER R E SRR B YRRER
keep records within a reasonable 8o
time after the board meeting.

EESSTRERE  BERAER e Final version of Board meeting minutes and Board committee meeting
BRRLtESemTtHENTBRER minutes are placed on record within a reasonable time after the
BERBEX2BES  VRHEE meetings.

BEXRERR  REERAMEER BRERE  RAERBRARTEFSSHRLBRESTZESER
B2 e FLERE 1R ETRIERC SR A o
C.5.6 — A procedure agreed by the board to C e Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if
enable directors, upon reasonable needed and upon request, Directors are allowed to seek independent
request, to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
professional advice in appropriate EEFBERBARNNRNEEER  MEFEREHERT  EF0
circumstances, at the company’s AIESRKBYEEER  THARRXNER -
expense.
EEGRZEEREF  REER
ARER  ARENBERTS
KB H %%‘i ERBQAX
f e
— The board should resolve to provide
separate independent professional
advice to directors to assist
them perform their duties to the
company.
EEZGRBARSINSESTREME
TEEESR - LR MIEITE
HARMET -
C.5.7 — If a substantial shareholder or a C e |mportant matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions

director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by
the board which the board has
determined to be material, the
matter should be dealt with by a
physical board meeting rather than
a written resolution.

EBTERRAEETCEFTEH
%%FW%IEEPTEi%gE =)
BRMMNEER - BEEHEEIN
BTEERER(MAEBERS)
FREE -

rm«

— Independent non-executive
directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material interest
in the transaction should be present
at that board meeting.
ERXZTARG RARTHE AT2
BERF= E’]ﬁl#%ﬂﬁ%%fgui
HEBRNEZESR -

so that all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)

can note and comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is

granted.

EZFHE-—MRUEARERAIAERE  UELRBEF(REBE K
Vg FRUERZ

%gg%%)%ﬂﬁzﬁﬁ@%lﬁ UHEHEXE R (HEE
I/\ o

e Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the

resolution, if applicable.
EFARRBREANGHTRBZ FHERREN R (WER) o

e Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director being
a connected person, in general, would be considered at physical Board
meeting whereat the Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, may consider, if appropriate, granting approval in principle for
the proposed transactions.
—MEAT  BRATERRIERHEATETIEARFAR
%% SEEEE  EE( a%ﬁi#iﬂﬁ%i)‘E@@E%tﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁé%@

ERTRAI EHERZER S

—=EER « BEsEcEsRAT D1
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C58 Send agenda and full board papers © e Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three

to all directors at least 3 days before working days before the regular Board/Board Committee meetings to
regular board or board committee enable the Directors/Board Committee members to make informed
meetings. decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board Committee
EEgrHeanaiE EEgE meetings.

NHEREREXZ2EBES I REREE HETZESXKERESEE HETZESEF LR
ZEAOERTESENHETEZES E2HmEEERADERUMELIRTE  SRXHFHIRESE H
FH AN =RATED - %Iiiﬁ@*,ﬂﬁ@%@ AT OR=ZEEERRRES HETE

HEKXHE -

C59 — Management has an obligation to © e The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer of the
supply the board and its committees Company attends all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
with adequate and reliable governance, statutory compliance, and accounting and financial
information in a timely manner matters, as appropriate.
to enable it to make informed AR ATMEREEVWBRELFEMEESTSTHER - UK
decisions. EEL  KIISEBERSTENEEEFERNESFERHEER(MWE
EREEEARNESTERAET g)-

ZEGRHACRAENERE
B U EERERAEEREGRE e The Directors have separate and independent access to the Company’s
BN TEHIRE - senior management to keep themselves abreast of business activities,
financial performance, internal audit and internal control progress in the
— The board and individual Group.
directors should have separate FENETABYUMEBEARTINSREEAE USEETHER
and independent access to the EBMERZE  MERE - ATBERABEITER -
company’s senior management for
making further enquiries where
necessary.
EEghENEFEEATER
RAlERERBAEBNBLRE -
NERFEBIEE—FPEH -
C.5.10 |- All directors are entitled to have C e Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by

access to board papers and related
materials.
FBEEEHEREMNESTE XN
RIBEER -

— Queries raised by directors should
receive a prompt and full response,
if possible.

HREZRHOHEBE  RRNAE
RABEHRR R 2 EHH B FE

Directors and committee members. Senior management of the
Company has taken appropriate steps to respond promptly and fully to
any queries raised by Directors.
EEhZEeXENEHESEXHRERLH - BAEEREM
B SREBAESRNEESBUARRIEL2EMNERE

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2023




Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")

Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2Z58 | FHHKX BE(E) | LEERER

C.6 COMPANY SECRETARY
NEWE
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

RAMECEXERESG I EESEAG  BREEFGNECHEARRRY  MREBEZGFHELEF - RaIWE
BESBERLR /REETREENESEREELETEIAER  TRHESHABEIIREXEE -

C6.1 The company secretary should be (© e Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (“Ms. Chung”) (a certified public
an employee of the company and accountant), who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
have day-to-day knowledge of the Company on 10 September 2013, is also an executive Director of the
company’s affairs. Company. Ms. Chung is currently the Chief Financial Officer of the
NEMEEZAAINEES - AR Company. The biographical details of Ms. Chung are set out under the
MBAEEHEMRH - section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile”.

EMRLt((Ex+ ) GERetMmRN_E—=F LA THEZE
RARAZAEIME  BIFRARRNITES - BRITREELRR
ﬁg%ﬁ%ﬁ%%oﬁﬁtZEﬁﬁ%ﬁ%(%%&%@ﬁ@A%J
—E&p e

e The Company Secretary ensures the Board meetings are conducted
under appropriate procedures.
NAWERREFTGEENEERET THET -

e The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and
keeps records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved
at all Board and Board Committee meetings.
ARNERBMEES S REE TZE 09 EMARRATHERL
8 WiRHEe FERNEZERMETADRTE °

e During 2023, the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15 hours
of professional training to update her skills and knowledge.
RZZBZ=F  RAWELETIORISNRNFEEREIIARIH
TSI

C.6.2 The board should approve the © e The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary is
selection, appointment or dismissal of approved by the Board.
the company secretary. DRIMENRE  ZERBRERYIBESSIE -

NAEIMERHE  ZEIBEEL
HE=SHE -

C.6.3 The company secretary should report c ® The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman
to the board chairman and/or the chief whilst all members of the Board have access to the advice of the
executive. Company Secretary.

NAMERMNEEGER R KT RAMEBBRFFNESFSER  MABEFEXEH IS AR]
RABEERR - MEZER -
ce6.4 All directors should have access to the c o All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company

advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable law,
rules and regulations, are followed.
FIBEESEIRBARMNMENER
MZEAMORE - UEREFSE
Fr R T B#EAERE - RBIRKRGIH
BISE=T -

Secretary and legal and professional consultants of the Company,
whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with all applicable law, rules
and regulations, and corporate governance practices.

PRESHYAIZ2EHERARRNARIMEREZEZREXEEMR (WG
FE)NERRRE - URBRRERAMEERERE - RAKREGIAR

== dh
2
TERERER -

STo=EE ¢ BEEECEERAT D3
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D AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
8 NEP BRI K E b i B

D.1 Financial reporting
B S TE R
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRE
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects.

EEERETY  EMEEEMTZRAFRNRE - BREATS -

D.1.1 Management should provide sufficient © e Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business

explanation and information to the activities and key financial information on a quarterly basis in each
board to enable it to make an informed board meeting.
assessment of financial and other EEREREE SR RRASESE FEXKEDLERE
information put before it for approval. BB ER -
ERERAEESRETSNRE
NER  BEEGAARER A4
M ENM B REBER - (EHE
BRIBEHTE -

D.1.2 Management should provide all © e Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board, for
members of the board with monthly the purpose of providing a balanced and understandable assessment of
updates giving a balanced and the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail
understandable assessment of the and to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
company’s performance, position and duties.
prospects in sufficient detail to enable BEFeMAKECERETRAEHNEN  FRHINBEBHALARX
the board as a whole and each director B BBRARIISNAERSGRIER 2T LWBEEEREE
to discharge their duties. ERITHEBE -

EREERGANESENERME
MER  HIEMOFKRER B
AR RAI R B R ER SRR
Tl RBRRAREFRITARE -
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D.1.3 — The directors should acknowledge © e All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the

in the Corporate Governance Report
their responsibility for preparing the
accounts.
ERRELEEOWME P ARM
MERUKRENET -

— There should be a statement by
the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the financial statements.
ZEENINEE R I B |ME %
A MG PRI H R RME EE
HEERR o

— Unless it is inappropriate to assume
that the company will continue
in business, the directors should
prepare the accounts on a going
concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as

necessary.
f‘f#fﬁj*”’ e REREEB
TRtaE - FA é?%ﬁ %E’JEE

EFEM AEE R gﬁﬁﬁ& *ﬁ_
ZEE T EELRERRE g

— Where the directors are aware of
material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going
concern, they should be clearly
and prominently disclosed and
discussed at length in the Corporate
Governance Report.
%%%iﬂﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬂ?ii

/‘RTH EREFEQRFERL

LA ) %%F&‘Eﬁ%ﬁ. AR

/E ‘?)EZE =Rl

]

b
A 8

o

1O 1%
‘f-;mw
E2

1

preparation of financial statements of each financial period, which give

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results

and cashflow for the year.

PRESARKSALEFRUGEANBHAMHBRENOEE - I

ﬁﬁﬁféﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ&ﬂﬁim$%mﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ CUARRBERBERE
/R °©

e |n preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which are in conformity to the International
Financial Reporting Standards, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable and prepared the accounts on the going
concern basis.

Eéﬁi‘%ﬁi_g::iﬂ-:ﬂ =T -ALFEZHBRRE  EF

EERUMRAAENGTHE  YE2ERAETEUBREEL
7‘J’1”\IVZH7TF$&%/—%E‘J I B FE 1B S T2 3t ¢ H — LD HI i R A aT

BEOR A EARRRFBLE RER -

e With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which is
under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer who is a professional
accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.
RARFEHBEEESHMER ERWBHAEES - EEZ%EF‘EJ
@gjﬁ EERREEMBRENGREABEREARAER 2 g5t
SR o

e The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

BEWHER KB IMERERT TIATIE -

e The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 102 to 110 of this annual
report.
RARZHMBEET G RRAEZ RRETBAIIEN L FRE
102BZF 1108 2 B ZEMRENA -

e The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

ERW AR AL E AR B M RHE S & 8 N Ak B K 5E B )]
ERTHMAE -
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Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2EF8 | FHHKX BR(El) | C¥ERER

D.1.4 The board should present a balanced, © e The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
clear and understandable assessment assessment of the Group’s performance and position in all shareholder
in annual and interim reports, and communications.
other financial disclosures required ERGRMARRBAS - HEE R RMKRELIEH - TER
by the Listing Rules. It should also SMNIBRAFEE -
do so for reports to regulators and
information disclosed under statutory e The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements
requirements. under the applicable rules and regulations. The Board aims to present
ﬁ@ﬁ%%@ﬂ%&iﬁﬁ&i&qj R a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
ERBRELETMRANRTEATHEED position and prospects. The Company Secretary and key officers of the
HEMBEERRKN  RARKREBEEL Company Secretarial Department work closely and in consultation with
EE - EMRBSERENTE - I legal advisers to review the materiality and sensitivity of transactions and
Hh - HFEEMEEERINBE proposed transactions and advise the Board accordingly.
e LE s 1 %ﬁm?ﬁﬁ% B &K NE EEGUNEBREEIERMRAKIROZEEER §$@ﬁl7‘ﬂ%i
tljm Rt - ﬂzfﬁi}a%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁf\ﬁﬁ¢ﬂ’]$¢@fﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ VARl o RRIME KA A

MEFFEZAB R LREMER MX%$E&X%EmWE
EMHRGFEREEREER Iﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁkﬁ%%

D.2 Risk management and internal control
[\ B B I e A ED B
Corporate Governance Principle
BEEBRA
The board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
issuer’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Such risks would include, amongst others, material risk relating to environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”). The board should oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management should provide a confirmation to the board on the effectiveness
of these systems.

EERARNAREERTAEXNRBE ENMEEZEMANRRIEEREE  WBRRFETARIRERSEIARH

[E R E IR R AEBEEIE RS o Pl AR B EENRAERE g RER ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]iﬁﬂ& $ﬁﬁéﬁ*ﬂ§1§@£ﬂ&
%ﬁ&w%ﬂ%@%ﬁa’a?&ﬁ CERMER MERERNESFSIRMHAMEREE B RNER

D.2.1 The board should oversee the C e Please refer to D.2.3 and D.2.4 below for the details.
Company’s risk management and HMFE2E I XED.2.3K%D.2.4TH -

internal control systems on an ongoing
basis, ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and
its subsidiaries’ risk management
and internal control systems has
been conducted at least annually
and report to shareholders that it has
done so in its Corporate Governance
Report. The review should cover all
material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls.
EZgRBEEERANERER
RRNIMEEZGE  THRRKIBEF
wa— ﬂ@?&ﬁ%% G
ERERANHETERGEAAR - I
E<¢¥amﬁi>¢ﬁ%%EﬁE
KEXKEBRE - BRARNERE
ﬁﬁ%EM@TEE BN
T BRI REREE -

s
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Code Provisions
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Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")

#¥(c)/
()

Corporate Governance Practices
LEERER

D.2.2

The board’s annual review should,
in particular, ensure the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and
budget of the company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting
function, as well as those relating to
the company’s ESG performance and
reporting.

EESETFRERNE  ERREA
AIEG T~ NEPE A% I B 75 B Rk
BEAEAREARIRE ek
BRBMERBFAONER BT
BRERKR  ARBIMEINE
JRERBEHEBERSEM -

C

e The Board has conducted annual review on the adequacy of resources,

qualifications and experience of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting together with ESG performance and
reporting staff as well as their training programmes and budget and
considers as adequate.
EEZGERARRGE  ABEZRIBERUREQEIRE - 1+
EREARBEREBRNETINER BAERERKRAIEAESETH - A
REIMEINEIRELEAREXRR R BETFERS - I
RIBERH °

D.23

The board’s annual review should, in
particular, consider:
EEEEERINEEHERBE
TF&IE -

(a) the changes, since the last annual
review, in the nature and extent
of significant risks (including ESG
risks), and the company'’s ability to
respond to changes in its business
and the external environment;
BLF®aE  SARER(BIE
BN g RERRR)NMEE
REEREMNEE - AR FE

NHEBEE RIMERFEEN

ab
B

(b

the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks (including ESG risks) and
of the internal control systems,
and where applicable, the work
of its internal audit function and
other assurance providers;
EREFRBEERER(BER
5 it g RERER) & AEPE
BEEGHIFEREREE @ &
(@A) NPT AE R E MR
BREENTIE

e

the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring
results to the board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it
to assess control of the company
and the effectiveness of risk
management;
MEFG(KHEETLZES)EHE
EEIEERNFTRZE KRS - )
EYEESTRAFAMNEREER
EEBRERENEREE

e For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board, with the assistance

of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit Function, the
Enterprise Risk Management Committee and the management, has
conducted regular review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls systems, including financial, operational and compliance
control and risk management systems and no irregularity or material
weakness was noted within any function or process. The Board
considers the risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further
considers that there was no material issue relating to the controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Please refer to D.2.4 below for the
details.
HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HLEFERN EEZRZEE  £5HE
NEPEZBAE  CERRERERZESREBENRY T EFEE
FHMAAEHANLERRF(DEUE  LEREHRET)EE
MER RGN - WARBEREMBASBEERIBLZ 2 REKE
RERK - FEZERA BREERAPEZRZGHAEEERMN S
BEULTER - EFFURR - AEEEYTE  SERGRETN
&@KﬁfIEH%E%??E?K%E@EK%@F&%E o BT XE
D.2.418 °
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LEERER

D.2.3
(cont'd)
(%)

(d) significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been
identified during the period. Also,
the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes
or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the
future have, a material impact
on the company’s financial
performance or condition; and
BN AR ERBEIE R RSB IR
H)EREIE5518 - DARELE
REFBRNERIBEZBE AR
BRRE - MZEFERIIBREA
A BRBFEIERDESE © A
BEEESRAIEEEENS
N2

(e) the effectiveness of the company’s
processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rule compliance.
NAEBTBHEREBF(ET
RADHENRFESER °

D.24

The company should disclose, in
the Corporate Governance Report, a
narrative statement on how they have
complied with the risk management
and internal control code provisions
during the reporting period. In
particular, they should disclose:
NAEECEEERRE) AR
Rﬁ&ﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁiﬁmg?@
ERRAMEENTRMEX - B
mE  BEATERE :

71

(a) the process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant

risks;
RARHR - A REEENRR
KR

(b) the main features of the risk
management and internal control
systems;

FEREEMABEZRFNEE
GSEE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
[ TR I A R B

Purpose
B8

e The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, and for
reviewing their design, operational adequacy and effectiveness.
EEgHE $h$%l%ﬁ&ﬁﬂmﬂméﬁﬁm%@Tﬁf i
R BRRE - BIENFE S MBI

e The Company has adopted a set of comprehensive policies, standards
and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for ensuring the smooth operation of business in order to facilitate
the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate goals and
objectives by allowing it to respond appropriately to significant business,
operational, financial, compliance, ESG and other risks, maintaining
proper records for provision of reliable financial and corporate
information, safeguarding the Group’s assets and shareholder’s
interests, ensuring all the transactions are executed in accordance with
the management’s authorization, and complying with the requirements
under the applicable rules and regulations, and also with the Group’s
internal policies and conduct. However, the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure in operational systems
when business objectives are being sought.

ARAEREE - Mg N AR e mRA — E%@ﬁﬁ R
B LBREBESGIREE  FERERER - N

BORR - HERER M&Emﬂ t#ﬁﬂam@ﬁ ﬁﬁﬁ
BRERERBEREXE T CRTFEE R - AR
SERMBREEERN %EKElmﬁéﬁﬁiﬂ CERATAR
BIRRERENRENT - ARE #ﬂ%m%ﬂ&&ﬁmﬁiﬁ$
SEABBERRTATA - A - EREERAMEZERSE 51
TEFAEAHERBRSIBRRHAIZBIFRYE ZRE - WHBEK
%75 B REREE IR 2 ERERENRR -
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2£38 | FAKX BE(E]) | LEERER
D.2.4 (c) an acknowledgement by the Framework
(cont'd) board that it is responsible for the 2018
(&) risk management and internal

control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. It should also
explain that such systems are
designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss;
EEAREAHERERERA
HEZZGAE - UERER
ZEHEHNBRM - EFERINE
MREZERSGEEEEMIEER
RECERCETS B Ry ER: - A
Rt e E AR AERMsL
BRELSIRMIFBEVIRE

(d) the process used to review
the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems and to resolve material
internal control defects; and
AR RBREERANPEER
FBEBMHOREF RERERENA
TR ANRRT - &

(e) the procedures and internal
controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside
information.

BB REMABERNEFMA

ERERTRAE I o

e The Company has established a reasonable, effective and balanced
internal control and risk management systems, with clear division
of work among the Board, the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, the management, functional departments
and business departments within the structure of the entire internal
control and risk management systems.

RRARRBRYTHE B - SHREIEHAETREARER RS
ErESEy BEREZEe  GCEEAREREEEY - BRE - B
PIFIZE TG ZBPIE R AN B BT R AR E IR Rt » TR -

e The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
implementation of internal control and risk management. The Board
has established the Audit Committee which is responsible for assisting
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities for reviewing the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee, through discussion with
management and engagement of internal audit team of PIL, to review
the effectiveness of internal control and risk management systems,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, and to report to the Board any significant risk
issues. The Board will provide its own view on the effectiveness of the
systems after reviewed the works and findings of the Audit Committee.
EESREARBRRAMNABEZEREREREE EFFT
HEZEZER  AEWMBDESFSBRTHEBRE BALREEEREIE
RAMBEZERBGEERI AR - EREZESEREEEENHR
RHEA MO ASETAE BB EE R EREIE R G (B
Mg GERAHAEEREREENE)NEUN  WHEESE®R
SEAEREAREE - BFFLEHNERZEGNTIEIRA AR
% SREAANENKBREEER -

e Relevant executive directors and senior management have been
delegated with specific authorities and responsibilities for monitoring
the performance of designated operating business units. The
management is responsible for organizing and steering the daily
operation of the internal control of the Company. The management
would report the business plans and development to the Board on a
quarterly basis. This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s business
operations and plan on a timely basis in response to the changes in
business environment. Each operating business unit also maintains
internal controls and procedures appropriate to its structure and
business environment whilst complying with the Group’s policies,
standards and guidelines.
HARTEERAREERBEERTRERNLETERSIEEY
BEBBEMN 2 RE - EREEBREBREERARTINEZNE ST
BT ERESTEREXBTIARERTESS - WBAPES
EREREAEREEDERERAEFIRBLERTE - REESN
TEREE ERBREBIRIBE L AMEERIEF - WRAREFAE
EiksR - 2RI RFES| -
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D.24 Internal Control System

(cont'd) NEBELIE R4

(#%)

e The Group’s Internal Audit Function has been performed by internal
audit team of PIL which undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s
operations and system of internal controls. By adopting a risk-based
approach and operating on an on-going basis to evaluate risk level
on control environment, the annual audit plans which covers major
activities and processes of the Group’s operating business unit on
a rotational basis was submitted to Audit Committee for approval.
Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas of concern
identified by the Audit Committee and the management from time to

time.

$%§WW@%&%%$¢$%%%W@%J@EE AE%Eﬁ
AEE)RE RN EE R - FTMF S TIESIRALUE
BEa7y 3, - 3 A BB (F DASTEESPERIE A AR KT - @
MEEAEESEXBEUMNTEEYLBEE  VHREITER
ZEeEY W TETHAEZZESREEEMAENRET
CEETTREEM -

e Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual
business units, the scope of work performed by Internal Audit covers all
material controls including financial, operational and risk management
functions. During the year, Internal Audit deeply inspected, investigated
and assessed two subsidiaries and one joint venture of the Company.
It has reviewed and assessed their systems on procurement, operation
flow, internal control, financial, contracting, safety and environmental
protection, human resources and administration etc.

@?ﬂ%%%“i%%%ﬁ%&ﬂh ﬁﬁm'WﬁgﬁmIWﬁ

H P BERSBERS T EERES (N ABREON
. hn REFESR RS HREHEAAATEEA
SIE-RABAE - EERAG T HSADNRE  EERE N
BER 0 50 R EERRRRE  LUANRRRTH

e The internal audit findings are preliminary discussed at management
level and the follow up actions are taken in response to the Internal
Audit’'s recommendations. The internal audit findings are also
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board on the immediate
meetings following the issue of the internal audit report. The responsible
heads of departments will be notified of the control deficiencies noted
for rectification. The management would urge the relevant business
segments and units to implement rectification measures in a timely
manner, so as to ensure the internal control system of the Company
is effective. Follow-up reviews will be conducted in due course and
discussed at the Audit Committee Meeting and Board Meeting to ensure
that audit recommendations are being properly implemented. During
the year, corrective actions were taken based on the audit findings and
no significant control failure which might affect shareholder’s interest
has identified. The Audit Committee reviewed all internal audit findings,
management responses and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal controls. Significant risk issues and its recommendations,
if any, are referred to the Board for consideration. No suspected
frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected
infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit
Committee’s attention to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the
system of internal controls is inadequate.

NEBEEERE RS TEEEN | PEBNBERORETN
BT o NBELERIA BB HANEA RS2 G I8
SYELEERLERE - SHFIEEBEANLESTE 2 b
ETET - ERERRAEES D BLEN ME AR LR -
RARNBERZ A REE - SERANELEE O LR -
EREERETRER  UAERZERESLEFRR ST
B FR BEMEAMBBOIET LW T KR N
RYENBAERLY - BRZEGCENMANSERER - &
BEEIE L ARES s R RN TAEEEEREARNE
EREBR(NE) o 2w m e 5B E S A E R R L
ARNRREE  BAIREANS R EREEG TS B ARER
ZEBENBERRG LA -
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D.2.4 Group’s risk management
(cont’d) SERRER

€))

e The Board oversees the Group’s risk management system and
reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness. The Group has set up
an Enterprise Risk Management Committee, composed of senior
management and heads of key corporate functions, with a mandate
for overall risk management activities of the Group. The Enterprise
Risk Management Committee’s main responsibilities include a
comprehensive understanding of the Company’s major risk exposures
and its management status and maintaining the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management system.
EEPARERAEEERERAR MBI EZSEREGUME - K
SERECERRERELZES  AaRERERTELEINIINE
EHEK  BREAEASEEBAREREY - pEEREEEZS
EXERECEXERRARZENSHE AR R REAEEKR -
AR M BB B IR R ATEER A UL -

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee is also responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s risk
management matters such as the overall objectives and policies as well
as its working mechanisms of the Group’s risk management system, the
establishment of individual risk management unit at company level, risk
assessment of major operating activities, provide recommendations for
the mitigation of major risks and to carry out any other assignments from
the Board.
TERREREEZESTEERAEERMEEEHEANESSREE
B NAEEERERRGNEREBIERBOR - U REEERS
ERREmREERRREIREN gt BEEEEEL AT
géﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ'M&Eﬁ§$@£mmﬁﬁﬁm

I8 o

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee reports to the Board
and Audit Committee at least twice a year. It will report on the Group’s
risk management activities, risk positions and management measures
for mitigation of major risks noted. The Enterprise Risk Management
Committee will also submit the risk evaluation reports which evaluate
the risk level of major activities and processes of the Group’s operating
business with focuses on financial risks, operational risks, strategic risks
and market risks to the Board and Audit Committee twice a year.
TERREREZEESEFRIMANEETERERZESERAT
BINALEERREREY  ERMARERTERRNERE
e WEEFMARNESERERZEGRERRTERE - ¢
BsE - SERER - RKERETISERS  TEAEEEER
BEEEHRBENRARIRE -

e With the support of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the management, the Board identifies and assesses
the key risks, existing or emerging, facing the Group, and formulates
relevant strategies and measures to mitigate the risk exposure.
ErXEREREZES BEEXZESREEEWY T S22 @i
NMAHEASEB FEG 2 RAREE 2 EE @I - % 5TAER R B
i DURIERRREE -
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D.2.4 INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY
((ci(ir;t’d) NEHERBERE
e |n order to ensure compliance with the continuous disclosure obligation
under the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and the disclosure of
inside information of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Board has adopted an “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy” effective from 29 June 2016 which
sets out the guidelines to the directors, officers and the employees of
the Group, who is likely to be in possession of the unpublished inside
information to (a) monitor the Company’s business developments so
that any potential inside information is promptly identified and report
to the Board to enable them be timely informed of any circumstances
or development that may constitute inside information of the Company
and to make timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary; and (b) take
reasonable precautions to preserve confidentiality of inside information
and the relevant announcement (if applicable) before publication.
RERFEBZMETRAEAREREET  URBEFLAER
BI(BEBENESTIZE)ERABEBRARBESNRE  EFGCBE T
—RNERNAZTNBREN [ ABBEREERR]  EERASE Y
B RRABRES(HAH H"ﬁ_ﬁfi N2 AEOE BRG]
LA(@)E R DRI TS B REITER R - LA@*'H%E%&%MEH ’%EE’JW%
HE  WRAEEEER  UNEEFG RKEREMAEBKIEAR
WEBEMNBERNER - WIEHRTE - NHFERELABRE )32
(b)ETéHX/a\iET i BRBEEREEAS(WER)RE EERH
HERIE -
D.2.5 The company should have an internal © e Please refer to D.2.4 above for the details.
audit function. Company without an FEHF 23 L EED.2.418 ©
internal audit function should review
the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for
the absence of such a function in the
Corporate Governance Report.
AETJ??&IW%B%TZDJ@E BB RA
H#P A2 D RE T/Etiﬁﬂ%éﬁ
TES JH:IEUJ ]IE<<JJ:%§/S
®ED) Wﬁ#*ﬁﬁﬁxxﬁklﬁlﬂ B o
D.2.6 The company should establish a © e The Board adopted a whistle blowing policy on 30 March 2017. It
whistleblowing policy and system provides employees and the stakeholders with reporting channels
for employees and those who deal on whistle blowing matters to raise concerns about any suspected
with the company (e.g. customers misconduct, fraud and inappropriate, unethical or unfair treatment in
and suppliers) to raise concerns, in the supply chain, as well as to notify their department head or report
confidence and anonymity, with the to the Chief Executive who should report to the Audit Committee when
audit committee (or any designated appropriate.
committee comprising a majority of EEEIRN T +FE-A=-ZTHEMRBREER  ZHRAEER
independent non-executive directors) Hﬁ%}mﬁi\éﬁs#&%Iﬁimyﬁs_ﬁﬂ#ﬁ%‘i}wEﬁ ERNTETR  #
about possible improprieties in any B URAEE - TERNTAFOFBIRLMMANGRE - ol iE
matter related to the company. %IJ, LHPIEB XM ERTRALELER ERTHRALEARAE
NAIEHERRBRRERR  BE REEERE -
BREMEAREERE (TP R
f?&ﬁ%‘\ﬁﬁ)ﬁjﬁﬁq: EATRELAAE
S (HEMABIIFENTES
45?{;%{5’]%**5‘1 =)D HEE
A FTRE A2 TEEEHNETE -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2023




Corporate Governance Report

JL%M\Aﬁd:
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D.2.7 The Company should establish © The Company arranges for its employees to attend the anti-corruption and
policy(ies) and system(s) that promote ethic training at least once a year to enhance employees’ awareness. The
and support anti-corruption laws and company'’s staff manual also sets out applicable anti-corruption rules for
regulations. em ployees to follow.
NEIEGIEREMTFHRETER RARABFEL—RLHEIZ2NRESREEEI MRS EIES -
KRB BR A RAE o REAMEIFMAMIIHERNRESTHTE f/\,\Ii_T g
D.3 Audit Committee
BZEEY
Corporate Governance Principle
% B /D E E‘
The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting, risk
management and internal control principles and maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.
%i@ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬂ@tﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%lﬁi& - RBREE RN ERERA RN AR EQ R REAEENEERELD ERREEAEN
ZHE ©
D.3.1 — Full minutes of audit committee © e The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate

meetings should be kept by a duly
appointed secretary of the meeting.
BERLZEENTB A EEH
ERZER é.‘a%t%it%f g

Draft and final versions of minutes
should be sent to all committee
members for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time

and handle matters within its terms of reference and make
recommendations to the Board for any necessary improvement.

EEEORIUEREZEGHEANE REIBRIEEBRESE RN E0
B ARmEBEFSREARNSEES -

The current members of the Audit Committee include three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan
(Chairman), Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, and
one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Lau Man Yee, Vanessa, of

after the meeting. which at least one independent non-executive Director possesses the

SECHENITBEREERESL appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related financial
@FHB —RAERBEALEEBEX management expertise.

ZEETENE VIRHEHKER EZZEQHRANERTE = M?%L;F%ﬂﬁ%% DRI BRI A
EER  mBETEREHZSCA - (IF) EREE R S R A LA&—MiFiﬂﬁii DB E

i *“EPK/J\*lﬁi?hﬂﬁ%$ﬁﬁ@%%¥ﬁ% C R EHE

VEETRAEMBERER -

e The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BReZ%Z BERZECIFENETCERA TR RER -

e The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least twice a year.
In 2023, a total of three meetings were convened and held with
satisfactory attendance. The details of Audit Committee members’
attendance in 2023 are as follows:

BEZZESTHRITER  SLBFMA -RITZ=F ' 8%Z%
,\E#EF%&EEH ReEk HEEx 9/\%5 CRIZTEZ=F -
BREZEZEENENDREFBIEHNT
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEEKE H R B
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan (Chairman) 2\|a] ¢t (£ /%) 3/3
Cheng Fu Kwok, David [ 27 B 3/3
Kwa Wee Keng MEER-_ZFE-_=F 0/1
(resigned on 1 April 2023) Py 5 — HEHE)
Ho Teck Cheong AEE 3/3
Lau Man Yee, Vanessa BE(R=—E—=F 2/2

(appointed on 1 April 2023) P45 — HEZ(F)

e The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of
meetings are circulated to the Board for information.
ERLERANESSRERESREHARKESSEH -
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RSB E
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FHHKX BE(E]) | EERER
D.3.1 e The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during
(cont'd) the year under review:
(%) EREFAN  BZRZESMHIERRNOT -

(a) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and for the six months ended 30 June
2023;

EMRE T —F+ - A=+ AEERBE-_T_=4&
Aﬂ +H¢Alﬂm$il@é%%$§

reviewed the external auditor’s Group audit plan and the letters of
management representation;

EHINERBMNEEETIEREREBRABRAE

revieweg the findings and recommendations of the internal auditor;
FEH NI IZBENR BT SR RER

(d) considered and approved the 2023 audit fees and terms of
engagement for the external auditor;

=B B = = HNE B B R LB A K

reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on
pages 8\5 to 91 of this annual report; and _
BRHNANFTRMEDBEEFI AL [FERERS] &

(f) reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group.

ER RSB A RRELE N AR E TR R AT RRE

e On 13 March 2024, the Audit Committee met to review the 2023
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with external
auditor. Based on this review and discussions with the management
and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company and had, to the best of its ability,
assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this
report complies with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee therefore recommended
the Board'’s approval of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 for public release

S
&

D
&

N

(e

R-ZTE_HWE=A+= EI %@iﬂa PESMNEE B ERN T
—_=FENGESBRE TE%F}EKEI%%ZEJF\E'J&?%
R - RIBUHFEHER - ARE IE&F\\B@*E%ZEM\ ik &
Tiéﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬁé,ngaﬁﬁ 2 WO BNBRABE
BEOVBERTEER gt HJ&LW%EH'JMTﬁ“rT\ o A
EREERRERE T —F1-A=1-AILEERANEH
RNEEGHAREDREM

The Audit Committee also recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor for 2024 and that the
related resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’ consideration and
approval at the forthcoming AGM.

ERZEGNEZENEAEY « USRI ST EBALREE
Z_ZE_MEEHINEZEE  VEREREERREAFAE LRR
MRERZ B il o

During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company’s external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit services amounted
to HK$3,065,000 (including HK$2,752,000 for annual audit and
HK$313,000 for interim review), and for non-audit services amounted
to HK$248,000 (including HK$67,000 for tax review and HK$181,000
for other related services required by the Listing Rules).

REBEFEAN  ARAZHINERBZEANEZE o BAZPR S S5TAD
BB 2B E A R3,065, OOO?@E(@EiFTF%IE?FHQ 752,000
AT AR R E313, OOO/%E) E’F? 2 R%E ﬁﬁ?%248 OOO/%
g@%@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ ,0007% 7T & H 4th 46 78 &’i‘% % FH181,000/%8

T
T
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TEERME

Code Ref.
2Z58

Code Provisions
FAHKX

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")

#¥(c)/
()

Corporate Governance Practices
LEERER

D.3.2

A former partner of existing auditing
firm shall not act as a member of the
committee for two years from the date
of his ceasing to be a partner of or to
have any financial interest in, the firm,
whichever is later.

REAEETATRENZHEAT
B RTEE B ATEMZ LK RZ A A
ABANBEH I TBEZHEZR
AIE] BA IS F) 25 89 B BR (LA B BRE 8
BERE)ERIMERN  NEETER

ZREMKE -

C

e No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing
auditing firm of the Company during the two years after he ceases to be
a partner of the auditing firm.
BERKEEERARFRENSHAISEHAATEREARKIERX
E%@ﬁﬂ%%%é%AE%ﬂ%ﬁﬁm’%E$®i%ﬁ§§§
B o

D.3.3

The audit committee’s terms of
reference should include:

ERZEGNRESERSS

— recommendations to the board on
the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor
and approval of their terms of
engagement;
MINEZBENNEE - EFEE
RBENEEZSREEZZERIE
SIS A 25 A B 5 R AR

— review and monitor external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and
effectiveness of audit process;

B R BRI AN B LR
BRZEEFBERILE

— review of the company’s financial
information; and

EHRRNHBER &

— oversight of the company’s financial

reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures,
including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes
and budget of the company’s
accounting and financial reporting
function.
EERNRMEBERGEE  BARE
BRAMEZRF  BEEERQ
AIEE R GERBAE S E
BR BEIERREKEBRES
% AR B IFEZHNIFIE
LREBEERERRE °

=

i
fle

e The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms
of reference which have complied with the Code requirements and
are modified from time to time. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is made available on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange.

BEZZE SN IZTRREASEAEBESE RS TREL
BN - ERLEGBREGED FHNARE RABZFEL -

D.34

The audit committee should make
available its terms of reference,
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange
and the company’s website.
EREZEGREBIMBU I AT
b FAREBESE - REHEA
EREEGHRTHMNES -

e Please refer to D.3.1 and D.3.3 above for the details.
A2 ENED.31KD.3.3F -

—To=EE @ pEEEcEERAT 6D
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RSB E
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2Z58 | FHHKX BR(El) | C¥ERER

D.3.5 Where the board disagrees with © e The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to
the audit committee’s view on the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche
selection, appointment, resignation Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for
or dismissal of the external auditors, 2024. The Board agreed with the recommendation made by the Audit
the company should include in the Committee.
Corporate Governance Report a EZLZEQNEZRGZ  EFMETEEY « RS QFTMITHME
statement from the audit committee AARZEZMNFEHINEZEED - AR ERRIASRTARE
explaining its recommendation and BAEARELHE  FAEE - EESREEZZES I ER -
also the reason(s) why the board has
taken a different view.
NEFETREEXZZESHHE
BT AR RINEZEAE
EENER  RAAEECEE AR
EHIEHERZESMAEZEN
2R UEBFEHTRERNR
o

D.3.6 The audit committee should be © e The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary
provided with sufficient resources to can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of the
perform its duties. Company should the seeking of such advice be considered necessary
ERZEQRERLFTREERIARE by the Audit Committee.
THBE - EZZEGREBN  EZZESRARENESKEBEYEEE

REAMEARBTY: - BRBEARRNMT -
D.3.7 The terms of reference of the audit C e Please refer to D.3.1 and D.3.3 above for details.

committee should also require it:
EZZESNRESEITARE

— to review arrangements employees
of the company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other
matters. The audit committee
should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of
these matters and for appropriate
follow- up action; and

ma A *“ﬁE’JLAT;zﬁF yNE]
EETH‘E‘EP?M?I?VE# - NEPEE
B HM T mAEELENTIEE
TR B °§Tziéiéﬁﬁ§ﬁ§
REBEERH  ERRHUETSE
HEHRAFHINFEERRIUE
BITE &

— to act as the key representative
body for overseeing the company’s
relations with the external auditor.
BEEQAEINBZEM 2B E
%1&2& CBEER_EZHNE

B AM EXED3.1MD.3.318
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JL%M\Aﬁd:

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")

Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2Z58 | FHHKX BE(E) | LEERER

E REMUNERATION
oo

E.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
37 K % 2R e 7K T B AR
Corporate Governance Principle
JL% EyRRAl
The Company should have a formal and transparent policy on Director's remuneration and other remuneration related matters.
The procedure for setting policy on executive Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be
formal and transparent.

DREHREEME R E A RGMERN S EHTE ERAMNLEAEZNECR  BRAEAMAZAZNER - UHETHH
HITEEFME R BESHMNTBNBER -

E.l.1 The remuneration committee should C e The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about
consult the chairman and/or chief proposals relating to the remuneration packages and other human
executive about their remuneration resources issues of the Directors and senior management, including but
proposals for other executive not limited to succession plan and key personnel movements as well as
directors and should have access to policies for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
independent professional advice if FTHZEESCHES R REEAB ZHMEZRREMANERRM
necessary. H(ERETRNETHE  SEARED  URARRREA:
FMEE SR HEMNITESNE BATBER)SBAERNER -

M\L%éﬁﬂfﬁ&/iﬁﬂz%@ﬁ

MEEZE  FMMEESETSRIE e The emoluments of Directors and senior management have been

NEEER - determined with reference to the skills, knowledge, involvement in
the Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and to the
profitability of the Company and prevailing market conditions during the
year.
ARBZEEREREREAEBMSERIBER AL Z A #H - &K
FRBBARNAEHZEERRE - WEREARRQE 2 BFIAKR
RS REMERE -

E1l.2 The remuneration committee’s terms C e The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make

of reference should include:

YFHZEeARAERETEERR

— recommend to the board on the
company’s policy and structure
for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
?f RIEEREREREAENE

BTN R R AR - RBLERILIE
%Eﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁa’ﬁifﬁ%m 57 B B
% MESFIRELERS

—review and approve the
management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
HEEESMICEFTHKBER
g et Rt B E e 5 e

recommendations on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management. No Director
and senior management can determine his own remuneration.

EEgCRUFHNRESEURHEARREERSREEARDN
%gﬂ‘ﬂlfﬁ& BE2EE EERGATEASHTRETEMEAN
ﬁ

e The current members of the Remuneration Committee include three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David (Chairman), Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ilvan and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong.

HNEZEERAKERE=S fﬂ%i#%ﬂﬁ%% 2RI A B EE S A
(?EF) IR E R (AEE ST -

e The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

BREBR FNEESIRERNESGERLIBERANES -

e |n 2023, the Remuneration Committee met once and attendance of
individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in the year is
summarised below:
RIT_=F HNEEgEE— FMEZEEEBIKENLERE
REEWMAT -

S=EER - BEsEcEERAT 67




68

Corporate Governance Report

LEERRE
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FHUKX BE(E]) | EERER
E.1.2 — either to determine, with delegated Number of
(cont'd) responsibility, or to make Attendance
(&) recommendations to the board Committee members ZEERE HERE
on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and Cheng Fu Kwok, David [ 2 B 1/1
senior management; (Chairman) (£/E)
LNTMEz— BEZSERE Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2] 171
- EBETENNTESRSRE Ho Teck Cheong =g 11
BAEBRNEFHEE: XAESS
ZZAENBRITESLEREREA The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources

B EE

— recommend to the board on the
remuneration of non-executive
directors;
RERTESEHNTFIMESTSIR
M

- consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;
ZRERDRAITOEHM - AN
HORRARBEAREER RN
BT B0 1R P 1R 1E

— review and approve compensation
payable on loss or termination of
office or appointment;

T AT R A AR b 5 Sk ol AR I BB Sk
ZEMBAZEEEE

— review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of directors for
misconduct; and
WA RBERE BT RKE MR
EXREBRBERESMYRHNEE
ZhE &

— ensure that no director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
MREMESSKEEMBEAT
S2HEETEHASTHHH -

to discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee is accountable
to the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for
information.

FINZESHRRHARERUBITERE - FWNEESANES
CRERHERLHARRESEEMH -

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee
during the year under review:

ERBEER  HFMZEenTHERAMT

(a) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s Directors’ fees for the financial year of 2023;

BT _—HUMBRFECEFTNERMNESEREFHANRE
=

(b) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s
executive Directors and senior management staff;

FERRMERDRRTEERSRERABOHIFE

(c) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-based
bonus policy; and

FRRMERRRRFERRZBEME K

(d) reviewed and approved the Company’s Remuneration policy.

0 R AL E AR R AR RN ER -

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors and to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

FTMEESEME o EEGEEN  EAEEEERNNTEERSR
ERABNHNGESR  REFSENTE  ERSEMNLRBEESE
(BFEERMRIEBBARENEE)  WHIIFRTEENHFIHRE
EERHERRLZRABEE QAT EF I « 2B H B R R
B A RSB A E A B 60 BRI o

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any remuneration payable
to members of senior management for the year under review are set out
on pages 187 to 190 and page 266 of this annual report.

REBEFAN  ARSREEFRAMNAINTREEREABKRENS
SRR A FHRE187TEEF 1908 K FE266H °
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JL%M\Aﬁd:

Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z58 | FHHKX BE(E) | LEERER
E.13 The remuneration committee should C e The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
make available its terms of reference, the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
explaining its role and the authority FTMEE S BESED EHNAR B KB ATHE -
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange e The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
website and the company’s website. making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
FNEESRESIATRI LA T structure for the remuneration of Directors and the senior management,
Wuh F REBEESHE  HEEA and determining with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
EREEZSERNEN - packages of all executive Directors and the senior management and
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
of the Board resolved from time to time.
FHNEE e T ERECRMARRAEZRAREREAE 2 H MK
ERRBOESTSELES  Y2REZGTEE B&Zm%ﬁﬁ
T ERBRTENEAT  BEEANNTEERSREREAEN
Foies ﬁﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬂﬁ%$ﬁ@%ﬁ@ﬂFﬂ§$’\kﬂj§$m g
El4 The remuneration committee should C e The Human Resources Department provides administrative support
be provided with sufficient resources and implements the approved remuneration packages and other
to perform its duties. human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration
TN ESREERATRIERINE Committee. The Remuneration Committee also has access to
TERE - independent advice at the Company’s expense if considered necessary.
/\77éiﬁ%ﬁﬁE%i‘rﬁ%ﬁﬂ(i‘i%ﬁ&%ﬂﬁm%ﬁ@ﬂ;,\ S 2 BN B
REMANERBBRE - FHEEGHARERLSERTERSK
%ﬁ%%%i*%ﬁﬁK@Tﬁﬁ
E.1.5 The company should disclose the © e Director’s fees are reviewed every 3 years by the Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration policy, details
of any remuneration payable to
members of senior management by
band and other remuneration related
matters in the annual reports.

BB B F R EE = S H I
RERFTHNERRBESREEAED
Bl 5E 15 M B fth B BB RA ) SR 1H o

Committee with reference to the financial condition of the Company and
the remuneration offered for similar position in comparable companies
and put forward to the Board for approval

EEHMIHFMEEEE=F5M IR Y2RAFNUEMR R
HtaT R Wﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁa‘kuﬁﬁ%ﬁ%z%m WHeREEGHAE -

e Remuneration and incentive payment of Executive Directors are
reviewed and approved annually by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to their individual performance, the financial condition
of the Company and the remuneration offered for similar position in

comparable companies.
BITEZHHMNRBESEFEaFMNEa sl RIbE 12
REERIRE - A 7 0B #5450 B At AT H BR A ) 48 R B P 4

T2 HEN o

e Please refer to notes 11 and 43 in the Notes to Financial Statements for
details of the remuneration payable to the senior management.

BASREEAFHMN BB LM BMRMEELLRLS -

—=EER « BEsEcEsRAT 69
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hEERBME
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FHHKX BR(El) | C¥ERER
F SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
R 28
F.1 Effective communication
BRUER
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRE
The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.
EZgRAFERRFERFEE  LERERRAFAGHEMRRAGERFEERFEMMH2HE -
F.1.1 The Company should have a policy © e The Board adopted a dividend policy which aims to allow shareholders

on payment of dividends and should
disclose it in the annual report.

N EIEET AR IR B A ISR 0 7R 4F 4R
NIRTR -

to share the Company’s success whilst preserving the Company’s
liquidity to capture future growth opportunities. The Board devotes
to achieving prudent capital management and meeting shareholders’
expectations with the dividend policy.

EEGORMREBE  EEERRDZADAKLEKR - ARFE
BARRAEREE @ AMBERKNIERKE - EFSHINBBAR
REBREBEENEARERE  WHERRNAE -

e Under this policy, the normal dividend payout ratio of the Company is
about 30% of the net profit attributable to Shareholders in any financial
year but no more than 50% thereof unless otherwise approval by the
Board.

BB ZBE - AR RHRPME I B B R 48 T IR R IR R 15 5
F0BHIR BT - RIFEZSHITHM - TRTERBRERENS
Fom N EERHI50% o

e The declaration of dividends, whether as interim and/or final dividends,
is subject to the discretion of the Board in considering the following
factors in each financial year:

BREMEIR(THREMERTHR SARARB)ELREETSNTE
MRFENBEERNATEE :

— Financial performance and liquidity conditions;

MBRR[LRBDESNR

— Retained earnings and distributable reserves;

B ME oIk

— Company’s debt level to equity ratio and return on equity;

AN BB 16 B 2 Eb R RN AR B #) R A 7K F

— Dividend received from the Company’s associates and subsidiaries;

AR R EO B 2 X BN BT B8 2 IR A AR

— Expected working capital requirement and capital expenditure;

L BEE ST RRERM

— Future expansion, other investment plans and other funding
requirements;

RRER - HREFEREMESHRK

— Global economic condition and other internal or external factors,
including any restrictions under the applicable laws and regulations
and the Articles or contractual restrictions as may apply from time to
time; and
RSB ARNR - R E AR ER Sk /N ED &= (B 45N Iy Al gE AR 1R 38 B
HERAER R ERMARRENEMR G E LIRS 0 &

— Other factors that the Directors deem appropriate.

EERRAENEMRAR -
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RS BIRE
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z58 | FHHKX BE(E) | LEERER
F.1.1 e Final dividend declared by the Company must be approved by an
(cont'd) ordinary resolution of shareholders at an AGM and must not exceed
(&) the amount recommended by the Board. The Board may, without

the approval of shareholders, also declare an interim dividend if it
appears to them that they are justified by the distributable profits of the
Company.
ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’\]XEHH&E%ZEEH&ﬁ%ik@tu%ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ
RiLE - BAE tﬂ%%AE* R - B0 RARRH
o BRERBARBEARF AR GENEGEHNFHRE

e The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.

BB IRR R EEER

F.2 Shareholders meetings

RERAE

Corporate Governance Principle

%E/DEE‘

The Company should ensure that shareholders are given sufficient notice of shareholders meetings and are familiar with the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and should arrange to address questions from shareholders in the shareholders
meetings.

NABHBRRABELTRERSBA  WEBRRKRRABUREFXNETRANFRET  ARETHERRI S
FEERERIRRE o

F.2.1 For each substantially separate issue © e Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of the
at a general meeting, a separate Company on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
resolution should be proposed by individual Directors.
the chairman of that meeting. The BEEBRBYNER  WEARFBREAS EUERRZERIEE
company should avoid “bundling” BIERRERNES -

resolutions unless they are
interdependent and linked forming
one significant proposal. Where
the resolutions are “bundled”, the
company should explain the reasons
and material implications in the notice
of meeting.

ERRARG F - gFEEERETHE
ERBUYNEEEFIREARR -
ﬁ?#“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%*ZFmHE{RT&Fﬁ

B AREITK-EEAEE A
NG 33 HI%LJR%* c HE
(RLIRRE  ARANESHAS
ﬁ&’%m%&;qﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ%é

—=EER « pEsEcEsRas 11
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RSB E
Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z£38 FAIRI BE(E]) | EERER
F.2.2 — The chairman of the board © e The 2023 AGM at which the external auditor attended was convened on

should attend the annual general
meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the
chairman should invite another
member of the committee to be
available to answer questions at the
annual general meeting.

EEZIREHERREAFK
T UBFEREZEG  FHZ
g REZEGREMHEME
Se(RMEERME)NERE
HE - -E6MEZEESIRARD
B -EBEEIRERSS—RZE
BHE ZALTHERRAEFK
2 FRIZER -

— The chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions
at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction or any
other transaction that requires
independent shareholders’
approval.
EEgRTONBEYEES(NE)
B EEINEEEMBLEN TR S
WRR A S LRI EME - BI#E
22 5 S AT ] H th 78 45 98 7 IR SR AL
HHZZ S e

— The company’s management
should ensure the external
auditor attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.
NAEE IR E FEERIMNEZ B
HERREAFRS  DEXE@EE
ST fﬁ%?%{ﬁﬂh&%&ﬁﬁﬂ
A v EEFHUR DA R AR B 89 L
’\E%ﬁﬁi 2

23 June 2023.

CTECCERRAFACERZE=F AT =HHET - HNE
ZEEN N E HFE -
e Details of Directors’ attendance at the 2023 AGM is set out below:
TREESHFE T —FRIAFAL2FF :
2023 AGM
—Eg-=
Name of Directors BEES BREAEAR
Teo Siong Seng RINE 171
Chung Pui King, Rebecca  4Z (IR 1/1
Siu Wai Yee, Winnie wmEE U1
(appointed on 1 January (R-—F—-—=4%
2023) —H—HEZ(F)
Kwa Wee Keng &R 0/0
(resigned on 1 April 2023) (R-ZE—-=4
/45— HEHE)
Chan Kwok Leung R [ £ 0/0
(resigned on 24 February ~— (R-ZE - =4
2023) —A= 7L/7_Z7 H&1F)
Lau Man Yee, Vanessa %‘JE,& 1/1
(appointed on 1 April 2023) (R —-—ZE - =4
Pg9H— Eié?/:’f)
Cheng Fu Kwok, David 803 o3 [ 1/1
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2l m] £ 171
Ho Teck Cheong =g 11

e |n 2023, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of
Nomination Committee), the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Company’s external
auditor attended the 2023 AGM and were available to answer questions
during the meeting.

RIZ-=F ZXXIR(RARELEESEIR) FZEEFI
& FHEESERRADNBINERBMBELEHE ST -_=FRE
AFRE  WAIRE FEIERH -
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Comply (“C")/
Explain (“E")
Code Ref. Code Provisions #<r([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z58 | FHHKX BRIE) | LEERES
F.2.3 The chairman of a meeting should © e Detailed explanation regarding the procedures for conducting poll by

ensure that an explanation is provided
of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any
questions from shareholders on voting
by poll.
AEFRERREG S L MRRRE
BUREFAETRANFMAR
fF- WEIERRBEBARERTA K
SREER AR

Shareholders had been provided at the commencement of the 2023
AGM.
BURERRAREFARANEFNAARECR_ZE_ZFREA
FREMBRRME -

e At the 2023 AGM, the Chairman of the meetings put each resolution
set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll in accordance with the
Company’s Articles.

RIZE_=ZFERRAFAE L REXERBERRFNEELMAI -
RAGBEAZZTRRBRETREIARR

e Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed
as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2023
AGM.

RRAFIROBPECRE RREZTR_S_=ZFRRAFAEHN
BEEE  NERRERBEZEH -

e All the resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings were
taken by poll.
FIERARRIREAE LIREZARRHFAREFNETRR -

e Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange.
BERRERDBHNAR T LB FTAU
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The board of directors (“Board”/“Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 44, 19 and 20, respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 111 to 112.

Based on the operating results of the Group, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK4 cents
per ordinary share (2022: HK2 cents per ordinary share)
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Board did not
recommend the payment of a final special dividend (2022:
nil). Together with an interim dividend of HK1 cent per
ordinary share (2022: HK4 cents per ordinary share) and an
interim special dividend of HK17 cents per ordinary share
(2022: nil), total dividend for the year would be HK22 cents
per ordinary share (2022: HK6 cents per ordinary share).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2024 Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 26 June 2024 (“2024
AGM”). For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at 2024 AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
21 June 2024 to Wednesday, 26 June 2024, both days
inclusive, and no transfer of the shares of the Company
will be effected during such period. In order to be entitled
to attend and vote at 2024 AGM, all transfers of shares of
the Company, duly accompanied by the completed transfer
forms and all relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 20 June 2024. The shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 26 June 2024, the record date of 2024 AGM,
will be entitled to attend and vote at 2024 AGM.

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 3 July 2024 to Friday, 5 July 2024,
both days inclusive, and no transfer of the shares of the
Company will be effected during such period. In order for
a shareholder of the Company to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares of the Company,
duly accompanied by the completed transfer forms and
all relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
2 July 2024. Subject to the approval by the Company’s
shareholders at the 2024 AGM, the proposed final dividend
is payable on Friday, 19 July 2024 to those shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 5 July 2024 (the record date).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Chairman’s Statement from
pages 8 to 12, Financial Highlights from pages 4 to 5 and
Frequently Asked Questions from pages 13 to 18 of this
Annual Report, which discussion forms part of this Report of
the Directors for purposes of Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
outlook of the Company’s business is discussed throughout
this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and are in addition to the matters referred to in the
Chairman’s Statement and Frequently Asked Questions of
this annual report:

1.  Economic Conditions and Market Competition
Risks

The impact of global economic conditions and
market sentiment would directly affect the demand
of dry freight containers of the Group. In 2023,
world economy was still affected by the high interest
rates, reduced consumer spending, war fares and
geopolitical tensions. The economic outlook becomes
uncertain and downside risks are elevated. According
to International Monetary Fund’s January 2024 World
Economic Outlook Update, it projected a global
growth rate of 3.1 percent in 2024, which is below
the historical average of 3.8 percent between 2000 to
2019.
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Political tensions between the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”/“China”) and the US have not
been eased. Tariffs remain in place on both
sides, impacting different industries such as
manufacturing, agriculture and technology. As a
result of the above, global trade and economy had
been affected and expected to be continuously
affecting the world economy this year, it in turn may
affect the Group’s container manufacturing business
in China.

The industry faces intense competition from
container manufacturing companies concentrate
in China. As a result of overproduction in 2021
and reduced demand, competitors may attempt
to gain market share by offering lower prices.
The Company may be required to reduce prices
when facing competition, which may affect the
Group’s profitability. For the purpose of reducing its
dependency on trade-driven market and focusing on
developing higher-margin specialised containers as
well as becoming a container solution provider, the
Group is on the way transforming to “New Singamas”
which is focusing on developing green related
products.
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Product Diversification and Market Expansion
Risks

To reduce the reliance on single market, the
Group invested heavily on developing customised
containers for meeting various demand across
different industries. The level of market acceptance
on the new products and the Group’s capability
in meeting technical requirements set forth the
products would affect the product diversification
and market expansion process. On the other hand,
as the customised containers generally enjoy higher
profit margin, which may attract competitors or
new players to enter into the market. The Group
continues to recruit engineers and technicians from
various sources for strengthening the research and
development team in order to differentiate itself from
the competitors. In addition to self-development,
the Group cooperated with other patent owners for
entering into unique markets directly and effectively.

In addition to being a traditional manufacturer,
the Group started container leasing business in
2022. It may better serve customers by allowing an
additional option on top of direct purchase. As a
new container leasing provider, the Group faced with
severe competition from other market players which
have long established history in the market and have
strong financial background. To ride on the Group’s
container manufacturing capabilities, it can be
more competitive in terms of costing, efficiency and
services.
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Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence for meeting
the business objectives of the Group. The Group
will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment and
retention practices, remuneration packages and
succession plan to mitigate the risks. Moreover, in view
of continuing increase in wage rate in China, the Group
will increase the level of automation in the production
process in order to reduce manpower requirements in
the future and to minimise the labour cost.

Financial Risks

In the course of business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow interest rate
risks.

a. Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.
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Details of the credit risk and impairment
assessment are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

For managing the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings,
if any and ensures compliance with loan
covenants or to timely negotiate with the
lenders if any non-compliance is expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases, bank
balances and bank loans, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. To mitigate the
foreign currency risk, the Group may enter
into forward contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management
of the Company monitors the movement of
the foreign currency closely and will consider
hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

Details of the currency risk are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environmental policies
and performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are published in the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report which is available at the
websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. As a listed company
in Hong Kong, the shares of the Company are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange since 8 July 1993, the
Company continuously complies with the requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange including the disclosure requirements,
corporate governance code and Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers therein. Under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Company is required to maintain
a register of interests in shares and short positions and a
register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and
short positions and is obliged to the disclosure requirement
of inside information. The Board will monitor the Group’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units from time to time.
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The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group is committed to comply with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Privacy Ordinance, ordinances against
disability, sex, family status and races discriminations, the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and the ordinances applicable to occupational safety so
as to safeguard the benefits and interests of the Group’s
employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopted effective environmental
technologies to ensure its operations meet the standards
and ethics in respect of environmental protection.

To protect the Group's intellectual property rights, the Group
has registered its domain name and its trademark have
been applied for or registered in various classes in Hong
Kong, the PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and takes all
appropriate actions to enforce its intellectual property rights.

During the year, the Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for its
business and operations and all of them are in force. There
was no material breach of or material non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with employees, suppliers and
customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and services to its customers. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Employees as the valuable assets of the Group, the Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group
also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, in order
to provide communication opportunities among staff, which
are vital to promote staff relationship.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
278 to 280 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2023, calculated under section 297 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$104,531,000
(2022: US$104,444,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
44, 19 and 20, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank balances and
cash of US$300,963,000 (2022: US$369,770,000) and
interest-bearing debts of US$6,835,000 (2022: nil). This
represented a gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the
Group’s total interest-bearing debts over equity attributable
to owners of the Company, of 0.01 (2022: nil). As the
Group was in net cash as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
calculation of net debt to equity ratio was not applicable.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US Dollars
(“US$”) or Renminbi (“RMB”). To match with the revenues
stream, the Group’s interest-bearing debts will be mainly in
US$ or RMB.

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December 2023,
all bank borrowings are repayable within two year. The
Group’s interest-bearing debts are principally on a floating
rate basis.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. To mitigate the foreign currency risk, the
Group may enter into forward contract to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. No interest was
capitalised by the Group during the year.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2023

IENBAT  BEAARS
GRS
EHAARNARIEEEMBLAR BERATRE
éﬁ%Zﬁ% J%W@ B 7% < Pt 5
44 ~ 1920 °

REEE R M BEIR

RZZE-_=F+-A=+—8 "&E£871%F
A IRT1T 458 M 3R £300,963,000€ L ( = F
— — % :369,770,000E T ) KM B EE
68%0m%n%_2::¢:%)0%§$
EEFBHEREAE0OI(ZE-—F  £) > IAK
SENEEERBEERR Th%ﬁﬁ%*%
BRITEREE - AEER_ZT_=F K=

——F+-A=+— H%ﬁ@ﬁi I%
TEERFEERREESLEWTEA -

BEFEER

REBEZ KBHRGEARTIAREEE -
REAWER  AEEZMEEEREER
ETLHARE -

RZTBE-_=F+=-—A=1+—08 - ERTE
EYR_FREE - AEEMEEBEEXTEL
FRBEYE o

AEEBTHBER
B AEBRMEAAXINE R R
SN BE R [ELB  ZNSR B AT RERT AL
O E AR B SN R -

Alg LASMNEEITIHE MR
° /T RK
EHA KA

BITER

AEEZRITERZFBHENGEE P HRE
MisE35  AEERFALRE KA EERTE
A o



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2023:

(1)

On 30 December 2022, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a renewed master
services contract (the “Master Services Contract
2023") with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group),
for the renewal of the Master Service Contract 2020
for a further term of three years commencing from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2025 in relation to the
provision of container depot and logistics services to
PIL Group. In view that PIL is a connected person of
the Company, the entering into the Master Services
Contract 2023 constituted a connected transaction.
As the Master Services Contract 2023 involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis over a
period of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual caps for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master
Services Contract 2023 are subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcement published on
30 December 2022 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.

Report of the Directors
EEgwE

RZB-_=F AEEETT TIRHERE
25

(1) ARE(REAEE)RZ-ZZT=Z=
+ZA=+HEXKFERB(RERAFM
BEB)E—HEBERERBER( =
TI=FERBER])  BZZFTZZT
FERBERBEH=F  HIRH_-Z
= —A—HEEZE-_AF+=
A=+—H ' BRIEMBEERHESE
KEHSRMMRT - BRAKFMH
EXRNRIZBEALT  Bilz_%
TEFIRBERABKREBERS o =
TZ=FERBER I RE—BEH
NEEETIRD ZEXR5AME
MEMRAEFTHAZEETNARQRZ
BEBRERS -

AR IRE EMHRRIE14.076MEZER
SHREZFE LRAAGTEN — B
EWERBESLEER(TBEBREAFTLE)
Z0.1% BEEZIE LK% - A
I —E=FEFREEREB TN 2%
EX5BEBFTLMAAUNETTOAEF
EBRE - 25 FEEZOHRT A
ERPETREMENERTE - ZEHF
BRER S ZFBCLEREMARG
HE BE_ZE-__F+=-H=+H
BANERTAREE o

“To=FFR - pREEckEaRAn 8D



86

Report of the Directors
ExaRs

(2)

On 18 March 2022, the Company (for and on behalf
of the Group) entered into a transportation framework
agreement (the “Transportation Framework
Agreement”) with PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd.
(“PIL Logistics China”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of PIL) in relation to the provision of transportation
solution services by PIL Logistics China for the
containers manufactured by the Group. In view
that PIL is a connected person of the Company,
the entering into the Transportation Framework
Agreement constituted a connected transaction. As
the Transportation Framework Agreement involved
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Transportation Framework Agreement took effect
from 18 March 2022 and will expire on 31 December
2024. On 24 October 2022, the Board resolved to
revise the annual caps for the three years ending 31
December 2024.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed
annual caps for the transactions exceeds 0.1%
but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Transportation
Framework Agreement were subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed in the announcements published on 18
March 2022, 25 March 2022 and 27 October 2022
respectively in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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(3)

On 2 November 2021, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2022")
with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the
sales of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that
PIL is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the Master Purchase Contract 2022
constituted a connected transaction. As the Master
Purchase Contract 2022 involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. On 18 March 2022, the Company
and PIL entered into a revised Master Purchase
Contract 2022 (the “Revised Master Purchase
Contract 2022") to extend the term of the Master
Purchase Contract 2022 from the original expiry
date of 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2024
and to revise the annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2022 and to set the annual caps for the
years ending 31 December 2023 and 2024.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed
annual caps for the transactions exceeds 5%.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Revised Master Purchase Contract 2022 are
subject to annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
After obtaining the approval from the independent
shareholders on 4 May 2022, the Revised Master
Purchase Contract 2022 took effect from 4 May
2022 and will expire on 31 December 2024. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcements published
on 2 November 2021, 15 February 2022 and 18
March 2022 respectively and the circulars dated 25
November 2021 and 14 April 2022 respectively in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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4)

On 31 January 2022, Teamwill International Limited
(“TIL") (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a container leasing agreement (the
“Container Leasing Agreement”) with PIL, for the
lease of containers from TIL to PIL. In view that PIL
is a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Container Leasing Agreement constituted
a connected transaction. As the Container Leasing
Agreement involves transactions, which occur on a
recurring basis over a period of time, the transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Container Leasing Agreement took effect from 31
January 2022 and will expire on 31 December 2032.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual cap for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Container
Leasing Agreement are subject to annual reporting,
announcement, and annual review but are exempted
from shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the term of
the Container Leasing Agreement exceeds three
years, pursuant to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing
Rules, independent financial adviser had been
appointed by the Company to review the Container
Leasing Agreement and confirmed that it is normal
business practice for agreements of this type to
be of such duration. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 January 2022 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
paragraph (1) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the transaction and are in the opinion that those continuing
connected transactions between the Group and PIL Group
for the provision of container depot and logistics services
to PIL Group were entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, conducted on normal
commercial terms and entered into in accordance with
the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole and on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties.
The total amount of such transactions for the year ended
31 December 2023 was US$2,447,187 (equivalent to
approximately HK$19,088,059) and did not exceed the
annual cap of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,000,000).

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
paragraph (2) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion that those
continuing connected transactions between the Group
and PIL Logistics China for the provision of transportation
solution services by PIL Logistics China for the containers
manufactured by the Group were entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and entered into
in accordance with the agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on terms no
less favourable than those available to or from independent
third parties. The total amount of such transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB7,017,111
(equivalent to approximately US$1,001,544) and did not
exceed the annual cap of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$4,716,981).

Report of the Directors
EEaRE

HREABE)REZHERER IO ESE
Eeff BXRARAZEVIIERNTESESE
HZERS  TRAAEEHENFIRBEE
AR F M S B IRE SR RS R YRR
B RBEREXSRASB ZEFTHER
B HE—REEGRR UERBRBEBERS
MIHZRIETET  MXBERATFEE - B
RFEARRRIRENRBENZ - WATBERE
MEZHHAETHEREAEKRMEIL - 8
EE_=ZFF+_A=+T—HULEZHFE "
ZERGHBRER2447,187F T (HHESE
719,088,059 C) + WM HBBFE LR 2
5,000,000 7T ( #9485 539,000,000 7T) ©

FREREBQRBRECHEVER SO ESE
EeifE BAXARAZEYIIERNTESESE
HZERS  TRAAEEHEAFTEERH
RARFEETPHAASBEAENSEMIREMH
BERBATRNBERERSAASEZIE
BEELE  BIR—MEEGRR - URRBE
ERARZNHBHRIETET  MRXBHERAFE
51 AREAAAIRFEAEERE @ WA
TBRBLE = F4E T REREGRME]
Vo HEITE=F+A=+—HIEZHF
[ ZERHNBEA/RAREKT7,017,111(4
&R 1,001,544 7) + WA HBBFE LR
Z AR #30,000,0007T (4)#8% 54,716,981
ET) °

“To=F4R - pREEckEsRAn 89



90

Report of the Directors
ExaRs

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
paragraph (3) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transactions and are in the opinion that those
continuing connected transactions for the sales of the
Equipment from the Group to PIL Group were entered into
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and entered into
in accordance with the agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on terms no
less favourable than those available to or from independent
third parties. The total amount of such transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was US$0 (equivalent
to approximately HK$0) and did not exceed the annual
cap of US$120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$936,000,000).

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
paragraph (4) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the transactions and are in the opinion that those continuing
connected transactions for the lease of containers from TIL
to PIL were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and entered into in accordance with the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole and on terms no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The total amount of
such transactions for the year ended 31 December 2023
was US$1,216,249 and did not exceed the annual cap of
US$12,200,000.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has engaged the external auditor of the Company to report
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
(Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The external auditor has reported to the Board and
confirmed that for the year 2023 the continuing connected
transactions (i) have received the approval of the Board;
(ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (iii) have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) the
continuing connected transactions in paragraphs (1), (2),
(3) and (4) above have not exceeded the relevant caps as
disclosed in the announcements dated 31 December 2022,
27 October 2022, 18 March 2022 and 31 January 2022
respectively.

The Group entered into certain transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2023, some
of which constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Group and were set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report (“Annual Report
2023"). Including in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Annual Report 2023 in respect of related
party transactions, sales to immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries, transportation services fee to a fellow
subsidiary and rental expense to a fellow subsidiary were
the continuing connected transactions as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that it has complied with the requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, no asset of the Group was
pledged as securities to any third parties (2022: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2023, the Company provided guarantees to banks as
securities for credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC. The Group did not provide any
guarantee to any third parties and did not have contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and has taken appropriate steps to
adopt and comply with the applicable principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the
Directors have complied with, for any part of the accounting
period covered by this annual report, the required standard
as set out in the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng* (resigned on 1 April 2023)

Ms. Lau Man Yee, Vanessa* (appointed on 1 April 2023)
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung* (resigned on 24 February 2023)
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan*

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong*

#  Non-executive Director
*  Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles”), at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years but shall be eligible for re-election.
Pursuant to article 92 of the Articles, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David and Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan shall retire from office at
the 2024 AGM, however, they will not offer themselves for
re-election.

Pursuant to articles 92 and 92A of the Articles, Mr. Teo
Siong Seng, Ms. Lau Man Yee, Vanessa and Mr. Ho Teck
Cheong shall retire from office at the 2024 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules from
each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and
Mr. Ho Teck Cheong and considered them as independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries”) during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)
Current directors of Subsidiaries:

Pascal BERGER
CHEN Nengxiang
CHEN Zhenyu

CHU Chee Leong
CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca
DING Zhong Fu

LAl Zhi Yong

LAU Man Yee, Vanessa
Lilian LEE

LIU Kecheng

SIU Wai Yee, Winnie
SONG Yan Yan

TEO Siong Seng
TEO Teng Seng
WANG Xinggian
WENG Sheng Qiang
XU Jin Yong

Phil YU

Z/HANG Tian Bao
ZHAQ Bing

ZHAO Xiaobing

Resigned as directors of Subsidiaries during the year and up
to the date of this report:

PAN Chun Ling

QIAN Ming
WU Bing Hong
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions
of the Directors or chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) which (a)
were required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such
Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFQ); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c)
were required, pursuant to Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:
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REARLRBERARAIRZIERTE 2 ZLM
RZEFTOAR ()R IE ETARBIFTE
ZRETARMNARG BRIz ERRAR
I

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) ApEEER(BRE D
Percentage
Number of Shares/ of Total
Underlying Shares Held Issued Shares
BEZRR/ HERAEE (Note)
Personal Corporate Total 2
Name Capacity Interest Interest Other Interest EETRH
HE 5% 5PN 373 AR Hity BEs BAk
(M)
Mr. Teo Siong Seng Beneficial Owner 42,377,250 - - 42,377,250 1.78%
RINE L4 ERAA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Beneficial Owner 195,291 - - 195,291 0.01%
Rebecca
Bt ERAA
Note: B -

The percentages were computed based on the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023 (i.e. ordinary share of
2,382,205,918 shares).

B2 TR R el R2023F 12 H31 H B #77.2 IR 1742
21(FI2,382,205,9188% ZimR )5 E -
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All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the Shares and underlying Shares.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a
party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required notification to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which any such Director or chief executive is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company;
or which (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
or the Stock Exchange and none of Directors, nor their
spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2023, according to the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and
so far as was known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above), had an interest
or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
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FERRzERS

R-ZB-_=F+_"A=+—8  REAQF
BCES M EGRD) E3361&1F & 2 &L it
AR UERREZTHARRZSTHRAR
FTER - TOIAL(BRIA L TEERN M - 18F8
ik EEE cEm lORR | —BRINEE T
E=WmAERIN)  ERODMEBERO %
BzEaRe  YARB(EFEBERK
BIVEXVEPE2 K30 RRAIA R RIK BRI T

Number of Shares Percentage of

R EHE Total Issued
Direct Indirect Shares
Name Notes Interest Interest (Note 1)
HEEE BT
o Kt HERER BiEER ROGBEDH
(BtaE1)
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited 2) - 993,825,345 41.72%
(“Temasek”)
REBIER(FAA)BRAR([AFH])
PIL Pte. Ltd. (3) - 993,825,345 41.72%
Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited ~ (3) 993,825,345 - 41.72%
(“PlL”)
AEMBRA)ERAR(TAFEMH])
Shah Capital Management (4) 152,624,418 - 6.41%
Notes: Hiat
(1) The percentages were computed based on the total number of (1) B A TZAR R R2023F12A31 HE #7172

issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023 (i.e.
ordinary share of 2,382,205,918 shares).

2) Temasek is deemed interested in the Shares held by PIL via lvy
2 Investments VCC (“Ivy 2”). Ivy 2 is a controlling shareholder of
PIL Pte. Ltd.. Ivy 2 is controlled by Heliconia Capital Management
Pte Ltd. (“Heliconia”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of 65
Equity Partners Pte. Ltd. (“65EP”). In turn, 65EP is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Temasek. 65EP and Heliconia are
independently-managed Temasek portfolio entities.

(3) A total of 993,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL which is
100% owned by PIL Pte. Ltd..

(4) A total of 152,624,418 Shares are directly held by Shah Capital
Management in the capacity of Investment manager.

17482 (BI12,382,205,918/R Z#IK )5 & °

2) KE 5% 8Ivy 2 Investments VCC([lvy 21)#
BREXTFHBERFERRGF AR vy 2
ZPIL Pte. Ltd. BIFERRARR < Ivy 21 Heliconia
Capital Management Pte Ltd. ([ Heliconia |) BT
#l o fHeliconia;265 Equity Partners Pte. Ltd.
([65EP )BTz 2 EMTE 22 ] - 65EPRIZ AT
A2 A& 2 F] - li65EPFIHeliconia2
BUEENATHKEMES TR -

(3) AB2173993,825,345 R IR 17 T3 B K F AL 75 B e 5
ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁf;’?‘ZlOO%%ﬁﬁ’/EﬁP!L Pte. Ltd.
o =1

(4) 48 2 5 152,624,418 BE R 17 B Shah Capital
ManagementiX{ 18 E45HE 5 (3 B 1155 ©
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All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known
to the Directors or chief executive, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, who, as at 31 December
2023, had an interest or a short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2023, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than transactions disclosed under the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above and in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements (which were
approved by the independent non-executive Directors and
in the opinion of the Directors were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s
business), no material transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its immediate and ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company or an entity
connected with a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover to certain legal actions brought
against its directors and officers. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when this report prepared by
the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)
(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Report of the Directors
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EEFRERX

ARARFRECRRIEFEENSRAER
BEERR > REEZERRRABEHE T
BITHIRREHREZNRE - BERESNELE
APREEUR B (R BURBND (BB EHIF622
B)FBAT0FRMRENRESREARERES
BHEBIZE391(1) () (R EBIBR IEB 2L °

TEFEFRKRER

AEEBEEREMNEEETRATEHERLK
BEFEzBADHMT

Percentage
Bt
Percentage of purchases attributable to the  ARNEBE & AHEEEPTHEEEE 10%
Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to the ~ AN&EE T AHER L S5 30%
Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable to the AREBHEAREPAGEESE 10%
Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable to the AEBRAREFATEEERE 25%

Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

RER SESHEBBALHEMER
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed during
the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 19 to
24 under the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND EMPLOYEE
RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the Company
is set by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group, including subsidiaries
employed 3,089 (2022: 2,970) full-time employees;
its associates and joint ventures employed 885 (2022:
880) full-time employees in total. Staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to US$74,707,000
(2022: US$91,824,000) for the year. All full-time salaried
employees, except for factory workers and contract
employees, are being paid on a monthly basis, plus a
discretionary performance bonus. Factory workers are
being remunerated based on a basic wage plus production
incentive. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its
employees are competitive and employees are awarded on
a performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To further enhance
the capability of its human resource, the Group provides on-
the-job training to its employees.

Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the Company
nor any of its other subsidiaries has established labour
union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however, are
not subject to any collective agreements. The Group has
maintained good relationships with its employees. None of
the Group’s employees is represented by a labour union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 14 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2B AR E

Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Singamas Container Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 111 to 277, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HREEITEE

B EITEIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHNESFNEERRETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing

segment

HERESBABRNYE BERRBUREAREE ZRERfL

We identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating
to the manufacturing segment as a key audit matter
due to the involvement of significant judgements and
estimates in determining the recoverable amounts of
the respective cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
relating to the manufacturing segment have been
allocated.

MNEETEREED B EENYER - BB KR E A
RERAEEEMSENSHReELETHARE S
RS R EARHE KA RITHERES BE
BRYE  BERREUREREEE RBET
P REARESTEIE -

In view of the financial performance of one CGU
of the manufacturing segment during the year, the
management of the Group performed impairment
assessment on the relevant CGU which contain certain
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
by preparing value in use calculations. As disclosed
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
value in use calculations require the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU,
based on key inputs, such as the expected selling
prices, budgeted sales volume, gross profit margin,
growth rate, and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

EREES N — AR eEL BTN FANMBEE
B AEEEEERAREERAEETER e
BETYE BEARBUREAEEENHEBER
SERETTETRERN G o RS M B HmKM T4
PSR EREEFEERAEEARERAREE -
TEEHES  EMNX EBRELEENFTREEZH
RBWAE GAZREELETNETARRRER
£ UFtERE -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing
segment included:

RITEME  BERRBEUREREEE 2BER
HMITHETIETFEE

° Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s process and basis adopted in
preparing the value in use calculations of the
CGU, including key inputs;
THREREERUEGCELELGEAEBER
BEREMEANEFANEE  2EERERRBA
& :

° Comparing the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume and gross profit margin
used against historical performance, recent
sales transactions and the management’s
budget;

HERNTEHERE  EEEEEMEN XA
FSLFEE THHEHERGNEREREET
LEE

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the growth
rate applied by the management of the Group,
by referring to the industry information and
discussing with the management of the Group
on revenue growth strategies in respect of the
CGU;

BASETERERE  WHEAREETEEN®
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BRETEIE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
BY AR E

BARESTEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHNESFNAERERARETSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing

segment (Continued)

BEEIBERANYR  BERRBURCEAEEE 2RERNE @)

As disclosed in notes 4, 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the net carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
relating to the manufacturing segment for which the
management has performed impairment assessment
as at 31 December 2023 are US$7,319,000 and
US$851,000 respectively. No impairment losses in
respect of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets have been recognised by the Group during
the year.

WERE SRR T4 - 16 R 17FTHE - R20234F
12A318  BEBEEEETREMNGHERED S
FHANME  BEMREBLREAREENREDRE
7 B &7,319,000% 5T % 851,000%% 7T » A& B
FRRBERME - BB MRERERESEERA
BEIE -

Working with our internal valuation expert in
assessing the appropriateness of the discount
rate applied by the management of the Group;
HEATABEEZREREE  FHEAEEER
BRANFEERENE

Comparing the assumptions adopted in the
prior year's management budget with actual
results for the current year, investigating
significant variances identified and considering
the impact on the current year’'s impairment
assessments; and
HEFEERERETRANBRREEFH
ERERETHER  AEERNERER
WEBHAFERENGOTE Kk

Evaluating the potential impact on the value
in use calculations of the CGUs based on the
reasonably possible changes of the budgeted
sales volume, growth rate and discount rate
applied by the management of the Group.
BEAESEEEEEAMNEREHEESE B
EMFTRENSEA B - THEREE
HETEREBEAENEETE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATE ME NTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

BB RS M BERREA
EEZEFE

ERBEBRTENETETNBRES - K
TERBRAE  REFFXRERE - A17
DI

o HARFFABERKEFHERMER

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBEaRHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BiZ2 —F - =F+-H=+—HIF)Z

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E=-=

Notes US$’000 US$’000

Hat FEx FET

Revenue 2] 5 382,470 776,455
Cost of Sales SHE B (325,942) (629,324)
Gross profit EF 56,528 147,131
Other income H bz A 7 20,608 12,209
Distribution expenses DiHE A (10,938) (18,361)
Administrative expenses 1T EH (32,657) (34,215)
Finance costs % ER 8 (343) (366)
Other gains and losses H bz & E51E 9 (7,076) (17,687)
Share of results of associates FE(REE 2N A2 248 1,316 1,349
Share of results of joint ventures EIEEBNE¥EE 204 (135)
Profit before taxation BRER A& R 10 27,642 89,925
Income tax expense FriSfiIER X 13 (5,149) (33,360)
Profit for the year AEERF 22,493 56,565

Profit for the year attributable to: REERMERF :

Owners of the Company NN ES 46,340
Non-controlling interests FE15E IS A% BR AE 10,225
56,565
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEmRkAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #lZE —FE - =F1+=-HA=+—HI-FE

2023

—E-=
Note US$’000
k23 FExrx

Other comprehensive (expense) income H b 2 (X H) Iz

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Fair value (loss) gain on equity
instrument at fair value through

TEREHTEE
R HYHEE -
BARBEFAEME
a2 s T A

(1,983)

other comprehensive income (HMBMBTE) 2
(“FVTOCI”), net of tax effect ARBEE(EE) K=
Item that may be reclassified HBEAREEREN 78
subsequently to profit or loss: EZEBHER -
Exchange differences arising on BmEINETTE ERE
translation
Other comprehensive expense FAHMEZEXH
for the year
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWKWSBE
for the year
Total comprehensive income BiE2mEk A :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEI L ES

Non-controlling interests

TR R M s

17,021
3,021

20,042

Basic earnings per share

EXREFN

15 US0.82 cent
E(Ih
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2022
_%_ J—

—_— =

US$'000
TET

2,677

(4,190)

(1,513)

55,052

45,365
9,687

55,052

US1.92 cents
1l




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2023 R —FE_=F1+_-A=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E=-=
Notes Us$'000 US$'000
KtaF FEx FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HEE N R 16 86,991
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 39,130
Investment properties KEMEHE 18 35,330
Interests in associates N NI 19 15,768
Interests in joint ventures REBREER 20 6,302
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BARBEGTAEM
FEHKE ERTA 21 28,367
Financial asset at fair value through 2 A7 B{ET ABZD
profit and loss (“FVTPL”") LERMEE 22 3,044
Other receivables H th FE W FRIR 26 4,842
Trade receivables JE W BR 7K 24 10,798
Deposits for non-current assets IERBEELRS 72 94
246,904 230,666
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 106,593 105,662
Trade receivables JE UK BR 3R 24 71,124 80,136
Prepayments and other receivables &1 % g It 3K 18 26 30,032 24,324
Amounts due from associates JE Wk 22 R RIFRIR 33 276 424
Amounts due from joint ventures FEE B EFIA 33 415 995
Tax recoverable A Bz F1E 160 276
Bank deposits with original maturity R 2|53 B 238 =& A
over 3 months BRI TIF 3K 28 173,130 40,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE 28 127,833 329,770
509,563 581,587
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R M BIRR R

As at 31 December 2023 R —FE—=#+—-H=+—H

Notes
k23
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FETBR X 29
Lease liabilities HEBE 30
Accruals and other payables EstER M EA
JETER 3R 31

Advances from customers TE U BR X 32
Amount due to immediate e E R

holding company NAIFIE 27
Amounts due to associates AL YNCI Bzl S
Amounts due to joint ventures e EENRE 33
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT AR 34
Tax payable e IR
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMER S5
Net current assets REEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEABEBIABEE
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital A% X 36
Accumulated profits Sl
Other reserves H b fEE
Equity attributable to owners RN EIRER E(E

of the Company
Non-controlling interests

IR R 5

Total equity

EEARE
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2023
—E-=F
Us$’000
FEx

1,261
1,246

122,542

387,021

633,925

268,149
201,672
81,959

551,780
62,855

614,635

2022
_%_ J—

—_— =

US$'000
TET

40,230
2,664

50,367
37,704

62
473

461
3,161

135,129

446,458

677,124

268,149
248,584
79,093

595,826
63,051

658,877




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBMRRE
As at 31 December 2023 R—FE—-=#+—_FH=+—H

2023 2022

—EC-=F —E=-=
Notes Us$’000 US$'000
Mt FEx FET

Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Lease liabilities MEAE
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEAE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER

30 1,787 3,473
37 11,914 14,774
S5 5,589 =

19,290 18,247

633,925 677,124

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 277
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 14 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng IR &
Director &%

HRFIIBEF2/ITEZEAVMBRRKE
BEeRN_ZT-_NE= A +MWA & REE
& WA TINEERREE

Chung Pui King, Rebecca & {2
Director £%F
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #lZE —FE - =F1+=-HA=+—HI-FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARRER
Exchange PRC  Property Investment Non-
Share tranlation  statutory revaluation revaluation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  Sub-total  interests Total
HE hE  Y¥E  REE R
RE FERE ek HERE HERE ZHHE ZHER M RRER fg
US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US000  US$000  USH000  US$000  US$000
TEn T TR TEr fEr TEn tEn TR TEr fEn
(Note b) (Note a)
(W) (Wiita)
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZ5-f-H 263,149 7986 2488 18141 16906 (721) 340913 676272 56973 733245
Profit for the year REERH - - = = = - 46340 46340 10225 56565
Fair value gain on equity BRALBETALL
instrument at FVTOC|, kG ERTE
net of tax effect (kHEZ2)z
L e - - - - 2677 - - 2,671 - 2677
Exchange differences arising BENEREEE
on translation - (3692 - - = - - (3692 (538)  (4190)
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ AEE2E(TH)
income for the year eyt - (3692 - - 2677 - 46340 45365 9687 55,052
Share repurchased and cancelled  JR{7EIHE Rz i = = = = = - (2958 (29%8) - 2999
Forfeiture of cividend RUBERRS
previously declared - - - - - - 74 74 - 74
Dividends paid to ORI
non-controlling interests EaRe - = = - - - - - (36090 (3,609
Divicends paid to owners of the  XRAAAIRERE
Company (note 14) (Biz14) - = = = - - (123594) (1235%) - (1235%)
Transfer from accumulated profits  E&E Z:0EF = - 128%8 = = - (128%) - - -
At 31 December 2022 i 3
T-A=1t-H 268,149 4334 31756 18141 19583 (721) 248584  5%H86 63051 658877
Profit for the year REERH 19438
Fair value loss on equity BARBEALL
instrument at FVTOCI, FENEERTA
net of tax effect (MBHiEzE)z
MEERE (1,983) (1,983) (1,983)
Exchange differences arising BENENEEE
on translation - (434) (34) (468)
Total comprehensive (expense) — AE/E 2H (%)
income for the year I (1,983) 19438 17,021 3021 20,042
Dividends paid to FUEREY
non-controlling interests EaRa - - - @an @2
Divicends paid to owners of the  XRAAAIRERE
Company (note 14) (Hii#14) (61,067  (61,067) (61,067)
Transfer from accumulated profits  E&E Z:0EF (5,283) - -
At 31 December 2023 St 3
tZA=1-A 268,149 43,039 201,672 551,780 62,855 614,635

1 1 6 Singamas Container Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2023




Notes:

(a)

(b)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERZSBR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BiZ2 —F - =F+_-H=+—HIF)F

Other reserve included the difference between consideration
and book value attributable of the related net assets arose when
acquiring additional shares of subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have to
provide for the PRC statutory reserves before declaring dividends
to their shareholders as approved by the board of directors. The
reserves are not distributable until the end of the operation periods
of the respective entities, at which time any remaining balance of
the reserves can be distributed to shareholders upon liquidation of
the subsidiaries. The reserves can be used to offset accumulated
losses of the entities or increase capital upon approval from
the PRC’s relevant authority. The distributable profits of the
subsidiaries are determined based on their accumulated profits
calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations.

e

(a)

(b)

E A 515 B IR AE I B 2 AIEESMR 10 B iy 21 18
HIARTF B E R RE (B 8.2 FRYERE -

REBEARTEBRRFEARLTE([F
B ) (&8 BFIREERI) 2B LAz
BIRRREZG) - M F N A EF SR ZFR
BHFEERRP B EEFEE - FEEEZT
NAlZ EEFHBRIIGT A 2R ° HZFH
BRAVERRES - BT Z GRS AR FRRE -
FE18 AT (EHDB % 5 4 Al.Z Rat B IR B AE
BB B RIHE 6 15 R A ESE JIAR AN = W/ 22 7]
ZAREFE IR EF B &5 TR RRERR
Ret i Pzt EMEE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GmERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE —E —=4#1+ - HA=+—HIFFE

2023
—m—=
Us$'000
FEx
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EETE
Profit before taxation BR 15 AT A
Adjustments for: FEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and M BRNREZITE
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - ERNRE
plant and equipment 2 Wa
Loss on property, plant and equipment  FFSE¥IE - MR R ERE
written off ZEBE
Share of results of associates JEREE N R 2 ¥4E
Share of results of joint ventures EhEBEE¥E
Investment income KEWA
Interest expense B H
Fair value loss on derivative financial PTEERMIAEZ AR
instruments EEEIE
Fair value loss on investment properties ~ REWE 2 A xR BHEER
Fair value gain on financial BEAREBEFAERZ
asset at FVTPL ERMEEZAAEER
Wz
Allowance for credit losses, MR B 2 = AR ER
net of reversal
— trade receivables from third parties —FE=HEWERR
— other receivables — H A fE Y GRIE
Adjustment to consideration receivables ¥ fE U (B H) T &
Unrealised exchange difference RERENZHE
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2022

US$'000
FET

89,925

7,780
3,912

(525)

231
(1,349)

135
(7,804)

287

5,686
909

(74)

(20)
(2)
3,360
2,376




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BiZ2 —F - =F+_-H=+—HIF)F

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E=-=

Us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Operating cash flows before movements EELESRBAI2EHE

in working capital REeERE 30,340 104,827
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOEM R (15,069) 95,261
Increase in trade receivables from third = 77 FE U AR SR8 AN

parties (8,789) (11,614)
Increase in trade receivables from fellow  [& i B A 7 ELL

subsidiaries AR ZRIE 0 (166) (67)
Decrease in trade receivables from Bt &8 N B FE AR SRRk >

associates 44
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and  FEA Kz E A fE U 2k 18

other receivables (3800 ) R (5,784) 19,364
Decrease in trade payables JE 1T BR FORL (5,240) (65,992)
Decrease in accruals and et E A R HMER

other payables AR FORL (5,066) (14,097)
Decrease in advances from customers TEUWBR R (859) (816)
Decrease in advances from immediate BEERATTEK

holding company AR TR (358) (7,846)
Increase in advances from fellow BN

subsidiaries BREIE N 11

Cash (used in) from operations EE(FRE)FBES (10,991) 119,075
Interest paid ERFE (246) (272)
Income tax paid BEMFTSH (9,572) (54,397)
Net cash (used in) from operating EETE (FTFE) S

activities HEFE (20,809) 64,406
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #lZE —FE - =F1+=-HA=+—HI-FE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB 4% - R R E

Payment for right-of-use assets

Deposits paid for non-current assets

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Dividends received from associates
and joint ventures

Dividend received from unlisted equity
investment

Interest received

Cash settlement for derivative financial
instruments

Placement of bank deposit with original
maturity over 3 months

Withdrawal of bank deposit with original
maturity over 3 months

XY A AR
ENFERBEERSE
HEMBRRMF
HEME - #az R
RS
BEWRBERRIRAELE
i)
BEUSE LT REERERS

EWFH B2
XNTESRTE
RekR
FRIRZ A EBA=1EA
HERTT K
RRRIHEBB=EA
HYERTT 3K

Net cash used in investing activities

REFE R FHE
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2023
—E-=F
Us$’000
FEx

(4,515)

(315)
1,564

442
2,056

1,831
14,416

(826)
(509,307)

376,177

(118,477)

2022
_%_ J—

—_— =

US$'000
FET

(7,932)

(158)

(1,091)
4,279
647
2,210

1,926
5,274

(5,023)

(40,000)

(39,868)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BiZ2 —F - =F+_-H=+—HIF)F

2023 2022
—E2-=F —E-=
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FET

FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEES
New bank loans IRITHER 5,628 —
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 1< 3E 122 J% f% B8 kg 25 A% 5. (3,217) (3,609)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company 2 15 4~ A &1 i% 5 A% 5 (61,067) (123,594)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEaE (3,332) (2,591)
Advance from immediate holding company & A BN al I8 114 115
Repayment to immediate holding company {818 B #& 5=l B 708 (101) (59)
Advances from associates BANZ QA RIFIA 2,180 2,447
Repayments to associates EEBE RRINIE (2,277) (2,079)
Advances from joint ventures BEABEENRE 78 36
Repayments to joint ventures BEEsEILETE (77) (34)
Payment for repurchase of shares SR EIEE A - (2,958)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEIEREFHR (62,071) (132,326)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRkERBEEZ

EQUIVALENTS R (201,357) (107,788)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HZEER

AT 1 JANUARY ZE1RE 329,770 438,171
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — [ERit&) 7 522 (580) (613)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RTt=—A=+—HBzHE

AT 31 DECEMBER FERERE 127,833 329,770
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReREFAELHEE

REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 300,963 369,770
Less: bank deposits with original maturity & : REIEI B #B:@=1E B

over 3 months BRI TIF 3K (173,130) (40,000)
127,833 329,770
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Pacific International
Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL") is the controlling
shareholder of the Company that directly holds
993,825,345 shares, representing 41.72% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2023 and it is considered as the
immediate holding company of the Company.
According to the latest corporate substantial
shareholder notice filed by Temasek Holdings
(Private) Limited and uploaded on the Stock
Exchange’s website prior to the publication of
this report, Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited
is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by PIL by virtue of certain corporations
deemed to be controlled by Temasek Holding
(Private) Limited. Both companies are incorporated
in the Republic of Singapore. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the section of corporate
information of this annual report. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the businesses of
manufacturing and leasing of containers and other
related products and providing logistics services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax
Reform — Pillar Two
model Rules

Disclosure of

Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSH) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

The application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments define
accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items
in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty. In such a case,
an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve
the objective set out by the accounting policy.
The amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates, and
changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSH) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments narrow the
scope of the recognition exemption of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15
and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i the Group has applied the new accounting
policy retrospectively to leasing transactions
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022;

(ii) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary difference associated with
right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance, except that the Group disclose
the related deferred tax assets of US$976,000 and
deferred tax liabilities of US$852,000 on a gross
basis but it has no impact on the accumulated profits
at the earliest period presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSH) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements is amended to replace
all instances of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“H KFRSSH) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture!

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)?

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants?

Supplier Finance
Arrangements?

Lack of Exchangeability?

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSH) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continved)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSH) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
%2022 Amendments”) (continued)

° specify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that the classification
should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been
modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period
do not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

REMBRRMEE

?“’%W%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ&%%{l AZE

M B HEER ([ EFRY

BHREEA )

EHEERFIREEEDE
ARBRFERBNBITRES
2555 (2020) WWARRBEIEET
([2020FB8FT ) RE B ST
A1 ERENERBERE
([2022F &7 1) (=)

FIRABERENNBEHRT
TE H B T A ‘*ﬂ%;‘ﬁiﬂﬁ#iﬁ
B ABME FRABIERS
ZOBRIXEEEET @A
NEBRENEEBAEBEHME
@,

HRANEBFTZARKENEREAH
RBELERBT_EAZHEENER -
2020FEFT A S| AR B SR B #2022
BRI BN ° 2022 (BRI ANE]FA - B
AR RE IR 2 AT B TR E?i
e EEENHEEHEEZLD+ ZF
ﬂmkt%%iéf;m%ﬂ EXEPiAr
HEHBRBTHOREBELEZENNREH
EATETESE -

—To=Ea @ pEaEcEsRAT 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSH) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
%2022 Amendments”) (continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that
enables users of financial statements to understand
the risk that the liabilities could become repayable
within twelve months after the reporting period,
if an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right
to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the
entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective
date of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the
2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. If an entity applies the
2020 Amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should
also apply the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2023, the application of the 2020 and
2022 Amendments will not result in reclassification of
such Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
equity instrument at FVTOCI, financial asset at
FVTPL, investment properties and derivative financial
instruments, that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continuea)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

1 32 Singamas Container Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2023

MG ESUBRENER
RERSFTBERER &

RERGEMBRENER )

NRAEBERNFGER  mE2EEL
REAFRZTHE-HEEMEW
R @ - HAEMHEER
MAwmZERELS I ERBEXIR
Am—RBAERTGEE - RETEE
FRENAAEBER  AKESRE
REMG2EERNERZEEXEA
ERAEAZEBNREE - a5
BERPAEFER XRBEAEHOQ
REEDRILEEEE @ EEERK
RIS 28R A A X BB A AR
RXR5  REBVHREERIF16
HRHEENENHEERS  UREQR
BEFEETHUMELIFAAEE
AAE(MBER S ERF2RFETH
A ERFER BT B G ERFEICHE
EREF O EREEERI -

FeMEENAABEFEFATS
SEEFBEAEEENRR LRE
AgRBERREELETHERER
mREERENS—RMHE2EEN
BESVE LB SHIBE D -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continuea)

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 mESSHBREVWER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RERGTHERER »
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)
Material accounting policies adopted by the AEEFEANEXRSFTBE 2
Group (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued) (a) #HEEE e
Profit or loss and each item of other BELEMEIZERBRANS IS
comprehensive income are attributed to BERAR AR RIEERRK
the owners of the Company and to the non- RER - MEBARMNEZE WA
controlling interests. Total comprehensive BEEBN AN BIIE & IEE
MERx R - B e E a3k

income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non- PR R R RS E A R AR R o
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, AEBRNARBEHFERBAEE
income and expenses and cash flows relating ERAE - #Exm KAKRAX
to transactions between members of the REAEBKNERAIHNRXS
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. HENREREEREEKRE

R 2 EB T8N o

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries Bt B A B B9 IF 12 AR AR 3R 4 55 B
are presented separately from the Group’s AEBNEIRAZY - ZE
equity therein, which represent present KB EEERER  £H
ownership interests entitling their holders BEABEESEREIRLEHN D
to a proportionate share of net assets of the HARBHBATRFEE -

relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(b) Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(h)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates and joint ventures are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(c) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair
value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

(d) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, comprises direct
materials, and where applicable, direct labour,
and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Costs of inventories are determined using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recoghised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset, the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required to
be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in
the “other income” line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and amounts due to immediate
holding company, associates and joint
ventures are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial
liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are
offset and the net amount presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(")

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not

create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(")

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract liability (presented as “advances
from customers” in consolidated statement
of financial position) represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Operating lease income is recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease terms.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Finance lease income is recognised on an
accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the net investment
of a finance lease or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
net investment of the finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(f)  Revenue from contracts with customers (f)
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based
on output method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract, that
best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has
a right to consideration in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date
(service contracts in which the Group bills a
fixed amount daily of service provided), the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

REGEVKRENER
RERSFTBERER &

FEERANERSTEHE®

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (g) HE

Definition of a lease HEFTH

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract
will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBEBRRMTE
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 HmAUSRSUBMENWER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REXRSFTHRER »
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)
Material accounting policies adopted by the AEEFEANEXRSFTBE 2
Group (continued)
(g) Leases (continued) (g) #HE#m)
The Group as a lessee KEBERBAHA
Allocation of consideration to components of a PR EREE A
contract
For a contract that contains a lease MEeBHEXRD UK —BKZ
component and one or more additional lease HEIIHERFHEKN DB E
or non-lease components, the Group allocates HMsE  AEBBEHRED
the consideration in the contract to each lease RE&HERD  EEEHE
component on the basis of the relative stand- OB ELESKIEEE
alone price of the lease component and the BKOHEB BN  BIiEES
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease PEMHEIHWMIEEEEFA
components, including contract for acquisition KREDERNNTENTBES
of ownership interests of a property which [ - BRIEMAR] SERETTOHEL ©
includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.
The Group applies practical expedient not to REEERAUITERE S ENH
separate non-lease components from lease JEFHE 4 AR B0 o BA AR & 4B B 2B
component, and instead account for the lease Ao MEBEEAKE S &
component and any associated non-lease EREEEREAKTOES
components as a single lease component. B—HEHAKID AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as

a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever the lease
term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a

separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification
as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one
or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases
increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease incentives from
lessor by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use assets. When the
modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(g)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases
(Continued)

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at
commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using
the interest rate implicit in the respective
leases. Initial direct costs (other than those
incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the
net investments in the leases. Interest income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases
(Continued)

At the commencement date, the Group
as a manufacturer or dealer lessor should
recognise: i) revenue, which is the fair value
of the underlying asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the lease payments accruing
to the lessor, discounted using a market rate
of interest; ii) the cost of sale, which is the
cost (or carrying amount if different) of the
underlying asset less the present value of the
unguaranteed residual value. Initial direct
costs for leases in which the Group is the
manufacturer or dealer lessor are recognised
in costs of sales at the commencement date of
the finance leases; and iii) selling profit or loss
(which is the difference between revenue and
the cost of sale) in accordance with its policy
for outright sales to which HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers applies. The
selling profit or loss on a finance lease should
be recognised at the commencement date,
regardless of whether the lessor transfers the
underlying asset as described in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(g)

(h)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases
(Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except
for investment properties measured under fair
value model.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(h) Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax for leasing transactions in which the
Group recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income
Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities results in net deductible
differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted hy the
Group (continued)

(i)

1)

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates and contributes to
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes
which are available to all employees of Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. Contribution
payable by the Group to the MPF scheme is
charged to the profit or loss when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

REMBRRMEE

MG BRENER
RERSFTBERER &

FEERANERSTEHE®

(i) EBIKFEFEBIH

AERBARRAREZHER
A8 THRT e op B RATEIE
2 RRIE B - B IEBRG
REATETRGHRE - A%
B 2 oh SRR AR 3 B2 BT A
B AR -

AEBEREMEBEEREER
MR ERHIMERAEE([®E
) AR/RAEEZ=EHEERE
itttk - e cEEH
AEBZEENFH  YAXE
AEE - ERERBRERTA
BRAIBMGHR  NEEYHHRE
T RAHRE AR -

() RBHREMRAESEF

M H R B R A B B R AR
RIZERAIMENORFTRE
MR - MANHEEREANY
BRARAX  BRIFEX—EE
BB IS SRR E A A
BRETABBEXARIER

—To=Ea @ pEaEcxsRAT 16D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group (continued)

(j)  Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits (continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets relating to
manufacturing segment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and fair value less cost
of disposal; and (3) the appropriate key inputs to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit (“CGU") to which the assets belongs including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of CGUs, for which the relevant
corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets relating to
manufacturing segment (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, in view of the financial
performance of a CGU of the manufacturing segment
during the year, the Group performed impairment
assessment on this CGU which contains net carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment of
US$7,319,000 (2022: US$7,902,000) and right-of-
use assets of US$851,000 (2022: US$872,000) by
preparing a value in use calculations that require the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU based on key inputs, such as
the expected selling prices, budgeted sales volume,
gross profit margin, growth rate, and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
No impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets have been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023. Details
of the impairment of property, plant and equipment
are disclosed in note 16. In addition, there is no
impairment loss recognised for the group of CGU of
manufacturing segment that includes the carrying
amount of corporate assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

REVENUE 5 ZX®
Revenue represents sales of goods from BEIERIE R IR HE SHEH
manufacturing, containers leasing and services ERMnRE I RBEW S EBIEE
income from logistics services operations, less sales G i (U NI
related taxes, and is analysed as follows:
2023 2022
—EBC-=F g
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Manufacturing and leasing RENHEER 354,983 748,847
Logistics services Wnim AR 75 27,487 27,608
382,470 776,455
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts KO REEFESHH WS
with customers
2023 2022
—E-= Tz
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Types of goods or services (GRS 0k
Manufacturing BB TS
Sales of dry freight containers LEXRBHEE 187,115 609,012
Sales of tank containers HEraEE 61,236 59,639
Sales of other specialised HEisEERBE R
containers and container parts SRR AHEE 103,843 78,645
352,194 747,296
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

5 REVENUE (coniinueq) 5 %%gﬁ(ﬁ)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts FoRBEFEHANKR®
with customers (continued)
2023 2022
—EC=F —_F-_-
US$’000 US$'000
FER FEIT
Logistics services 0 AR 75
Container storage and handling SERBRTR
services BRI AR 7% 4,084
Repair and drayage services s BB RS 5,269
Container freight station services EREMEBEIRS 15,214
Other container related services H b & AR AR5 3,041
27,608
Revenue from contracts REEFE NN
with customers 379,681 774,904
Leasing MEFB
Finance leases interest income BMEREF WA 472
Operating leases income KEREEWA 1,079
Total revenue arising from leases FHEWALLZE (M E)
(note) 2,789 1,551
Total revenue 1E R 382,470 776,455
Note:  During the year 2023, the management of the Group Wat : REZFZ=F  FEBEEEHERE

considered leasing of containers as ordinary course of
business of the Group and accordingly has classified
leases interest income as the Group’s revenue,
accordingly, the corresponding comparative figures have
been reclassified from “other income” to “revenue” to
conform with current year’s presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVEN U E (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

The Group manufactures and leases a wide range
of products including dry freight containers, tank
containers, other specialised containers (including
but not limited to collapsible flatrack containers and
offshore containers) and container parts. The Group
charged the selling price of each of containers based
on the agreed purchase order. The performance
obligation of the contract of manufacturing containers
represents producing the containers to its customers
in accordance to the industry standard requirements
stated in the purchase order (i.e. with alternative use
to the Group). The Group only provides assurance
type warranty of which no distinct goods or services
is identified. The Group sometimes requires
customers to make upfront payment before the
commencement of the production activity and the
remaining amount is to be settled within the credit
term. Revenue is therefore recognised at a point in
time when control of the containers has transferred.
Control of the containers is considered transferred
to customers upon the completion of inspection
through acknowledging the acceptance notes by
customers and delivering to specific location under
certain circumstances. Transportation and handling
activities that occur before the customer obtains
control of the containers are considered as fulfilment
activities.

REMBRRMEE

e P
E%ﬁ»%ﬁ')

HoREBFFESHHWE )

AEBLENGHEEEER  BRE%
REM - B HBEREM (2R
BARRABEAFREEMELET
KRB AREEMEM - ARERE
BENRBIIERDRBEREMBNHE
B - SRXMEHENSRBENEBRIE
HRRBIIETFRENTRREEK
(Eﬂﬁ$%lﬂﬁ*§ﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁ%}5
FESRME AKEERMREIHRL
MPER - P RIRRA B AR ek
B AREBERERREFPELER
BB ZA RN HBRRIBRERE
REINEE - EREMNE %U%E%‘y
RFER A - EERBER - BB
ffﬁ@w%ﬁ% FIEW R ER /RTXH
FAREHE - RRME G SR
BEGREP EEFPESSEEMES
W2 R RN E R AR IR RS RR S
BHIEE -
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A B IRRMEE

REVEN U E (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

Logistics services of the Group include container
storage and handling services, repair and drayage
services, container freight station services and other
container related services (collectively referred to
“container related services”). Revenue is recognised
over time when the container related services are
rendered, and is measured based on output method.
The Group generally charges the container service
fee based on either fixed daily rate or cost-plus,
which is the direct measurement of the value of
the services transferred to the customers from the
Group’s performance. The Group elects to apply
the practical expedient by recognising revenue from
logistic services in the amount to which the Group
has a right to invoice. The Group normally bills
monthly to the customers and credit term offered
to the customers is normally 30 to 60 days. The
performance obligation for logistics services is to
provide the container related services in the depot
to its customers. The Group fulfils the performance
obligation by completing the container related
services for its customers.

All manufacturing and logistics services are provided
for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to any
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and leasing and
logistics services. These divisions are the basis on
which the Group reports its segment information
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of dry freight
and leasing containers, tank containers, other
specialised containers (including
but not limited to collapsible flatrack
containers and offshore containers)
and container parts and leasing of

dry freight containers.

Logistics services - provision of container storage, repair
and trucking services, serving as
a freight station, container/cargo
handling and other container related
Services.

REMBRRMEE

7 EHE R

RAFSERABRATEAAEE
TELEREE (NERTREE) S
B2 AR BED AMEEEHM -
83 R E LB NYRRE - RAE
BB SR BRIAT 5 A1 - A
EEUZE S ARELSBEHBE
#t o

FEEBHWT -
BERHE - LELZEER BE Hi
2% HREEEN (RRBETER
BB FRERFELET
£ UREEREHER
HREEEM -
WRRE - RUESEERET - #8

I
HERY  HEW &K
f/HERE  AREME
RARNARAARTS -
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mEMBmRME
6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 6 DIER e
Information regarding these segments is presented ZESLERZHMOT
below:
Segment revenue and results DEPEERBE R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AREBKENRARESB 2 LEHETEN
and results by operating and reportable segment: HEESNWT :

Year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_Z-_=%+-A=+—HILEE

REVENUE
External sales

SEGMENT RESULTS

Finance costs
[nvestment income

Fair value loss on derivative
financial instruments

Fair value gain on financial asset
at FVTPL

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation

Manufacturing Logistics
and leasing services Total
HERBEEY MR am
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER TER TER
EXE
HIMEE 354,983 382,470
DHEEE 6,555 10,203
HEER (343)
REWA 16,569
TEERIAZ
AR EEER (365)
BORBEFABRZ
cREECAREBE
e
EEBE R R
BEEERzRE
BRIEAT & A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

REMBRRMEE

6 ﬁ%lzﬁ*ﬁ\%)
PEEEBERES w)
BE—_ZE-_—_H+-_A=1+—RIEE

Manufacturing Logistics
and leasing services Total
BERAEER Wi R ok
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEr
REVENUE EEH
External sales HINEE 748,847 27,608 776,455
SEGMENT RESULTS TEEE 84,597 2,288 86,885
Finance costs BKER (366)
Investment income HEWA 7,804
Fair value loss on derivative fTHEERTIAY
financial instruments MR EEEE (5,686)
Fair value gain on financial asset B2 EEFABEY
at FVTPL CREEZAREE
Wigs 74
Share of results of associates iy kN e 1,349
Share of results of joint ventures ~ [E(E S B ¥ £4& (135)
Profit before taxation M B Al 89,925

Segment results represent the profit earned by
each segment without allocation of finance costs,
investment income (including interest or dividend
income), fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments, fair value gain on financial asset at
FVTPL, share of results of associates and share
of results of joint ventures. This is the measure
reported to the Group’s Chief Executive Officer for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

DEEBEEDBAFZERN - ARD
RFBER - REBA (BB E A
BRA) - TEERTEZ AR EBERE
B RAALEBEAABRZEREE
ZAnBENRZD  EBEBERRZE
BREIERELRZEE - WA
BRoRMFEDBRREMAANEEE
FEITHR AR R 2 o B2 -
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A B IRRMEE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s total
assets and total liabilities by operating and reportable

segment:

As at 31 December 2023

R-ZEBE-_=%+=ZH=+—H

Manufacturing
and leasing
REREERH
Us$'000

FER

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

gE
DEEE 379,469
NN PR 3
REBRE ER

ADERRREE

AHAE 109,438
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DEER )
PEHEERERE

Logistics

services

W R
Us$'000

TER

11,931

AEBEZKLENAREDHCBEER
mEBEIWMT -

Total

b
Us$'000
Fxr

398,763

15,569

6,353

335,782

756,467

121,369

20,463

141,832




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRRME
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DHER
Segment assets and liabilities (continved) THEEREE®)
OTHER INFORMATION HE&EH
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-S-=f+-A=+—HILLEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit BARitED BRI AEENT T
or loss or segment assets: B -
Manufacturing Logistics
and leasing services Total
RERHEEYR W R By
UsS$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TER TER TER

Additions of capital expenditure L EAE X

Depreciation expense (note) WEEBR(K)

Impairment losses under BHERBEX
expected credit loss model, R T MBRE R
net of reversal GONEREREES

Reversal of provision of inventories 77§ & 7 21

Gain (loss) on disposal of HEME - KR RRE
property, plant and equipment Wz (EE)

Loss on property, plant and SHEEIE - HeEs LRiE
equipment written off pd i
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A B IRRMEE

6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continuea)

As at 31 December 2022

6 DOHER
PEHEEREE#)

RZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H

Manufacturing Logistics
and leasing Services Total
BERMERT Wi B pakE)
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TErn TErn
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 355,777 20,596 376,373
Interests in associates N AN 5 15,768
Interests in joint ventures REELE ER 6,302
Unallocated corporate assets APEARBE 413,810
Consolidated total assets BEBEES 812,253
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilties HBa 118,287 16,151 134,438
Unallocated corporate liabilites ~ AAE AT ERE 18,938
Consolidated total liabilities LAABESE 153,376
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continuea)

OTHER INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

DEER )
PEEEREE #)

BE_Z-_—"F+-_A=1+—HIFE

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit ARGtENPIESA D NEENS S
or loss or segment assets: B -
Manufacturing Logistics
and leasing services Total
BERBEER W B A% k]
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn
Additions of capital expenditure HEERRY 22,999 593 23,592
Depreciation expense (note) WEERNZ) 10,091 1,601 11,692
Impairment losses under BHERAX
expected credit loss model, B TR B 5
net of reversal CONRIEREES (21) (1) (22)
Provision of inventories GFERE 1,633 = 1,633
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEME « BEK
property, plant and equipment FfE 2 W (BE) 528 (3) 525
Loss on property, plant and HEYE - BER
equipment written off Fe BB 223 8 231
Note:  Certain amounts were capitalised in inventories during the Wt - BHEHEEREE—_FT-_—FR-_F-=

years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The amounts included in other information are part of

the operating and reportable segments.

F+ A=+ A RN EESER
e

B 1 BR R RIR T8 N Rl R
¥
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

6 SEGMENT |NFORMAT|0N (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continuea)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures and unallocated corporate
assets, which include equity instrument at
FVTOCI, financial asset at FVTPL, certain
property, plant and equipment, certain other
receivables, tax recoverable and cash and
deposits with banks. Assets used jointly by
reportable segments are allocated on the basis
of the revenue earned by individual reportable
segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated corporate
liabilities, which include amount due to
immediate holding company, amounts due
to associates, amounts due to joint ventures,
derivative financial instruments, tax payable
and deferred tax liabilities. Liabilities for which
reportable segments are jointly liable are
allocated in proportion to segment liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 6

Geographical information

The Group’s operations, including both the
manufacturing and logistics services division, are
located in the PRC; while the leasing division is
operated in Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue by geographical market, based on
the location of customers for manufacturing and
leasing segment and based on the origin of the
goods/services for logistics services segment:

Year ended 31 December 2023

REMBRRMEE

DEE R =)
& o EE R

AEBZEY  BREREERYRRE
D H i’]hﬁ’\ﬂiﬂl mAE D #BAE
HRLE

THREBBEREREEEBDBHE,
FIT7E 30 LA B2 9037 BR 7% 7 3B %fl:‘l:&l/ﬁﬁ
BHR - BTSN AEE 2 &
RE

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE-R-CEtR=T-HLEE E_TCCET-ACT-BILER
Manufacturing Logistics Manufacturing Logistics
and leasing services Total and leasing Services Total
RER HER

BERE R
Us§'000 Us$'000

Ti7 Tin
Europe N 88,058 -
PRC " 84,711 21481
Hong Kong &4 60,598
Taiwan 4 50,223
United States of America  £F|2ARE 25,265
Middle East mE 18,965
Singapore g 11,843
Malaysia SRES 3,554
Korea k{5 625
Indonesia HERAT 381
India HE 269

Others i 10,491

Tofal st 354,983 271,481

2% EEES N b
Us$'000 US§1000 US$000 US1000
Tin &R T T&n

88,058 107,114 = 107,114
112,198 64,949 27608 92,957
60,598 230,358 = 230,358
90,223 29,015 = 29,015
25,265 46936 = 46936
18,965 78,663 = 78,663
11,843 144,882 = 144,882
3,954 4,269 = 4.269
625 9,1% = 9,1%
381 10,543 = 10,543
269 6,992 = 6,992
10,491 15,930 = 15,930

382410 748,847 27,608 77645
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A KRR

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION ccontinved) 6 2IEER
Geographical information (continued) HWESHBER @)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of NTEEME(BEMEM) DTIER
non-current assets (other than financial instruments, BEE(SRMTE - M EWHRIERE
other receivables and trade receivables), analysed by W BRZRERAN) 2 BRE VR B -

the geographical area in which the assets are located:

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —Eg=-=
+=A +=A
=t+-—H =t—H
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
PRC =8 139,411 147,083
Hong Kong BB 46,723 35,154
Others Hp 1,463 1,378
187,597 183,615
Information about major customers FTERXFEH
During the year 2023, there is one customer (2022: RZEZ=FR F—UEPERH
one customer) contribute over 10% of the total HBBEHEEEIOVANLE(ZETE =
sales. The customer contributes over 10% of the F:—fUBP) ZEBBREIRE
total sales amounted to US$38,850,000 (2022: EHIOANEZEFHEIEER 7%
US$106,915,000) in aggregate. 38,850,000 ;. (— & = =

106,915,000F 7T) ©
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mEMBEBRRMTE
OTHER INCOME 7 Ha g A
2023 2022
—E== g
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest earned on bank deposits RITF A EWA 5,056
Interest earned on bank deposits JREIEA R BB =& A/
with original maturity over |ITIFHFBWA
3 months 218
Imputed interest income from JENCEE 2 B F S
consideration receivable A 604
Dividend income from equity BEARBEGAHAMm
instrument at FVTOCI FHWE ESZTA
SN ON 1,926
Governments grants B 1,432
Rental income from leased MEMZENHHES KA
properties 1,989
Others B 984
12,209

During the year 2023, the Group received
US$829,000 (2022: US$1,432,000) from the local BT #E8829,000k L (—ZE = —
government authorities for the encouragement on 1,432,000 ) EAEBH T X%E
economic contribution to the industry development M E T B - B AR A E &5 -
with no specific conditions attached.

RZZE-Z=ZFR AEEEKIEH
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A B IRRMEE

8 FINANCE COSTS

8 HHKEH

Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities
Bank charges

2023

—E-=F

Us$’000

FER

RITIERFE 46
HEARNE

RITFEE 90

343

9 OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9 HttmkEE

2023
—EC=F
Us$’000
FEx

Net exchange loss

Fair value loss on derivative
financial instruments

Fair value gain on financial assets
at FVTPL

Fair value loss on investment
properties

Adjustment to consideration
receivables

Impairment losses under
expected credit loss model,
net of reversal

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on property, plant and
equipment written off

PE 5 5 1R 2R
ITEEmMTAZ
DREEEE
BRfEER AR
ZEBMEBEZRAR
(EREL 6
BREMEZ AR EE
18
HEWHEBENRE

BEHERBREAT
FORR @ 5 B R B 18 5k

HEME - #s R
Rz et
TR HaE R
R B
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2022
T

US$'000

F=ET

287
79

366

2022
—=——

R —

US$'000
TET

(8,122)

(5,686)

74

(909)

(3,360)

22

525

(231)

(17,687)




10 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after

charging (crediting) the following:

REMBRRMEE

Auditors’ remuneration

Research and development costs
— Included in cost of sales
— Included in administrative
expenses

Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefit costs
(note 12)

Depreciation expense
— Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
— Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

10 BR#H A& A
BREADEFE R (K R) THI&IE -
2023 2022
—E_-= —EFE——
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
1% SR B & 447
&R
—BEEHEERAF 4,597
—BEETHERT
1,861
6,458
BEKRA  BIEESHE
— e hEMEF 89,019
— IRRAE A 3K
(Kta£12) 2,805
91,824
wEEH
— W% - R REE
e 7,780
—(FHAEEETE
3,912
11,692
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mEMBmRME
10 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continvea) 10 BRBANEF )
2023 2022
—E-=F g
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FEx
Share of taxation charge of FEAG B & R R T IE
associates 366
Share of taxation charge of ElEaERERIE
joint ventures 4
370
Gross rental income from HEMEMR S W ARLRE
investment properties (1,871)
Less: direct operating expenses B AFEERSKWA
incurred for investment IR E Y HEE AR
properties that generated HEREER
rental income during the year 305
(1,566)
Cost of inventories recognised EHEREBRA TE
as expense (including reversal A (BIEFEERE
of provision of inventories 2 BI#8426,0003€ 7T
US$426,000 (2022:provision (ZB=——F : 7&
of inventories US$1,633,000)) B#51,633,000% 1)) 325,942 629,324
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mEMBRRME

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 11 EBRAEBESHFMAL

INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS ZEE
The following was the emoluments paid or payable to LTAEENSENAN(ZE=Z
each of the 9 (2022: 8) directors of the Company. N)EEZEEME -
2023 —EC-=F
Independent
Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Non-executive Directors
UrEs FyTES BUFHTES

Teo  Chung Siu Lau Chan Kwa  Cheng Lau Ho
Siong  PuiKing, WaiYee, ManYee,  Kwok Wee FuKwok,  HoKit, Teck
Seng Rehecca  Wimnie Vanessa  leung  Keng  David lvan  Cheong  Total
RNE ERR BB YRE RER FER PEE YUK MRS AF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$000
Tin TEin fEn TEn FTEn TEn fEn TEn TEn iR
(Notea) ~ (Noteh)  (Notec) ~ (Note d)
(Wita) (Wib) (Wie) (Wito)

Fees ik
Other emoluments: Ethie -
Salaries and other FeRit
benefits &l
Contributions to RAERIES:
retirement
benefit scheme

Performance related 2 RIEE
incentive payments REINH
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A B IRRMEE

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 11 EBRAEBESHFMAL

INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continvea) ZWE =)
2022 —E-=
Independent
Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Non-executive Directors
H1ES HITES BUFHTES

Teo  Chung Chan Tan Kwa  Cheng Lau Ho

Siong  Pui King, Kwok Chor Wee  FuKwok,  HoKit, Teck
Seng  Rebecca Leung Kee Keng David lvan  Cheong Total
®E 8RR RER REE ARE 9%E T4 MES |
US$000  US$000  USHO00  USFO00  USFO00  USHO00  US$000  US$000  US$000
T TEr TEr TR TEr TR TEr TER TEn

(Note ¢)
(Wiite)
Fees %2
Other emoluments: At - 61 R R 29 4 61 64 46 370
Salaries and HeREM
other benefits &l 476 290 - - - - - - 766
Contributions to RIVEMER
retirement
benefit scheme 24 15 - - - - - - 39
Performance related $ERAS
incentive payments BENT 1,158 bl = = - = = = 1219

1,719 398 32 P 45 bl 64 o 23%

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Kt -
Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie has been appointed as executive (a) FEELXITR-_F-_=F—A—AHZ
director with effect from 1 January 2023. FRALBIRTTESE -
Ms. Lau Man Yee, Vanessa has been appointed as non- (b) BHELXIR-_F-_=—FMA-—AKZ
executive director with effect from 1 April 2023. FRAELNBIFENITES -
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung has resigned as non-executive (c) [HEBR‘EER-F-_=F_H=+1MHA
director with effect from 24 February 2023. BEERRAIHHTESF -
Mr. Kwa Wee Keng has resigned as non-executive director (d) HEELER-F-_=F/H—HFFE
with effect from 1 April 2023. KREIHFBITESE -
Mr. Tan Chor Kee has retired as non-executive director (e) BHERALHER-_F-_—_FAA=Z+HRE
with effect from 30 September 2022. FARLBIHHTESE -
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REMBRRMEE

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 11 EERTBRRSHFMAL
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) ZENE e
Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive Officer RINEEETIARRIEFEITRBE
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above NEBEBEsMe R REMIEREFIT
include those for services rendered by him as the A FTIR LR RB 2B & -
Chief Executive Officer.
The executive directors’ fees are for their services HITES 2 EAERARIEEIR
as the directors of the Company and their other HREHNE - B Fat S T 5k
emoluments shown above were for their services BEEBEARNRMAEBREHEEBY
in connection with the management of the affairs RIS E o FulIEMITES MBI IF
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive HITESMETMEABRATRIZES
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’ FTig RSB BN & -
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
The above analysis includes 3 (2022: 2) directors FaomEREASEEREA RS
whose emoluments were among the five highest paid MATHRHEPZ=%2(=ZF ==
individuals in the Group. Details of the aggregate MEZ)ES - BEESMEZ(—ZE—_—
emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (2022: 3) F:=ZR)BAEEERERRTHA
individuals whose emoluments were among the five T8 MABIA Lt EEMES A
highest paid individuals in the Group and which have ZAT HEFEBEHFBWT -
not been included in directors’ emoluments above
are set out below:
2023 2022
—E-= -
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT
Salaries and other benefits e kHmEF 1,321
Retirement benefit costs RRTEF LR 35
1,356
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A B IRRMEE

11

12

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continuea)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

11

US$127,681 — US$191,522
(Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000)
US$191,523 — US$255,363
(HK$ 1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000)

127,681% T —191,522
% 7t.(1,000,0005% 7T —
1,500,000/ 7T

191,523% T — 255,363
% 7t(1,500,0017% T —

2,000,000 7T )

US$893,769 - US$957,610
(HK$ 7,000,000 — HK$7,500,000)

893,769% 7T — 957,610
£ 7t(7,000,000% 7T —

7,500,000/ 7T)

EERTEEESFHAL
ZHE e
®E2MEHETSIEHE -
2023 2022
—Z2-= —ZT—_=
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AH N
1
1
1

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was
paid to directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals during both years.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The Group has joined MPF scheme for all employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (continued)

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes. Obligations under the scheme are
borne by the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or
loss representing contributions payable by the Group
to the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong and the
retirement benefit schemes in the PRC amounted to
US$2,899,000 (2022: US$2,805,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees
leaving the retirement schemes and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

12

REMBRRMEE

RAIREFER )

REBESEI2RA - BEREE
B & ABBRERE 2 XA S #
Ko ARBHR BB ZE—FE
BIRITZ AT EIE IR o WP ALK
A FOBUE AR SRERF 2 IS (K

R EZ B A RNEES T BB
FTEIB 2P RIRIRETEICE - HTB R
AAREEHEETEDLAULEE
R o T8l 2 B EAET AR BER
RaE -

BEENBRZRAEAER AL
EEMNTZEEEBRLZAERES
STEIUREPRZEBRE 2K
4 #£2,899,000E (=T ==
2,805,000 7T) °

HEARE 2 R EHRFRNKGE AL E
BOR Wz R E BIERIR A E 2 1
R - RBEHR > AEELLER
B BBEFARINGT S - RBEEARAOBUE
REBHFE 2O MR -
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12

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (continued)

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong,
pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57, the Group has the obligation to pay Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) to qualifying employees in Hong
Kong under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by
employers or upon retirement), subject to a minimum
of 5 years employment period, based on certain
formula.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance passed in 1995 permits
the Group to utilise the Group’s mandatory MPF
contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting
LSP payable to an employee (the “Offsetting
Arrangement’).

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17
June 2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset the LSP. The Abolition will
officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e., 1 May
2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR
is also expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to
assist employers for a period of 25 years after the
Transition Date on the LSP payable by employers up
to a certain amount per employee per year. Under the
Amendment Ordinance, the accrued benefits derived
from the Group’s Enhanced MPF Scheme, minus
the mandatory contributions, made pre-, on or post-
transition can continue to be used to offset pre- and
post-transition LSP. The impact from the Amendment
Ordinance on the Group’s LSP liability is considered
insignificant.
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mEMBEBRRMTE
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FIEHEMAX
No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as there A REEEYBEERBEFN -
was no taxable profit during both years. IR R EMNER o
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on RS A FE R ERR
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the WA IEARNEF N BEZES R 7 IRTT
rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the MERE o
Group operates.
2023 2022
—EC-=HF —=E-—
Us$’000 US$'000
FERx F=ET
Current tax: REFRIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ZEFTE R
— Current year —ARFEE 29,818
— Overprovision in prior years — AR F [ % [t 845 (8)
29,810
Deferred tax (note 37): EERIB(H5237) -
— Current year credit —AREEHKR (208)
— Withholding tax on undistributed — AP EEFEAR S
profits 3,758
3,550
Income tax expense for the year REEMEHIBRS 33,360
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in
the PRC, PRC subsidiaries qualified as Hi-Tech
Enterprise are entitled to a favorable tax rate of 15%
for PRC enterprise income tax. The tax rate of the
other PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

13

FrEHER X »

RIBHBEMBRBERIER T
BRMEXERNPENBARATEAR
15%M B EERESHEBRRRK o H
R BB A BB K B25% -

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Profit before taxation BR%E AT 89,925
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 25% LABRF R A25%
(2022: 25%) (ZZE-—4F : 25%)E 22,481
Tax effect of share of results of NG -
associates Mg 2 (337)
Tax effect of share of results of joint ~ E(LABE T EEY
ventures M2 34
Tax effect of expenses that are not Tt & R T% Fs
deductible in determining taxable TEERzTHZ
profit M2 14,384
Tax effect of income that are not taxable £ 5t & f& 2 51 32 K B B8 32
in determining taxable profit M2 WAZ BT 2 (3,478)
Tax effect on tax losses arising in the ~ RAREEREER Y
current year not recognised MEEB G E 2,402
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRARNFERERRZ
previously not recognised MIZEB G E (1,714)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits 7 23 B2 7l 88 A9 48 3,758
Tax relief related to additional tax ERTf 7T B FH A M RB AN UK
deduction on research expenses BRE AR LOR R
incurred (note) (KisE) (2,582)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AEMEZR 2 A E B
difference not recognised ER BB E (930)
Others Hib (658)
Tax charge at effective rate for BRAFEERBEHRL
the year HIA X 33,360
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mEMBEBRRMTE
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuea) 13 FIEBEMAX @

Note:  Pursuant to relevant law and regulations, the PRC Wi - RIBIFBHZRER LA - HEIHTE 2 FlGE
subsidiaries that incurred sufficient qualifying research ELECHEEBHHEER  FEA5
and development costs and qualified as Hi-Tech TR EER  REERHJZEZEE
Enterprise are entitled to a tax deduction of 10% on i3 10% 89 B4 B R o
Enterprise Income Tax for both years.

14 DIVIDENDS 14 RE
Dividends recognised as distributions during the REANERREDIKARE
year:
2023 2022
—EB-=F -
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interim dividend in respect NEFREE 2 R HIAR B
of the current financial year —FREBERLBW
— HK1 cent (2022: HK4 cents) T F 8K
per ordinary share T BARAE) 12,317
Final dividend in respect FMEREE 2 RERKRE
of the previous financial year — BT BRI
— HK2 cents (2022: HK11 cents) (ZE=-——%F: 5K
per ordinary share A1 1) 33,881
Special dividend in respect R R E—ERFEE
of the current and 2 K RIRR B
previous financial year — FRERARL7AEL
— HK17 cents (2022: HK25 cents) (ZZB=——F : %
per ordinary share AR 25810) 77,396

An interim dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary FAE BT LA EIRL B - A 4

share, total of which equivalent to approximately S pA 4923822000 7T (FHE R 4

HK$23,822,000 (equivalent to approximately 3,055,000 T )R=_E=-=F+=A1

US$3,055,000) was declared and paid during the =+ BIFEETRERIES -

year ended 31 December 2023.

—To—aaR @ gHsEcEsRAT 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

14

DlVlDENDS (Continued)

An interim special dividend of HK17 cents per
ordinary share, total of which equivalent to
approximately HK$404,975,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$51,933,000) was declared and
paid during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The final dividend of HK2 cents in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 per ordinary share, total
of which equivalent to approximately HK$47,644,000
(equivalent to approximately US$6,079,000) were
approved by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting held on 23 June 2023 and was distributed
on 21 July 2023.

The final dividend of HK4 cents in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 per ordinary share, total
of which equivalent to approximately HK$95,288,000
(equivalent to approximately US$12,216,000)
has been proposed by the board of directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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HE-_T-_—_F+-A=+—HIF
EERLBR2BIKPRE &4
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mEMBRRME
15 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 EXERER
The calculation of basic earnings per share AN E AR R (R B AT AT TR A
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TEEE -
following data:
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E=-=
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FET

Earnings: AT :

Profit for the purposes of calculating #FMNstEERFR BT 2

basic earnings per share i ) 46,340
Number of shares: RI7EH -

Weighted average number of ordinary ¥ At EERNEFR BT 2
shares for the purpose of BN EE
calculating basic earnings per share

Ay IR 2 411,359,693

No diluted earnings per share was presented as the ARARNBIEMFREBEND T
Company has no potential ordinary shares in issue in TEA% B R A EEIRINE -
both years.
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 ¥ - HBERRME

Leasehold
[and and Furniture,
buildings fittings
and site Leased Plant and and office Motor  Construction
improvements ~~ Containers ~ machinery ~ equipment vehicles ~ in progress Total
AELHR B& £ER
BrRisdr RERKE  HERRE  BOZRR RE  RBIR ]
Us§000 Us§000 Us§000 US§000 US§000 US§000 Us§000
T S T T T4 T T
Cost B
At 1 January 2022 R=F--F-f-A 73397 - 66,420 3664 3993 2,006 149480
Translation differences ~ HE£E (109) - (618) (41) (29) - (1,780)
Additions (Note) REHZ) 8 8891 2672 21 3 7054 19,388
Disposals e - - (496) (18) (519) - (1,033)
Write off i - - (1,139 (110) (177) - (1,426)
Transfer 25 1630 - 5,100 408 B (7.236) -
At31 December 202 WZE-F
+ZA=1-H 73,963 8801 71,939 434 3688 1824 164,629
Translation differences ~ HEZ%E (197) - (110) (7) (5) = (319)
Additons (Note) REH) 4 14138 71 A7 2% 4481 19,645
Disposals e (228) 9 (770) 82 (603) = (1,692)
Write off it - - (25) 83) (38) - (376)
Transfer fidd 764 = 2634 127 177 (3.702) -
At 31 December 2023
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REMBRRMEE

16 Y% - BRRE

(Continued)
Leasehold
[and and Furniture,
buildings fitings
and site Leased Plant and and office Motor  Construction
improvements ~~ Containers ~ machinery ~ equipment vehicles  in progress Total
RELHE B8 KER
BTRisdR REREE  HEDRE  BOTRE RE  EBIR #E
US§000 US§ 000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US§000
Tin e S T T T Tin
Accumulated depreciation  EREHEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2022 R_E-_%-F-H 29,324 - 39,344 2830 1,583 - 73,081
Translation differences ~ HEZE (680) - (378) (36) 23) - (117
Charge for the year KEEHE 3084 437 3632 ks 268 - 7780
Hliminated on disposals £ - - (434) (17) (460) - (A11)
Himnated onwrite off 5585518 - - (935) (%0) (170) - (1,19)
At31 December 202  WZE==
t-A=1-H 31728 437 41229 3,046 1198 - 71638
Translation differences ~~ HEZE (132) - (70) (6) 4 - (212)
Charge for the year KEEHE 291 634 3940 59 35 - 8459
Eliminated on disposals ~~ HiE%H# 2) (1) (684) (13) (544) - (1,304)
Eiminated onwrte ot~ 5F 883 - - (226) (79) (34) - (335)
M31December2023  W=F=zf
+ZA=1-A
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2023 RoE
t28
At31 December 202 WZFZZ
t-A=1-H 4223 8,454 30,710 1218 2490 1824 86991
Note:  During the year of 2023, included in the additions, there Wt RZFZ=ZFA  BBRELXFE

was transfer of leased assets from inventories amounted to

US$14,138,000 (2022: US$8,891,000).

WEF  FEFEBBEHEER
E 14138000 % T ( = F = — F :
8,891,000% T ) °

—To—aER @ gHsEcEsRAT 199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 1% - WMBRRE =

(Continued)
The carrying value of land and buildings of the Group AEBENTHWREFCREEES T
is analysed as follows: R
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i i
—E-= Tz
+=A +=A
=t—H =t+—H
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FETT
Leasehold land and buildings HE+THRET 8,636
Site improvements THIEA R 33,599
42,235
The land and building elements of a lease of land T REFHELOFH LM REFES
and building cannot be allocated reliably between the EEAN T HEEFH LB RS
land and building elements, the entire lease is treated BMEAEEBEEDE M LEE -

as property, plant and equipment.
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17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Leasehold lands
Leasehold properties

Carrying amount

Depreciation charge

Expense relating to short-term
leases with lease terms
within 12 months

Expense relating to leases of
low-value assets, excluding short-
term leases of low value assets

Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right-of-use assets

mEMBRRME
17 FRAEEE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-IB-=% PN-_E_—
+=A +—H
=t+—8H =+—H
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
HE T 33,306
HEYZE 5,824
EEE(EE 39,130
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BZE HE
—E-= —_F_—
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEE EFE
Us$'000 Us$'000
FErx FET
WEEH 3,912
HEHRI2EAREIHZ
MHHEMREER
645
KEBEEMNHEBEHEE
BER(KEBEEN
RHAEERIN) 2
BHER RN 3,685
5 A& BN 4,204
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A B IRRMEE

17

RlGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one
to five years, but may have extension and termination
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are
primarily located and office buildings. The Group
is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only
if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for certain premises and office equipment. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to
which the short-term lease expense incurred during
the year.

During the current year, lease liabilities of
US$1,083,000 (2022: US$4,046,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets
attributable to new leases entered into/leases
modified. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor and the
relevant leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes. In addition, certain lease
agreements were early terminated and therefore
certain right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were
derecognised without significant gain or loss. These
are major non-cash transactions of the current year.
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mEMBEBRRMTE
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REW=

US$'000

FET

FAIR VALUE NREE

At 1 January 2022 NR-ZE-_—_F—HF—H 37,913
Change in fair value DR EBEEES (909)
Exchange adjustment B 5, 3 =& (1,674)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+=-_A=+—H 35,330
Change in fair value DA EBEEEZS (2,647)
Exchange adjustment b AR (303)

At 31 December 2023

R-ZE-_=%+=-A=+—H

The Group’s property interest held under operating
lease to earn rental is measured using the fair
value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
the respective dates by Avista Valuation Advisory
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected to the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The fair value of investment properties is determined
by using income capitalisation approach. The income
capitalisation approach is calculated by capitalising
the rental income derived from the existing tenancies
with due provision for any reversionary income
potential.

AEBZYMERZ DAL EHOF
B BEURDES  ZEWEEZIA
BREMEARALARAEBEENGE -

AEBREMER-_T-_=ZFR=_F
TZF+ZA=+—HBNAREBET
BB EMTFGEFAEBERATNES B
HEETHEERS D - XEBABY
AEREE GBI HEAEEETM
oped

AR EMENRAAEBER 25D
ENRSEERRERERERKA
ﬁ o

BREMEN LA BERABRABERL
TRRETE - WMABRNMEMETE AR
HIRBAEONEESBABERE - LY
EREBENNBABE L EE B -
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A B IRRMEE

18

The investment properties are categorised into Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy and below is a table
which presents the significant unobservable inputs as

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

Valuation technique

f&EA%

18

BEYE o)

BREMESERARBEIBEAMN
F=H TERTBE-FT_=F
tZA=+—

AT -_—_F+_HA

=t HEXTAEENGA -

Significant unobservahle inputs
EXFTRENEA

Sensitivity

Bt

Fair value
MEE
2023 2022
“E-ZE -ZoCE
US$000  USS000
Tin TEn
Investment properties 17,660
inthe PRC
BRI

Income capitalisation

LON-u(d
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Capitalisation rate, taking into account
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property, and
prevailing market condition, of 7.4%
(2022:8.0%).

By RBT4%(—E- 25 :80%)
ZEReARNEME  MRLE
REARTHER -

Monthly market rent at
RMB32.4 (2022: RMB34.1)
per sqm per month.
§RMREABAETARARY
RAT(ZBZF: \RE3MIT) -

A slight increase in the capitalisation
rate used would result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and vice versa.

AR EREHENREH A BE
BERD R

A significant increase in the market
rent used would result in a significant
increase in fair value, and vice versa.

fRmAHEHBEEENEEN
ArBEMEZEM K2R
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REMBRRME
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18 BEWE »)
Fair value Valuation technique Significant unobservahle inputs Sensitivity
MEE ER% EXFTRENEA g
2023 2022
ZE-CE —ECC
US$'000  USS000
Tin e
Investment properties 17670 Income capitalisation ~ Capitalisation rate, taking into account the ~ A slight increase in the capitalisation
in Hong Kong capitalisation of rental income potential,  rate used would result in a significant
nature of the property, and prevailing ~ decrease in fair value, and vice versa
market condition, of 3% (2022: 3%)
URERHRENR L ON-v(d AMERIG(ZE-2F:3%) 2 EMCEEMENRETALBRE
ERERARNERL NXKER  BERD RIFR-
RETHER -
Monthly market rent at HK$24.6 (2022: A significant increase in the market
HK$25.0) per sq. feet per month. rent used would result in a significant
increase in fair value, and vice versa.
FATEHEABABTAXR FRmAHENBEEENEEN
BTUGT(ZE-ZF:501m)  DABENEEEM ReH% -
35,330
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during PR ERISSEEASEEE =B o
both years.
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RE P BHRMEE
19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REFERTZ2ER
2023 2022
FER FTET
US$'000 US$000
FERx TET

Unlisted shares and investments: LTI RIEE -

At cost B 11,962
Share of post-acquisition reserves,  fE{5 UL BE 12 (s
net of dividend received A E WA B 3,806
15,768
Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=FRZZT__F+=A
and 2022 are set out below: =+—B AEEZFEBERRZ
EIF NN
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Group’s equity Proportion of voting ~ Principal
operation interest power held activities
R/
REEWE KRB RE FsRRELA  TEXR
Name 2023 2022 2023 2022
45 “E-CE -ZE-C-F ZE-ZE —ZE-CF
Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. (“NVC")* ~ PRC 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%"  Provision of
container storage
and repair
services
ERRBERERAR(EREE]) ik REESRRER
REBRS
Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd. * Thailand 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0%"  Provision of
container storage
and repair
services
%E RESERER
R ER%
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REMBRRMEE

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuea) 19 REEE QT 2R )
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Group’s equity Proportion of voting ~ Principal
operation interest power held activities
/R
REELY FEEFRERE FrisRaELs  FEEER
Name 2023 2022 2023 2022
28 “E-ZE -E--F ZEC-ZE -“Z-CF
Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas PRC 35.0%" 35.0%" 28.6%" 28.6%"  Provision of
Container Co., Ltd. * container storage,
repair and
trucking services,
and servingas a
freight station
EFREBRERER AT i RS RMRE
HERIBERS
REEIR
ALS Singamas Logistics Limited India 30.0%" 30.0%" 25,0%" 25.0%"  Provision of liquid
fank logistics
operation
1l AR R IER
e 37
Qingdao Singamas International PRC 25.2%" 25.2%" 40.0%" 40.0%"  Provision of
Logistics Co., Ltd.” container storage
and repair
services
EEEREIE MR BRA RS e RS RAER
R EIR
& Associate held directly by the Company * KAFEEFEBZHEANF]
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance # RIBEBEBZGI RAEERF KL 1w
with relevant laws and regulations E-rEd

In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital i HE BT REEF MR LA
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A B IRRMEE

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continvea)

Summarised financial information of material

associates:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associates’ financial

19 REENT 2D )

EXBERRNMBERNRE

EEAEBEABERR ZHBEER
MBEHINMT - TR 2T HERRE
RIRBEEVBRE ERRENIT B
BRZBERRMBRRPATZE

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. % o
The associate is accounted for using the equity BMENFIRAREFGAS B REEA
method in these consolidated financial statements. BEEEAEE o
NVC
BRRE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=HF —EFE-=
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FE7T
Current assets TmENEE 5,924
Non-current assets EREEE 28,468
Current liabilities mENEE (4,243)
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE (2,938)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuea)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue ]
Profit for the year F A
Other comprehensive expense FAREMEZES N

for the year

REMBRRMEE

19 REENT 2D )

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BLEE

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

FAREENKE () B

Dividends received by the Group
from the associate during the year

AEBRFRNEBE QA
W Z B R

2023 2022
—E-=HF =SS
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FE7T
13,738
2,121
(2,630)
(509)
1,162

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests

in the associates recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

E B E R B AR A M S MR
R E NP REEHE

Net assets of the material associate

J\

ERBENE cBEFE

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in material associate

REBREABE A Z
2 ) R (B

NVC
ERREB

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2023 2022

—EB-=F g

Us$'000 US$'000
TER TR
27,211
10,885
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A B IRRMEE

19

Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material:

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuea)

19 MNEENTIZER

FEHEE B ERRNESER

The Group’s share of profit
for the year

The Group’s share of other
comprehensive expense

The Group’s share of total
comprehensive income (expense)

Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group’s interests in these
associates at 31 December

20

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Unlisted shares and investments:

At cost

Share of post-acquisition reserves,
net of dividend received

2023 2022
—E-=HF T
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
REEEML 2 AF R
500
REBEEGE ZEM
FEZM (756)
AEEEGZE2E KR
() #ezs (256)
R+ A=+—HAKH
L EE R RIBRREE
4,883
20 REELXE o ER
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
LMD RIZE -
B 5,429
FE(L IR B 18 R -
B E U B 873
6,302
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Particulars of joint ventures as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 are set out below:

REMBRRMEE

20 REELXEZER

RZE_=ZFR-_F_—_F+=A1
=t+—B AKEEZFELBENEH

BT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Group's equity Proportion of voting  Principal
operation interest power held activities
R/
REELY TEEERE FrisRrglLhl  TEXHR
Name 2023 2022 2023 2022
2% ZBC=E -ZE--fF -ZECZE -E-CE
Dalian Singamas International PRC 33.3%  Provision of
Container Co., Ltd. (“DSIC") ** container storage
and repair
Services
NEBMERERA HE RS RART
BRAR(AERE])" REERS
Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 40.0%  Provision of
container storage
and repair
Services
RNBHEEERAF" i REERMRERE
K& RS
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance # RIEB R ZOI RMERF B 7.2 #

with relevant laws and regulations.

These companies are accounted for as joint ventures
as at respective period end date as in accordance with
the memorandum and articles of the companies, major
financial and operating policies of these companies
require the unanimous consent of all directors of the joint
ventures.

BELE -

. WRIFE R AR MERE - FLNF]
EEEBNHABEAEREELEA
R BN AT B EHEERERT
ZREPENTREEF HFAE -
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A B IRRMEE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES continvesy 20

Summarised financial information of material joint
venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity

REELEZER

EAAELENMGERE -
ERAEEEAAELEZHBER
BERSIMT - FRZHBENEES

RIRBEEVBRE ERRENIT B
BERZABLEMBERRPATZE

BECERAEBEGSMEHRKREA
A

method in these consolidated financial statements. BEZEAER o
DSIC KEE R
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —ET-=
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Current assets mENEE 3,782
Non-current assets ERBEE 13,746
Current liabilities mEBE (3,117)
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REMBRRMEE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES continvesy 20 MNEEBLXEZEZR o
DSIC (continuea) kgﬂ#ﬁ('@)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BL=EE

2023 2022
—EB-=F g
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Revenue et 6,843
Profit for the year F A 39
Other comprehensive expense FAEMEE S H
for the year (1,292)
Total comprehensive income FREEMUE(ZH)E5E
(expense) for the year (1,253)
Dividends received by the Group REBRFABEE QA
from the joint venture during WER 2 AR 2
the year -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial BB ER B A S ERE T
information to the carrying amount of the interest ERZ NEBMBEBREREERR A A
in DSIC recognised in the consolidated financial ERREEER -
statements:
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= =
US$’000 US$’000
FEn TEIT
Net assets of the joint venture EEEEEFE 14,411
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7~ £2 B 7 A& B 2
interest in DSIC Fr B etz 2 Lo 1Bl 5,310
Other adjustments H gz (85)
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBRRERR 2
interest in DSIC HERAEREE 5,225
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A B IRRMEE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES coninies 20 MEEBELE 2R

Aggregate information of joint venture that is not HERFEREEZABLENGEER -
individually material:

2023 2022
—E-=HF —EFE-=

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FE7T

The Group’s share of profit (loss) REERGEZARFE

for the year s ) (B 1) (150)
The Group’s share of other AEE G 2 EAth
comprehensive expense Z2HEXH (118)
The Group’s share of total AEEELGZEER
comprehensive income (expense)  Yas (X ) 458 (268)
Aggregate carrying amount of the RT-_A=+—HBHA%H
Group's interest in these joint BEEELEAREE
ventures as at 31 December 1,077
21 EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI 21 BAREBEFARMEME
WEzERTH
2023 2022
—E=-= T
Us$'000 UsS$'000
FER F=T
Unlisted security FELmES m 28,367
The Group's unquoted equity investment represented REEEAZIIF IMBEHRELEFE
14.0% (2022: 14.0%) equity interest of Xiamen EffRIEREHEEEREKRODAERA
Xiangyu Superchain Supply Chain Development Co., Al14.0%(ZEFE=ZZ—F :14.0% ) I fEsE
Ltd., a logistic company established in the PRC. = A PTRRBIR Y 2R AT e
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23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI

(Continued)

The directors of the Company have elected to
designate this investment in equity instrument at
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term
fluctuations in this investment’s fair value in profit or
loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy
of holding this investment for long-term purposes
and realising its performance potential in the long
run. This investment is not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s financial asset at
FVTPL represents investment in an unlisted equity
investment. The investment is classified as financial
asset at FVTPL at initial recognition and measures at
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

INVENTORIES

21

22

23

REMBRRMEE

BARBEFAHEMZH
Wiz EmZ TR e

ARREFEEREBZREEER/RR
nEBEEAAEMEZAREZESET
A EEHERARAEFHERRZ
FRENAABENEHRBNER
HEARESRERNBAERZFRER
ERERERBERANRBEAN - Z
REVWIFFEEEBRRBMB IR
BREGEEE -

BARBEFARRZZE
mMEE

RZBE_=F+-_A=+—H ' &&
EEARBEAABSZEMEER
FEERIELTIRERE - ZIEER
MG R D EAE AR EBET AR
DZEMEE WERSHARAURA
BEETE °

Raw materials B
Work in progress T8 R
Finished goods 2 ah

FE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —EFE-=

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FE7T

38,160 45,303

22,827 23,210

45,606 37,149

106,593 105,662
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A KRR
24 TRADE RECEIVABLES 24 FEWERER
2023 2022
—E-=HF T
USs$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Trade receivables from E=FRRERR
third parties 65,964 76,697
Trade receivables from fellow B 2 B A A FEURBRFX
subsidiaries 385 219
Operating lease receivables from HEEERARKEEE
immediate holding company FE U X 233 195
Finance lease receivables from FE-FREEERIGR
third parties 34,739 13,971
Less: allowance for credit B EFRERERE
losses (note 39(b)) (Kt#£39(b)) (105) (148)
Net trade receivables JE U BR FOFE 101,216 90,934

Analysed for reporting purpose of: AREB MmO
Amount shown under non-current IEREEEE NEAR

assets EojenEl 30,092 10,798
Amount shown under current assets RENVEEE FNERNDE ARPZ 80,136
101,216 90,934
Trade receivables from third parties E=F VIR
A defined credit policy is maintained within the AEBEHTE ERBIEERR -
Group. The credit terms are agreed with each of its EEHA0REIATE(ZE_=
trade customers depending on the creditworthiness F : H30KEI20ARNE) HERP
of the customers ranging from 30 days to 120 days ZIEBME o

(2022: 30 days to 120 days).

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade AEBREBERELHEAEREFZEE
receivables from third parties based on historical B FRBRER 2 EEE R -
default rates and the creditworthiness of the

customers.
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mEMBEBRRMTE
24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea) 24 FEWERRK )
Trade receivables from third parties (continued) FE=FEWERF =)
The aged analysis of trade receivables from third UTARRERINGEHEREE
parties, net of allowance for credit losses, which is ZEZFRWER  UWEBERR S
prepared based on invoice date of each transaction EHEIE - WEEEKR AR BE
which approximated the respective revenue s IR ARTS B BRFE 40 2 BREE D AT ¢
recognition dates or date of rendering of services, at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2023 2022
—E== g
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days Tr=+XK 46,637
31 to 60 days =f+—&=xtX 11,288
61 to 90 days AT—ZENATX 7,132
91 to 120 days h+—=—8B=Z+X 6,812
Over 120 days —BZt+RNUE 4,682
Classified as current asset WA REEE 76,551
As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s NRZEBE-_=F+_A=+—HF - K
trade receivables balance from third parties EECE=HEWERSRBELSERR
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of BEA£13,314,000F (===
US$13,314,000 (2022: US$14,441,000) which are F : 14,441,000 ) R WERAE @
past due as at the reporting date. Included in the past HZEWERR - Ed e sfEmEEl
due balances of US$937,000 (2022: US$3,070,000) BRFFR - 937,000 (— & ==
has been past due 90 days or more and is not 3,070,000% 7T ) B @ HA90 K = A £ -
considered as in default on the basis that these EERRARFPHEAEBEREED
are long term customers with on-going business R AT HERED -
relationship with the Group.
Details of impairment assessment of trade F=FRBERRARETGFASEN
receivables from third parties are set out in note MFEE39(b) ©
39(b).
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A B IRRMEE

24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continved) 24

Trade receivables from third parties (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, total bills received
amounting to US$5,352,000 (2022: nil) are held by
the Group for future settlement of trade receivables,
of which certain bills were further discounted/
endorsed by the Group. The Group continues to
recognise their full carrying amounts at the end of
the reporting period and details are disclosed in note
25. All bills received by the Group are with a maturity
period of less than one year.

Trade receivahles from fellow subsidiaries

The payment term with fellow subsidiaries is that the
transaction amount shall be settled within 60 days
(2022: 10 days) from the invoice date.

The aged analysis of trade receivables from fellow
subsidiaries, net of allowance for credit losses,
which is prepared based on invoice date of each
transaction, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

FEURBR K (&)
E=ZFEWERR o)

50_7__¢+ A=+—8  &&

HiFHFEH5352,000F7x (=
::$ |INEE - LMERRIBENE
WHRIBEH  EPETEBREHEE
IR EE AEBERKES
REBBRERAEHIRASE  FBR
BisE25 - AEBEWEINFE B ZE
HRH DR —F o

5 2 B R 2 =) R U AR K

Eﬁiﬁ AMBRARMNNRERERS®
EREZEAHOA(ZZE-—F :10
ﬂi)ﬁq%;

bAT?%EQiE%EHﬂETDF%TE%TE%° 8
AEN 1= PN _TJ*H&EE% BRX
72 BEZBEHE Iéﬁiﬁﬁéﬂ&)\ﬁﬁ
WUEIE?%HZ’]ZEEHA DA

2023 2022
—EC-=F —ET-=

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days Tr=+X
31 to 60 days =t+—F=XtX
61 to 90 days ANT—EATK

175 200
178 19
32 =

385 219

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables from fellow subsidiaries are set out in
note 39(b).
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24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continved)

Operating lease receivables from immediate
holding company

For lease receivables from immediate holding
company, the lease rental shall be settled within 45
days (2022: 45 days) from the invoice date.

The aged analysis of lease receivables from
immediate holding company, net of allowance for
credit losses, which is prepared based on invoice
date of each transaction, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

REMBRRMEE

24 FEWBRFR #)
HEERATDRKEHERE KR

BRERERARNEERKR - H
EHEFENEZRHPILR( 2T
FASR)NMEE -

AT ARHRERRINRERBRER
ZHEEBRAREERKR - AETR
RPZEZAMAE - WEBEKA
R B MR 2 BRIk DT

0 to 30 days TE=+XK
31 to 60 days —

2023 2022
—E-= T
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx F=7T
137 99

96 96

233 195

Details of impairment assessment of lease
receivables from immediate holding company are set
out in note 39(b).

Finance lease receivables from third parties

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements
as a lessor for dry freight containers. The average
terms of finance leases entered into usually range
from 4 to 16 years. All interest rates inherent in the
leases are fixed at the contract date over the lease
terms.

BRERAREE R YO ER G
IBEAHIFEI9(D)

F=TREHEEEWRK

REBEAEEREHEAAT L
BERERH  FETWRMERENT
HHRBERIFEIFETE - Y
FEIBMMEFMESEESRABHEE
REEHRA °
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A B IRRMEE

24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continved) 24

Finance lease receivables from third parties
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, unguaranteed residual
values of assets leased under finance leases are
estimated at US$7,746,000 (2022: US$2,996,000).
The risk arising from unguaranteed residual value on
dry freight containers under lease is not significant,
because of the existence of a secondary market with
respect to the dry freight containers.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the finance
lease receivables,net of allowance for credit losses,
increased due to more finance lease contracts were

FEUBR TR )
E=FPTRMEEEERR )

EA_v__E‘f' A=+—8 " Uz
EHE Hﬂﬂﬁméﬁmﬂﬁ*{%ﬁxﬁ
45t A7,746,000% T (— ==
2,996,000 7T) ° EEE’\EZ“EZ%?%T?
E-Fm5 - AREHEEZEEE
MNEEREEMEENREKRITTE
j(o

BE_T-_-_F+_A=t+—HLF
B - MEHEERUGK(IRERBRE
R EZRERESAMIENM

entered.
2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Finance lease receivables comprise: BIEFHEEIWER BT :
Within one year —F R 3,672
In the second year F_4F 3,682
In the third year =4 1,583
In the fourth year FIYF 443
In the fifth year FERF 443
After five years AFi& 4,531
14,354
Unguaranteed residual values (R RER 2,996
Gross investment in the lease HERKE 17,350
Less: unearned finance income B RERZBIRA (3,381)
Present value of minimum lease xDHEENRKBENIRE
payments 13,969
Analysed as Sak =]
Current FrED 3,171
Non-current JERED 10,798
13,969
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25 TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 25

The following were the Group’s bills receivables as at
31 December 2023 that were discounted to banks on
a full recourse basis.

REMBRRMEE

TRMEERR

NRZBE-_=F+-"A=+—H " K&
BB BRE ZIRITAIRERE
BT

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

Us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

1,246 =

(1,246) =

Carrying amount of discounted RN S
bills receivables BREE

Carrying amount of associated B EZREE
liabilities

Net position FE

The Group discounted bills receivables to banks
by discounting those receivables on a full recourse
basis. As the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it
continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the
receivables and has recognised the cash received on
the transfer as discounted bills (see note 35). These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

AEBUMAZBERET A ART
MEREER - AN ZEREENE
BEARRND®RESRERE  KAEH
BEEN>RRAERRZLEEREE
KiERERBREZBWDI MRS (LW
iH35) c ZEEMEERAEE 2 &
B AR LA SR AT B o
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mEMBwRERME
26 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 26 FE{TREHMEWRRIE
RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—E-= —F-=
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
The Group’s prepayment and AEETER R E A FEUR
other receivables comprise: FIEBIE -
Consideration receivables HEMB AR RWEE
in connection with disposal
of subsidiaries 9,848
Advance to suppliers AR 6,833
Value added tax AR I (E T K 2,585
Other advance payments H A TERR 9,900
29,166
Analysed for reporting purpose of: LASRE A B BT ¢
Amount shown under non-current ERBEEIER &5
assets 4,842
Amount shown under current MEBEEEE T8
assets 24,324
29,166
Details of impairment assessment of other HL & WK R (B AT A 1B B Y A
receivables are set out in note 39(b). 39(b)

27 AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING 27 E{NEHEERATIFE

COMPANY

The amount due to immediate holding company ENEEERATREBERIEES N
is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest free and g EEE - RB RS BEETEENRA
repayable on demand. H o
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28 CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

REMBRRMEE

28 RERBITENK

2023 2022
—Eq2-= g
US$’000 US$’000
FEx =TT
Cash and deposits with banks RE RIBITHER 300,963 369,770
Less: Bank deposits with original B REEIR A =@ A
maturity over 3 months BRI TIF 3K (173,130) (40,000)
Cash and cash equivalents ERERERTRS
in the consolidated statement NERIRE

of cash flows

127,833 329,770

Bank balances comprising cash and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less carry interest at prevailing market deposit rate
ranged from 0.01% to 5.50% (2022: 0.001% to
5.56%) per annum.

Bank deposit with original maturity over three months
carry interest at market rate at an average prevailing
5.66% (2022: 4.90%) per annum.

RITEHRERRASLRIAAR=E
ASERMNEHER  BETHSF
HEFENF001%ZES50%(=ZF
Z % :0.001%%5.56% )T & °

REIBEBB=EAMEITERIET
BERMRTE - FHRRTHAE5.66%
TE T F 1 490%) °
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A B IRRMEE

29 TRADE PAYABLES

29 FEERR

Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31
December 2023 are bills presented by the Group
to relevant creditors of US$8,611,000 (2022:
US$350,000) which are for future settlement. All
bills presented by the Group are aged within 365
days and not yet due at the end of the reporting
period. The Group continues to recognise these trade
payables as the relevant banks are obliged to make
payments only on due dates of the bills, under the
same conditions as agreed with the suppliers without
further extension. The following is an analysis of
trade payables by age based on invoice date of each
transaction.

REBR T _=F+-A=+—H
WEMERFREAEEREBERE
ARZH8611,000ET(=F ==
F : 350,000 L)W EE - ELEEE
ARARGEE - AEERIWFAER
BERERERYEISRA - BRIREH
REAREH - NEERERRZERE
R - AR EEERE T IEHAE
A BARTEEZEI AR
MAeE—FTE - U TRBEEE
R PHIBEZEH A ENBRIRZ BRER DT -

2023 2022

—EB-=F —_F_—
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx F=T
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 20,245
31 to 60 days =F+—=xtX 10,224
61 to 90 days AT—ENATX 4,890
91 to 120 days ht+—=z2—B=-+X 2,741
Over 120 days —BZtXNE 2,130
40,230

The average credit period on purchases of materials
is 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
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30 LEASE LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 HEEE

mEMBRRME

2023 2022
—E_-= —EF-=

US$’000 US$'000

FEx =TT

Lease liabilities payable:

Within 1 year

Within a period of more than 1 year
but not more than 2 years

Within a period of more than 2 years
but not more than 5 years

ENHEERE :

—FURA
B —FEMFLAR

AR FERFAA

2,099 2,664
623 1,710

1,164 1,763

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months shown
under current liabilities

N

B BERTZEARNEE
YRR AEZ R
i

3,886 6,137

(2,099) (2,664)

Amount due for settlement after
12 months shown under
non-current liabilities

ART_EAREELR
FRBEEZHRNTHE

3,473

The weighted average borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3% to 5.5% (2022: from

3% to 5%).

&R R HE & &/ 0 F 15 B 3RA
ERBINESLN(ZTE_F : 3% %

5%) e
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A B IRRMEE

31

32

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals and other payables consist provision of staff
cost, selling expenses, construction costs of new
factories and upgrade of facilities, and other accrued
expenses.

ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

31

32

FERH R A R 2 A B BR K
PSR4 B AR K 4 U LK

AEE - HED - T TRZERK
KRBT AR AT ERA

& IR AR X

Advances from third party customers £ =7 & F R FEIBER
BEEERA T TERERRK

Advances from immediate holding
company

2023 2022
—E-= —EFT-=

US$’000 US$'000

FEr FET

37,384

320

37,704

Advances from customers for sales of containers at 1
January 2023 were fully recognised as revenue in the
current year (1 January 2022: fully recognised in year
of 2022).

When the Group receives a deposit before the
commencement of the production activity, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract.
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34

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The amounts due from/to associates and joint
ventures are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At 31 December 2022, the Company entered into
two foreign currency forward contracts relating to the
purchase of RMB and the sale of US$ at contract
rates of RMB6.39 and RMB6.47 per USD with future
maturity dates on 13 January 2023 and 15 February
2023 respectively, at an aggregate notional amount of
US$6,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
loss on change in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts amounting to US$365,000 (2022:
loss of US$5,686,000) has been recognised in profit
or |oss.

33
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REMBRRMEE

Y, ENBERARRE
BERNRE

fed e EEE AR RA B ERIEA
BRIFESHME - BEW - 2BMER
FORBEIEENEH -

TEERMIA

RZZE_—_F+-_RA=+—8 &1
AIEFIMMNERNBAARKEESRET
HINEREIGH - GREXAREIET
HE630OARER647TARYE - RKEF
HESAAE-_ZE-_=F—A+=BK
ZE-F_ATHEAB  BRESHE
£6,000,000 7T, °

NZBE-_=F+-_A=+—HILEE
A INEREIAOFTELEM AR EBE

B E18365,000E T(=E ==
&5 185,686,000 7T ) BE RN 1B & 1
7 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME
35 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35 RITREMER
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-=
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FE
Unsecured Bank loan EILFIRITER -
Bills discounted with recourse Bﬁﬁ}E%*&Z
(note 25) ARIRERR (K1a225) -

Less: Amount due within one year 5 : R —F N E|HI
shown under current liabilities RSB EE2HNESE

Amount due after one year but —FRER-_FRNIH
within two years shown under ﬂzﬁéik/ﬁ@)ﬁ{ E )
non-current liabilities R -
No single borrowing is individually material, and BEERBENMEHAITEX - ﬁﬁﬁ
terms and conditions of all borrowings are presented BRHNBERNGETEZREEE D
by appropriate groupings. #HRIA -
2023 2022
—E-=F —F--
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FE=x
The exposure of the Group’s & B & KA R B i O
borrowings are as follows: N
Fixed-rate borrowings & 7E F R 55K -
Variable-rate borrowings B G -
The Group’s variable-rate borrowings carry interest at AEERZHNEERNFEAEZHR
China loan prime rate (“LPR”) minus 0.3%. Interest TERZEFRERIOES - FIE2FF
is reset every year. FE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBEBRRMTE
35 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35 |ITREMER =
(Continued)
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also AEEEFNERNEXGE (TEER
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s BHFER)WT -

borrowings are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2023 2022
—E-= Tz

Effective interest rate per annum: BERREFR

Fixed-rate borrowings & 7E F R 55K 1.75% -

Variable-rate borrowings ) PR 3.90% -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s HEREH K AEEUNEEHEBE
bank and other borrowings that are denominated in e R AN ER T EBROEITR
currencies other than the functional currencies of the EAM T

relevant group entities are set out below:

2023 2022
—E-= g

UsS$’000 Us$'000

FEx F=7T

Denominated in RMB AR E “ -
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e BRRME
36 SHARE CAPITAL 36 BA
Number of shares Share Capital
k%A kx
2023 2022 2023 2023 2022 2002

—E-CE “E--F —E-CE —ECCE “E--F “EC
15$'000 HK$'000 US$000 HK$'000
in TiEn FET Tin

Issued and fully paid: ~~ BETRER :

At beginning of the year 4] 2,382,205,918 [ANNCIRRIES 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2018513
Share repurchased and (3 EIEE RAVH
cancelled (34,714.000) - -
Atend of the year i34 2,382,205,918 [ARMSIES 268,149 2,078,513 268149 2078513
During the year of 2022, the Company repurchased MNZEBEZZFERN  NRARNRBRZAT
its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as ClIfE S 5 TmAL - FBEET
follows:
Number Aggregate
Month of of ordinary consideration
repurchase —E-CE shares (before
in 2022 BEA®R repurchased Purchase price per share expense)
BEEER BRE
e SREEE (HNBRBA %A
Highest Lowest
1] BiK
HK$ HK$ Uss$
October +A 16,256,000 0.67 0.62 1,335,000
November +—A 18,238,000 0.72 0.63 1,603,000
December +=8 220,000 0.72 0.72 20,000
34,714,000 2,958,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 37 EEMIEEE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MBI GEEHBARAAEFTmMS
statement of financial position, US$388,000 388 OOO%E(_EZZE 357,000
(2022:US$357,000) deferred tax assets have been E)EREHBEEECRRELERIEARE
offset with deferred tax liabilities. The following are B - TEERAFEERUAIFER
the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised NEFBERAELEHRBEE(AE)A
by the Group and movements thereon during the B RHEHEEFHMT :
current and prior years:
Fair value
Revaluation (gain) loss
of  Accelerated on equity
Investment tax  Undistributed instrument
properties  depreciation profits Taxloss  atFVTOC Others Total
BAAERE
HARM2E
Wiz ER
I82
RENE  NEKE MER
EfiE R ROEER  HEEE (WE)EE 2t g
US$000  USFO00  US000  USF000  US§000  US$000  US§000
TEL TEn TRr  TEr  TEr TR TR
At 1 January 2022 R-S-—F-f-H (5139 33 (9,219) = (1,878) 397 (15502)
Credit (charge) to profitorloss ~ BEfFAR&ZES
(note 13) (i) (Hi#ti3) 8l (2,014) (3758) 1,691 = (50) (3,550)
Deferred tax liabilty on fair value %772 BB AR A
gain on equity instrument at i@ﬂﬁlﬁZ%fﬁIﬂ
FVTOCH LD BEWEH
ELHERRE = = = - (298) = (298)
Reversal of withholding taxupon ~ #E2 BB (41708
distribution pdcl - - 4,576 - - - 4,576
At 31 December 2022 i s
=+-H (4,554) (1,681) (8,401) 1,691 (2,176) 37 (14774)
Credit (charge) to profitorloss B st ABzs 2%
(note 13) (i) (it13) 606 (1,23) (718) 909 - i (365)
Deferred tax liabllity on fair value ~ $5/A 4 BBt AL
loss on equity instrument at 2ENE ERTA
FVTOC! L RAEEEEN
EEfiRak = = = - 21 - 221
Reversal of withholding taxupon ¥ BB (4108
distribution A - - 3004 - - - 3004

At 31 December 2023

(2,884)

(6,115)

(1,955)

—Eo=EE .

(11,914)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

37

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continueq)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax charge of US$718,000 (2022:
charge of US$3,758,000) on the undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures has been recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

At 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$142,273,000 (2022: US$143,885,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of approximately US$10,400,000 (2022:
US$6,764,000) of such losses. The remaining tax
losses has not been recognised as deferred tax
assets due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of US$3,627,000, US$8,119,000,
US$8,124,000, US$1,474,000 and US$842,000
that will expire in 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and
2028 (2022:US$5,044,000, US$4,712,000,
US$10,220,000, US$8,711,000 and US$1,587,000
that will expire in 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027)
respectively. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of US$12,960,000
(2022: US$13,836,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
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EEFIEEE -

BIEFBESERBSRE $IW%
A -BEARRAELERC
F—H— Et%ﬂmmﬂﬁﬁmﬂw
i o 718,000F T 2 ELER B H (=
T~ 4 3,758,000t )25t
AE-_=F+-"A=+—HILEE
BHEATEWNBAR  BELEAFT R
SEPERKE RN IELEFIEZ L o

RZZEZ=F+ZRA=+—H ' &&
B 18 A A F i IE B3 18 142,273,000
EFo(=—ZZT = 4 : 143,885,000 %
JO) A AEIR B 18 2 ERUE T o
It $E B8 10,400,000 T (—Z & = =
i 6,764,000% 7T ) B R ELEFT
BREE - BRARFE R T 018
B - FSRHOBRIBBE N AERAE
ERBIHEE - TARBEER ZHIAE
8 /W 3,627,000 % J© + 8,119,000 %
JC ~ 8,124,000% 7T * 1,474,0003% 7T
IMMom%ﬁ“Jﬂ_7_m¢

ZERFE - ZEZRFZE -+
FERZENFEB(ZE_—_F:
5,044,000 % jT * 4,712,000 % T -
10,220,000 7T ~ 8,711,000 7T &
1587 L00ETTH RN =T =_=F + =

“FE - —E-RFE - B -RF
&_?_ti |HR) - EerE 18R] &
FREAGF AR o

REER - AEBE AN R
ZH 512,960 ooo%m(_i;::
13,836,000 7T ) ° AN AT 88
JE R T 0 A1) A wmﬁmmga%wﬁ
2 AR ERZEUENGREES
BEREZDRERIBEEE -



38

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of lease
liabilities, bank and other borrowings and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, accumulated profits and other
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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4 88 I HL A A DA R AR A S B T
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(B EBA L FEARRSREA
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AEBEZERNGEHBRRHEHERAG - R
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A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Equity instrument at FVTOCI

Financial asset at FVTPL

Amortised cost

Financial liabhilities

Amortised cost

Lease liabilities

Derivative financial
instruments

39 g@TH
a. EtWIBECES
2023 2022
—E-=HF —_E2-—
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
EREE
BAREETAEM
2HEREZERT A 26,163 28,367
BARBESABZZ
CEEE 3,052 3,044
B A 411,354 477,655
440,569 509,066
tRaE
B8R AR 62,777
HEaE 6,137
PTAESRIA
461
69,375
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include equity instrument at FVTOCI,
financial asset at FVTPL, derivative financial
instruments, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade payables, other payables,
bank and other borrowings, current accounts
with immediate holding company, associates
and joint ventures and cash and deposits with
banks. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
cash and deposits with banks, which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group entered into derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure
to currency risk and the directors
of the Company manage the risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the
currency rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39 €ET R
h.  Financial risk management objectives h. BEEREEEERBE
and policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) 5B (%)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EXEpE )

The carrying amounts of the Group’s

RiE B REBEAS

foreign currency denominated BAECEBEERER
monetary assets and monetary liabilities BEZHREERT :
at the reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
&E =N
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=fF T —E-=F —T-__F
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$’000 US$000
FEr FET FExn FEr
RMB AR 83,269 178,607 58,523
HK$ AT 1,700 7,037 59
Sensitivity analysis BT
As HK$ has been pegged to US$, the BB ITE EETHEY
Group is mainly exposed to exchange NEEFEEmE AR

fluctuation of RMB relative to US$.

The Company entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts to
manage its exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations of the RMB denominated
receivables and bank deposits against
US$, its functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.  Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis includes non-
derivative monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies
which are different from the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities.
If RMB depreciates by 5% (2022: 5%)
against the US$ and all other variables
were held constant, the post-tax profit
for the current year will decrease by
US$928,000 (2022: post-tax profit
for the current year will decrease by
US$4,486,000), and vice versa. This
is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period on RMB receivables, bank
balances and payables assuming they
are outstanding for the whole year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk primarily relates to floating rate
borrowings and variable rate bank
balances for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022. The
Group’s fair value interest rate risk arose
from fixed interest rate lease liabilities.
Interest rate risk on bank balances is
considered immaterial due to short
maturity.
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A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b. Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank borrowings (see note 35 for
details). The Group cash flow interest
rate risk is on the fluctuation of China
LPR. The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements
based on interest rate level and outlook.
The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within
reasonable range.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease in variable-rate
bank borrowings are used represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.  Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2022: nil) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant,
the Group’s: post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2023 would
decrease/increase by US$21,000
(2022: nil). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investment in an
unquoted equity security and price risk
from unlisted investment recognised
as financial asset at FVTPL. The Group
also invested in an unquoted equity
security for investee operating in logistic
industry sector for long term strategic
purposes which had been designated
as at FVTOCI at the end of the reporting
period. Sensitivity analysis for unquoted
equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within level 3
were disclosed in note 39(c).
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A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39 €I HAx

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
(iii) ~ Other price risk (continued)

The directors of the Company
considered that the fair value of
the unlisted equity investment is
determined with reference to the fair
value of the underlying assets and
liabilities as reported by the fund
manager. No sensitivity analysis is
disclosed for the impact of changes in
the relevant unobservable data as the
directors of the Company considered
that the exposure is insignificant to the
Group.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and bills
receivables, cash and deposits with banks,
amounts due from associates and joint
ventures and other receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade
receivables from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates)

Before accepting any new customer, the
Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Other than trade balance with related parties,
the Group has concentration of credit risk
as 20.9% (2022: 13.8%) and 41.9% (2022:
44 2%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively within
the manufacturing segment. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.
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A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 39 €I HAx

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade
receivables from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates) (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or collectively. Except
for significant balances or credit-impaired
amounts which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables
are grouped under a collective assessment
based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due
exposure for the new customers. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of these trade
receivables is not significant.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group used an internal credit rating by
assigning an individual loss rate to each of
its debtors with significant balances and
collective assessment for the remaining
debtors. The estimated loss rate are based
on ageing of individual trade debtors as well
as historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Cash and deposits with banks

Credit risk on cash and deposits with banks
is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The
Group assessed 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
for cash and deposits with banks by reference
to information relating to probability of default
and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit
rating agencies. Majority of the cash and
deposits with banks are placed in banks
with credit ratings of AA and A. Based on
the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on cash
and deposits with banks is considered to be
insignificant.
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A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Amounts due from associates and joint
ventures

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associates and joint
ventures. The Group’ s credit risks in these
balances are mitigated through the value of
the assets held by these entities and the power
to participate the relevant activities of these
entities. In determining the ECL for amounts
due from associates and joint ventures, the
management of the Group uses internal credit
rating based on the past due information and
adjusted for any forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort
to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, as
appropriate.

Other receivables

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. As at 31
December 2023, the Group assessed the ECL
for other receivables and no credit loss (2022:
reversal of credit loss of US$2,000) was
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 39

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group applied internal credit risk
grading assessment comprises the following
categories:
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b. BBEMREERFERBX

(%)

1= B /& Bz J 6t {8 57 A ()

AEBEE B AEEERBRT
Mz HEBIEAT &

Trade receivables,
trade related amounts
due from immediate
holding company,
fellow subsidiaries Other financial assets at
Internal credit rating  Description and associates amortised cost
R - ElER
ERAR  BAMBLARAR NEHRATEN
hBEETR i BENFESRMTE  HtEREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
have any significant balances past-due over 30 days - not credit-impaired
(igEN REUFENERREERAEMNAMOANE LS FESEREREX PEAESEREX
-BEEHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually seftle  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
in full after due date - not credit-impaired
BEiE EBABRRIMARER - BRRRINAR FEMBREREX PEAEHEREX
2HEE -BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
initial recognition through information developed - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
RER BRANSFEENES RN ERNSRRK FERBEREREX FREIRSBEREX
EERBEZEM -BEERE -BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - credit-impaired - credit-impaired
BB RRBRAAAERREENE FEMBEAEREX FREIRSEREX
~EERME -REHE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery
it i FEBRRRBARRBENMBAR FA£ERE  2ECHEH SBOHREE

REERMKENR
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mEMBmRME
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued 39 @I A
b.  Financial risk management objectives h. HMERREEBEERBE
and policies (continued) (#)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= B 2 fe K 6t 18 712 (4)
(Continued)
The following table provides information about TREBEEBEE = EKEK
the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade FBHEREERAR RRWB
receivables from third parties, trade receivable N E) R BN A A R AR BR AR -
amounts due from immediate holding FEWEE & A FIIEE SR
company, fellow subsidiaries and associates, MEMEKFENEAEER
non-trade amount due from an associate and % - SRRUAREBEZY -
other receivables, which are represented by
their gross carrying amounts.
2023 2022
—E=-= —=E=q-—
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount

RBEEFR FREASE KEEDEH
Us$’000 US$'000

Fxr T

Trade receivables from third parties Low risk 42,130
(significant or credit-impaired balances 1EC /2 Bax
assessed individually) Watch list 10,876
FE=HRBEXR(EASEERELRE BREE
EBIEEE) Doubtful 1,464
54,470
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A MBERNME
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39 ERT R«
b.  Financial risk management objectives h. HMERREEEERBE
and policies (continued) ()
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= B 2 f R 6L 18 77 12 (4)
(Continued)
2023 2022
—ZE=-= -
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount

RBEEFER KREASE KDeoHE
US$'000 US$'000
FER TET

Trade receivables from third parties Low risk 13,981
(not credit-impaired and assessed 1K = ez
collectively) Watch list 4 549
FE=HRBEXR(BREERER BREE
LASE B8 AT ) Doubtful 3,697
22,227
76,697
Finance lease receivables from third parties Low risk 13,971
(significant or credit-impaired balances 16/ Bax
assessed individually)
E=HREHERWR(ERSEERE
ERER 1 Il 5T i)
Lease receivables from immediate holding Low risk 195
company (not credit-impaired and (WL

assessed collectively)
HEERARMERKZ(BEEREKR
LASS B8 5T 1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved)

Financial risk management objectives

39 @I A
h. BHEEREEEERBEE

and policies (continued) (%
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= B 2 fe K 6t 18 712 (4)
(Continued)
2023 2022
—E=-= g
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount
REMEETHR RELASE FELELH
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries Low risk 219
(not credit-impaired and assessed 1EC /2 B
collectively)
RRMEBA R EKER(BEERER
AR 885114 )
Other receivables (assessed individually) Low risk 9,850
EL th & WK IE (18 51 514 ) EWER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

As part of the individual assessment of
the lifetime ECL for each significant trade
balances (including those with immediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries)
and other credit-impaired trade receivables,
the management of the Group has obtained
an analysis on the counterparties’ credit risk
characteristics by reviewing the trading history
and historical settlement pattern with the
Group. Such analysis also include operational
update and financial position, to the extent the
Group is possible to obtain such information
or from the observable data in the market.
The management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL individually based on
expectation on cash flows after assessing the
credit risk characteristics of individual debtors,
which taking into consideration of historical
settlement record adjusted to reflect current
conditions and forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available
to the directors of the Company without
undue cost or effort, and are updated at each
reporting date if considered to be required. For
credit-impaired trade balances with related
companies, the management of the Group
also considers the expected timing of the
Repayment Proposal becomes effective and
the estimated fair value of the Modified Asset
in determining the lifetime ECL.

REMBRRMEE

39 €@ T A

b.

MEEREEBERER

(%)

1= B /& Bz IS ot 18 57 A (1)

EREEBEEARZHE (B
HEEEERQRMRERNEBQ
A FERESRERERNE
AFEN -y REMBEE
HENRKER  AKEER
BimiBO MR 5E L MENRE
BNELEERAHIZIHT
HE R EBRRFEEET T 2 -
& MR B R A5 R M B A
M AR EE R REERF I
BEEIUMS LB AEER
MEE  AKBEEEBEZRE
28 Bl B 75 A B 15 P L B 5
& ERYRESRENBHE
A EFEREREREBELX
& 8 2 = BR E AT AR5 T FE B
MELGEELBEMARBES
BEREXNIBENERLE N
T ZEAENAXFFHRIE
HEH  YESERSAHE
(R RELRE) - HRE
BB AREERRENE S H
BOASEEREEREZEETR
FETEIMTEHRERT B -
UREBEREENBARAAE
BEAEEFERBRRERESX -

“To=FFR « BREEckERAR 249



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBmRME
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued 39 €@ I H s
h.  Financial risk management objectives h. HMERBREEBEREE

and policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = E/E B R mE S )
(Continued)
The remaining trade debtors are grouped BRTEZEBARBLBER
based on similar loss patterns and provision N - WikRERRRAE
rate is applied using the historical observed STERENRGTEREER I
default rates of the trade balance taking into ERARAIEEBEEINIHE
consideration of forward-looking information MERAXBNT  ZREEK
that is reasonably and supportably available AXFMRIEMER  YES
to the directors of the Company without EmEEHEF(NRABREMNE
undue cost or effort, and are updated at each 7)) o AEEE IR E S L ATHE
reporting date if considered to be acquired. MEEARTHHREENER
Such forward-looking information is used by RS LA K2 FERIAR S, ©

the management of the Group to assess both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date.

250 Singamas Container Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE
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39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued 39 €@ I H s
h.  Financial risk management objectives h. HMERBREEBEREE
and policies (continved) (#)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEE R EFE 5
(Continued)
Movement in ECL by different class of financial TRETTRAFINNEMEE
assets is disclosed in the below table. HTEHREFRE kL EE -
Trade  Finance lease
receivahles receivahles
from from Other
third parties third parties receivahbles
(not credit- (not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired)
B=H B=H Hit
RN mEREERK FE W FRIE
(BREEERE) (BEEHE) (BEEHE)
USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FEL
As at 1 January 2022 RZT-—F
—H—H 168 = 4
Allowance for credit losses ~ #HBEALREEER
recognised for newly BREE
originated financial assets 76 2 -
Allowance for credit losses HRENLEE @ DER
reversed on financial assets —ZE=-—F—H—H
at 1 January 2022 due to MemMEEZER
settlement during the year 1BRERE (98) - )
As at 31 December 2022 NZE-_—F+=R
=t+—H 146 2 2
Allowance for creditlosses ~ #HEALREEERRE
recognised for newly REE
originated financial assets 2 10 -
Allowance for credit losses HRFERNLEE @ DR
reversed on financial assets —ZE=-=%—H—H
at 1 January 2023 due to MeMEEEHR
settlement during the year BRER
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
+=A=+-H




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39 €I HAx

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group writes off trade receivables with
non-related party debtors when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants or to
timely negotiate with the lenders if any non-
compliance is expected.

252 Singamas Container Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2023

b.

MEEREEBERER

(%)

1= B /& Bz IS ot 18 S A (1)

EEERBTIEEBRIEBA
EREEMBERERLEE
FRA] W SEERRS - flan - B &
BARBRIDEARERFF
By - AN B 2 ot 55 AH A IR B B
TERSARYPIRR - REBE Y
BEBARBOERITHNBER

ABEL AR

RERRBEZRRME @ K
SEERMMRBEEERARE
WzREMFERBEKFE - B
RAEEZEERHTES MK
ReERENPZFE - BEHE
ERRTEEZHRBER X
BENTEERZOZAE &
HEEBERIZL 2R ERER
B BB ERE S AR E X
AHEHE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Lllﬂlldlty risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the agreed repayment
dates. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

2023

Weighted ~ On demand
average  or less than
interest rate 1 month
nETH ERBEE
ERAZ 90R-fR
% Us$000
tin
Trade payables N 6,612
Other payables Hip AR 13,280

Amount due foimmediate T EEER
holding company NG [£]
Amounts dueto associates ~ FERTBFEAFIZUE 310
Amounts due to joint ventures  EfTABAERTE 8

Bankand other borowings TR EHER
-Veriable rate borrowings - SR =
- fired-rate borrowings - EEHIEER 1,241
Lease labiltes HEakR 48

21,840

REMBRRMEE

39 €@ I H s

b.

1-3 months

-2ZfiA
Us§'000
e

10,780
3,326

14,602

MEEREERBERBE

(&)
REBELELR %)

ATNERRM T AREIFEITE
cMBEMBERGBRENTE
BERHOFKRERZME - T
RRENAEEFTEXNZE
BABEMMHERBEIREEE
BHIRRIRIRNESIRE M HIFT ©
HRBEMEMAESEER -
MRMEBRERFBNE - K
MR SBERERNBRERROF
BRHREET

—EB-=
Total
3 months to undiscounted Carrying
Tyear  1-years  cashflows amount
*ER
K-

cfAE-§  -EEF 48 EmtE

US§000  US§000  US$000 U000
i FE TR AR
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mEMBmRME
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved 39 €@ I H s
h.  Financial risk management objectives h. HXEREEBEZEREE
and policies (continued) (4)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELEE )
2022 —E——
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orless than 3Imonths to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Imonth -3 months Lyear  1-hyears  cashflows amount
FHR
METY  ERREE heng
EBHE goR-fA -Z=@A ZAE-f -E1f BE  FESE
% US§ 000 US§1000 US000 US§000 US000 US§000
T T Tin T T&n Tin
Trade payables EfER = 4,882 15,114 20234 - 40230 40230
Other payables Hib AR - 17,008 4128 869 - 2,005 2,005
Amount due foimmediate R EESR
holding company NG - 62 - - - 62 62
Amounts due to associates  FERBIE A AR - n = ) = 7 n
Amounts due tojoint ventures  ERAERERTE - ] - - - 7 7
Lease liabilities figak 400 262 3 2,058 3637 6,480 6,137
22,604 19,76 23,161 3637 69,267 08914
The amounts included above for variable HREEYENBERRETE
interest rate instruments for non-derivative Z A EEET AR - B FRIE
financial liabilities are subject to change if BIEFTESREBEZZEA
changes in variable interest rates differ to REDREE o

those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
c. Fair value of financial instruments

Certain of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for the fair value
measurement.

° the fair value of equity instrument
at FVTOCI is determined by the
independent valuer using valuation
techniques including earnings
multiples (based on the historical
earnings multiples of comparable listed
companies) and discounted for lack of
marketability.

° the fair value of financial asset at
FVTPL is determined with reference to
the fair value of the underlying assets
and liabilities as reported by the fund
manager.

° the fair value of derivative financial
instruments is made of discounted cash
flow analysis using the application yield
curve and forward rate for the duration
of the instrument for non-optional
derivatives as quoted by the financial
institutions; and

o the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding
equity instrument at FVTOCI, financial
asset at FVTPL and derivative financial
instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.
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A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 39 €I HAx

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
this financial instrument are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are
those derived from valuation techniques
that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRRME
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea 39 €T A »
c. Fair value of financial instruments c. E@MTIAEZAREE®
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial BREMBEERELEE
assets and financial liabilities that are WeREENSHRERES A
measured at fair value on a recurring REHE )
basis (continued)
Fair value
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs
MEE MEEER HERERIEHE
2023 2022
it St B S 2
US$'000 US$000
T#n e
Financial assets (liabilities)
SREE(RR)
Unquoted equity investment 28307 Level3 Market approach*
at FVTOCI The key inputs are:
(1) price-to-earnings multiples of comparables and
(2) discount for lack of marketability.
FETRERERAA BE £=R k4
A2 ERE BRAER
(DA B HREESA
(QEZ iRt -
Derivative financial instruments (461)  Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based on

(Foreign exchange forward forward exchange rates (from observable forward exchange

contracts) rates at the end of the reporting period) and the contracted
exchange rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk
of various counterparties.
fEEMIA 228 FRRENRE - ARALRERANRERHEX (REEHR
(ExzHad) MABREHER) ROTEE - ZEREERFUFEER
Financial asset at FVTPL 3044 Level3 Share of the net asset values of the investee, determined with

reference to the fair values of underlying assets and liabilities
and adjustments of related expenses, if any.

=0 EERREENEEFEMENGE  RERREENREY
AEBEAREBER(E)HBRNER -

B0z BEFABEL
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A B IRRMEE

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

c. Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

* Significant unobservable inputs
include:

- price-to-earnings multiples
of comparables, taking into
account of the scale of the
business of the comparables
and other individual factors such
as dividend yield generated by
the comparables at 6.91 times
(2022: 6.07 times). A slight
increase in the price-to- earnings
multiples would result in a slight
increase in fair value and vice
versa.

- discount for lack of marketability,
taking into account of the results
from the finnerty option pricing
model of 21% (2022: 20%). A
slight increase in the discount for
the marketability would result in
a slight decrease in fair value and
vice versa.

The management considers that the exposure
of fair value in relation to the unobservable
inputs of the unquoted equity instrument
is insignificant. No sensitivity analysis is
presented accordingly.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and
2 in the current and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued 39 €@ T A&
c.  Fair value of financial instruments c. TRMIAZAAEHE®
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value HFETREREEAALEE
measurements of unquoted equity FIABMEEKZE=RL
investment at FVTOCI REETEHEK
Equity
instrument
at FVTOCI
BAREE
FFAHA
2HENREZ
ERTHA
US$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2022 N-ZE=-_—_F—H—H 25,392
Fair value gain in other comprehensive RE 2 WA 7 BEUWKE
income 2,975
As at 31 December 2022 R-—ZE-_—_F+-HA=+—H 28,367
Fair value loss in other comprehensive RE M2 EUZEH AL EEEE
income (2,204)
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+=-HA=+—8 m
Included in other comprehensive income RNERREHRRFESLESHE
is an amount of US$2,204,000 loss (2022: H 2 U 2 R A 2,204,000
US$2,975,000 gain) relating to unquoted ETHEE(-DZ - —
equity investment classified as equity 2,975,000 T 1 U 25 ) = BB A
instrument at FVTOCI held at the end of the woEAEANNEBHEGTAEME
current reporting period and is reported as mik sz I,E:E’HIEJ: m
changes of investment revaluation reserve for HEE WEFRN—_E_=4F
the year ended 31 December 2023. +-A=+—B2Z2REERHE

FEZZ28H -
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mEMBwRERME
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved 39 €T H e
c. Fair value of financial instruments c. E@MIBEZAREE®
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value BAREBEGIABZZ2H
measurements of financial asset at BEF=MRALEETEY
FVTPL J:'3
Financial
asset
at FVTPL
BRAREE
FFABREZ
SEMEE
Us$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F—H—H 3,246
Fair value gain in profit or loss REZMN AR EERKS 74
Exchange adjustment PE H FER (276)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H 3,044
Fair value gain in profit or loss RIBRA AL BEWE 58
Exchange adjustment & R (50)
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=%+=-A=+—H m
During the year ended 31 December 2023, HE_T-_=F+-_A=+—
US$58,000 fair value gain (2022: US$74,000 BEEE  BAanEBEFAR
fair value gain) relating to financial asset at w2 e R EESS000ETTAR
FVTPL is charged to profit or loss. BEWKE(ZTEZ_F : 74,000
EL AR BEKE)FTAER -
The directors of the Company consider that KRB EBRBRERS W B®
the carrying amounts of financial assets and xEMEeERMEERERAEGL
financial liabilities recorded at amortised BHEREREEE AL EEMN
cost in the consolidated financial statements - RBEWRARERESN
approximate their fair values, determined in EZREBESMWEEBRNAETE

accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.
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39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial instruments subject
to enforceable master netting
arrangements

The Group has entered derivative transactions
that are covered by the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association Master
Agreements (“ISDA Agreements”) signed with
a bank. These derivative financial instruments
are not offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the ISDA Agreements are
in place with a right of set off only in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy so that
the Group currently has no legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts.

As at 31 December 2022, the gross amount
of derivative financial instruments that
are subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements are US$3,000. No deposit
was placed with the counterparty. No further
disclosure is provided as all the outstanding
derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2022 were entered into with one
counterparty.

39

REMBRRMEE

ST R o

ZRtPTRFEEER
BHURNEMTA

AEEEHETHETEENE
BRI MTAET A e
(TISDABZE]) RMEMNITE SR
TEAXRS - BETESBMT A
iR A WA R P IR IK
i BBISDARZEFIER B
FEBEEY  BHEBRHEE
WA BRERKHE BLAEER
A2 75 0 3 08 B 1T B A F 3K
HOMRNEHE -

BHE_T-_F+A=+—
A ZaslfTEELTHENIR
MPTE SR T B8 $% 53,000
ETL REFERRERR S
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A B IRRMEE

40 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 40
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

METHEENEEHER

TRERASEAEAREETDEL

The table below details changes in the Group’s

liabilities arising from financing activities, including W& - ’E%ﬁ%&#iﬁﬁﬁ’] """"" A o
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BEEHELEMNEEERASREY
from financing activities are those for which cash LR HeErAEENGFERERER

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in AP EAMETHEEZRER °
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as

cash flows from financing activities.

Amount
dueto Amounts
immediate ~ Amounts due to
Bank holding due to joint  Dividend Lease
borrowings ~ company  associates  ventures payable liabilities Total
Ff
BEBR  EABE EARE
fER  AFAFE  ARRE  £ERE EARE  HERR it
US§000  US$000  USP000  US$000  US$000  USH0O00  US$000
TEr  TEr TR TR TEr TR TR
At 1 January 2022 RE--F
-A-H - 6 123 ) - 5129 5263
Financing cash flows RERET = % 368 2 (127203) (2591)  (129.368)
New leases entered/leases HiRE/REEY
modified - - - - - 4,046 4,046
Dividend declared EARRE - - = - 127203 - 127203
Exchange realignment REER - - (18) - - (447) (465)
At 31 December 2022 S S
+ZR=1-H - 62 473 7 - 6,137 6,679
Financing cash flows HERER 6,874 13 97) 1 (64280 (3332  (60829)
New leases enteredleases HiRE/REEY
modified - - - - - 1,083 1,083
Dividend declared ERERE - - - - 64,284 - 64,284
Exchange realignment ACEE (39) - (6) - - 2 (47)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=f
tZA=t-H
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41 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment contracted but not
provided for in the consolidated
financial statements

Capital injection in an associate
contracted but not provided for
in the consolidated financial
statements

mEMBRRME
41 BEREE
2023 2022
—E_-= —EF-=
US$’000 US$'000
FEx =TT
BERTAVMERRERE I 75
MERBEIBADE
BBERBRECEARTH
760
BETAMERRERE I 75
MR B H —HE
RAZEE
3,925
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A B IRRMEE

42 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as Lessor

The Group leases out properties and dry freight
containers under an operating lease with rental
receivable monthly. The original leases term range
from 3 to 11 years. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value of guarantee and/or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term, and
contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as
lessor had contracted with tenants for the following
undiscounted lease payments receivable over the
non-cancellable periods:

42

REHEERRE
AEEERLAT

AEBAEEHETALAYMEREL
SEM SAWEEST - REEHA3
E11F - HEARITESERNERE
M/ ZEBACEERRNBEEEE
BRI - W AR ATTR I AR E
BENBATEEMEEERNK

RBEHR - AREESEHETE R
MP % ,’JEAT—HESI%E@F'W&HXT N
FrIREERIA

2023
—m— =

—_—

Us$'000

2022
_%_ J—

—_—<

US$'000
TET

FER

Within one year NE—F
In the second year REE 4
In the third year RE=F
In the fourth year S IO F
In the fifth year RERF
After five years FRFEZIE

4,021
3,291
2,812
2,800
2,792
7,400

23,116
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REMBRRMEE

43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43 BBREQLTXRS
BRERRZEBRONEAMBIRR
REMEE24 - 27 3233 FE - AN&E
EEEMBES 2R SFEHENT -

The balances with the related parties are disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and notes 24, 27, 32 and 33. Details of transactions

between the Group and other related parties are

disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the following
trading transactions with related parties that are not

members of the Group:

RER  AEEEEMEQRGERE
BB )VERNTESRS ¢

2023 2022
—EC-=F — ==
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Sales of dry freight containers to MEEZERAREER
immediate holding company EX5E 106,915
Income on leases of dry freight mEEERARLEE
container to immediate 33 ]
holding company -
Sales to fellow subsidiaries (note) mRRKBAREES R
(K1) 2,464
Interest expense on lease to w—RRMBARH
a fellow subsidiary (note) MEM S (i) 14
Transportation expense to L—RRMBATZN
a fellow subsidiary B8 1,692
Depot services expense to 4 — BN RS S HELS
an associate (note) RIS & (Hfat) 224
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RE M BRRME

43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
Note:

The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd.,
PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd. and Mariana Express Lines Pte.
Ltd., in which PIL, a controlling shareholder of the Company, also
the immediate holding company of the Company, has controlling
interest.

As at 1 July 2023, the Group renewed the lease agreement for
the office in Shanghai with a fellow subsidiary for 1 year. Except
for short-term lease in which the Group applied recognition
exemption, the Group has recognised an addition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of US$96,000 and US$96,000 at the
date of lease commencement, respectively. As at 31 December
2023, such lease liabilities amounted to US$105,000 (2022:
US$208,000).

The associate is Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container Co., Ltd..

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

43

EHEERARARS @

wiiz -

R ZWE el B FRH (P E) R A - X
£ () B R 22 5] K Mariana Express Lines
Pte. Ltd. * X-FRE7 — K2\ 6].2 PR ARE R B 12
HRAA]— 1 BZE R a2 R Ea -

R-DE-_=ZF+A—H ZFrEFH-KFX
WEBAREH LENREENHE % BRI
F o R AREFEHERBEAEHAE R
HERIEAHAEEEEREAREENHE
B &5 5 11 T 96,0005 T 196,000 7T &
FEoE-_ZHFF+-_A=+—H ZHEEES
105,000 (= ZF = =4 : 208,000 ) °

HHERFBEFIR R EEER AT -
FTEEBEAS ZHMN

AEBEEREMTIBEEREABZR
B

FEHRE THE R
S L SR

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

2023 2022
—E-=HF T

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

3,247

70

3,317

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is reviewed by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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REPBRRME
44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 44 ARPFZ2EEMELTZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY FH1E
a. General information of subsidiaries a. MEBRARIZ—MRHEESR
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as RZBE_=ZFE_EF=-C
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out +=-HA=+—8 X&EBEFE
below: B AR ZFFIBENT
Issued and
Place of Proportion of fully paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest contributed  Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment held by the Company capital  activities
BRTRAR
KEARER i/ Ry KLRf  RELA Rt/ BEHRE TTEE
2023 2022
St “EoCF
Green Tenaga Pte. Limited e 100.0% (Note a) - US$10000  Energy Storage System solutions
g (Kzta) 100005 business
BRERZMERNEER
Huizhou Singamas Energy Equipment PRC 100.0% 100.0% U5$25,000,000  Manufacturing of cry freight and
Co, Lid.” i 5,000000£  specialised containers
ENERERREERAR REYERRRNEERR
Leading Joy Limited”™ Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary HKS1  Property holding
(3 ERRIET  MERE
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment PRC 100.0% 1000%  RMB20,000,000  Manufacturing of offshore

Co, Lt Gl
EREHEIERERLT

ARE20000000  containers
PERIEER
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e BRRME
44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 44 APFZ2EEMELTZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY FH1B o
(Continued)
a. General information of subsidiaries a. MEBRrAIZ—MHEER )
(Continued)
Issued and
Place of Proportion of fully paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest contributed ~ Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment held by the Company capital  activities
BRRAR
KEARER i/ Ry KARf 2 RELA Rt/ BERE TTEE
2023 2022
St it Sl 2
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific PRC 712% U9$25,300,000  Manufacturing of dry freight and
Container Co,, Lid. * hE 25,300 000% 7 specialised containers
LEBUATERERAR BEYSRRRNEERR
Shanghai Pacific International Container PRC 64.9% U9$26,000,000  Manufacturing of tank
Co, Ltd.* hE 2600000057 containers
LEATERERERAR ! BEER
Shanghai Reeferco Container Co., Lid. * PRC 100.0% 100.0% U5$22,000,000  Holding of investment property
LEBRRRERERLR e 200000 HERENE
Shanghai Singamas Containgr PRC 100.0% 100.0% U5$2,000,000  Manufacturing of specialised
Integration Co, Lid. ** HE 200000057 containers
LEBBERREERAR REREERR
Singamas Container PRC 75.0% 595,100,000 Property holding
Industry Co,, Ltd. R 510000057 NEkE
BRERIZARAR
Singamas Container Pte. Ltd.* Singapore 100.0%(Note b) - US$10000  Investment holding

P (Ht&th) 10000 RESR
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REPBRRME
44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 44 ARPFZ2EEMELTZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY FH1B o
(Continued)
a. General information of subsidiaries a. MEBRrAIZ—MHEER
(Continued)
Issued and
Place of Proportion of fully paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest contributed ~ Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment held by the Company capital  activities
BRTRAR
KEARER i/ Ry KLRf 2 RELA Rt/ BERE TTEE
2023 2022
St it Sl 2
Singamas Depots Holdings Limited * Hong Kong 100.0% 1000%  Ordinary HK$10,000  Investment holding
BREARERAR! B ERRI0000ET  RERR
Singamas Management British Virgin Islands 100.0% 100.0% USS1,000  Provision of management services
Senices Limited * ABRAKS LOO0XT  REERRE
Singamas-Modex Limited Hong Kong 100.0% 1000% Ordinary HK$200,000  Investment holding
BRZaRERAT Bk ERR00000ET  REAZR
Singamas Logistics PRC 60.0% 60.0% US$5,780,000  Provision of container storage and
(Qingdao) Co,, Ltd. hE 57800005 repair senvices
BBNR(E8 AR RIERARE REERE
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Ca., Ltd.™ PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$6,500,000  Provision of container storage and
Bl (X2 ERAT hE 6,500,000£T  repair services
RIERART REERE
Singamas Energy Limited (formerly g 100.0% (Note c) 100.0% Ordinary HK$5,000,000 Provision of management services
known as Singamas Terminals B (Hyste) E@R.000000% REERRH
(Hong Kong) Limited)
BRERARAR HIRENEE
B2 (ER)ERAR)
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A B IRRMEE

44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

a. General information of subsidiaries

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
Name of subsidiaries establishment
KEARER i/ Ry
Superb Gain Holdings Limited™ British Virgin Islands
ZABRUEE
Teamwill Interational Limited”™ British Virgin Islands
ZABRUEE
Tianjin Singamas PRC
Container Co,, Ltd.** R

REBBERERAR
Wel Key Limited* Hong Kong
RBARAR: &%
Kiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC
Co, Ltd* i

EFATERSERRA A"

* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company

44 ERQABZ2ETEBLARZ
15 @

a. MEBARIZ—HBMHEER
Issued and
Proportion of fully paid share/
ownership interest contributed  Principal
held by the Company capital  activities
BRRAR
KA RERLA Rt/ BERE TTEE
2023 2022
St It Sl 2
100.0% 100.0% US$1,000  Property holding
L00X  W%RE
100.0% 100.0% US$1,000  Provision of container leasing
1000%m  business
RUSHERERH
100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000  Provision of container storage,
2,000,000%7 repair, trucking services, and
senving as a freight station
EEURE
100.0% 100.0% Ordinary HKSL — Provision of human resource
EERIBT  management sevice
REANERERRE
100.0% 100.0% U9$23,000,000  Manufacturing of dry freight and
2300000057 Specialised containers

. Equity joint venture established in the PRC in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations
Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in
the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and

regulations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)

The principal place of operation of each
subsidiary is the same as the place of
incorporation/registration stated above, except
for those companies incorporated in British
Virgin Islands which are incorporated for
investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries
of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, principally affected
the results and assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

a Green Tenaga Pte. Limited, was incorporated on
19 September 2023, is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Singamas Container Pte. Ltd.

b Singamas Container Pte. Ltd., was incorporated
on 24 July 2023, is a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

c On 12 September 2023, the name of Singamas
Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited changed to
Singamas Energy Limited.

REMBRRMEE

AARZEEHRB AR Z
X))

a. MEARZ—KREER @

BRI RBRE X B S AL AER
REEBRRDFSN - EHEB QA
REXB 2 T EMEE P
2K M AR R

ERMAIEARARBEZTRR
BAKEZBIREEAEX
TENTIEMNBRA - AT
EZgRRRHEMHNEB AR
ZHBERSIBRRAR

BEAFEIL - WREERH
BRABARER ZIERHES

Ktat -

a Green Tenaga Pte. Limited » 1
ZEZ=FAAFAAKL -
ASingamas Container Pte. Ltd.
—H 2 AN B A] -

b Singamas Container Pte. Ltd. -

RZFEZ=ZF+HA=-+HAK
Vo RAREB—HEENE R
,57 °

& RZBEZ=FNA+=H ¥
MEEGGHE(ZE)ER a8
NE]E R BEERBER G R L
,57 °
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A B IRRMEE

44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have

44 ERQABZ2ETEBLARZ

H#1E @
h. BEEARFIERBEER
ZHEEERBE2HE R T

TERERAEEHAEAH N
B AR SR M 7 SR A A 2 M

material non-controlling interests: B A RIMEE -
Proportion of
ownership interests and Profit and total
Place of voting rights held by comprehensive income
incorporation/ non-controlling allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries registration interests non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests
R/ FERRREENEN IREAERREEZZ
WEAREH iR RERFAELA EAR2ENEEE i ERRRER
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
Rt=B=t-B  HEtZB=t-BL¥E WM+ZA=t-H
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZB-cE “SC--F CZEBCZE “R-CF ZECZE “BCC
US$000  US000  US$000  US$000
Tin TEr i TEn
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific
Container Co., Ltd. PRC
HEBWATERARAT il 37,798
Shanghai Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd. PRC
HERTERSEARAT hEl 20,146
Individually immaterial Subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
ARFERRR RS ERFEANBAR 5,107
63,051
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FENBRRME
44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 44 EATZzEERBATZ

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY FH1B o

(Continued)

h.  Details of non-wholly owned h. BEEEARFEBRBRFRER

subsidiaries that have material ZI2EREZHEB AR
non-controlling interest (continued) E31))
Summarised financial information in respect INTER D AEE®EELNFE
of each of the Group’s non-wholly owned TR RER T ERB L
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling MBRARZHBERBE - T
interests is set out below. The summarised N BERBRERREB A
financial information below represents WIHRI 2 &5 °

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Shanghai Pacific International

Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
IBELAFERERLAR LEBATEREEERLT
2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=f ~—E-—# CZEBE-=ZE —T-—F
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$000
TEr TErn TExx Txx

As at 31 December R+-A=1+—H

Non-current assets FRBEE 23,581 25,183 8,154 8759
Current assets FEEE 149,538 197,088 98,495 76,554
Current liabilities REAE (45,881) (56,779) (19,480) (21,237)

Equity attributable to ANEREEE S
owners of the Company 98,177 127,694 58,931 43,930

Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥EAR AR S i 25 29,061 37,798 28,238 20,146

Year ended 31 December BZE+-A=+—H

EEE
Revenue EL ] 153,206 350,945 61,236 59,639
Expenses Zf (149,794) (314,192) (58,359) (58,307)
Profit and total AEF RN K
comprehensive income 2 E ML

for the year 1,332
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A KRR
44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 44 EPNTZEEMEBATZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY #B@
(Continued)
h.  Details of non-wholly owned h. BEEEARFEBRBRFAER
subsidiaries that have material ZHEZEHEEZHEB AT
non-controlling interest (continuea) E31))

Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Shanghai Pacific International

Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
IRBLATERARAR LEATEREEERAF
2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=f —E--# CZE-=fE <—ZE-—F
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TER Txx

Year ended 31 December HZE+—-A=+—H
HFE

Profit and total ANAIREREN
comprehensive income IR 2 EHRE
attributable to owners of 4238

the Company 864
Profit and total e e I

comprehensive income (S EFI R 2 E

attributable to non- Wa g

controlling interests 468
Profit and total AEERMNEEE

comprehensive income  Uiz5 4848

for the year 1,332
Dividend paid to non- TR ERR RS

controlling interests %8 2,438
Net cash (used in) from & E5ZE)(FTE)FTE

operating activities RBeFsE (42,366) 14,199
Net cash used in investing #&EZEBMERE

activities FR (1,156) (78)
Net cash from (used in) ~ RAEEZEFNG(FTiE)

financing activities He=5E 2,099 (13,422)
Net cash (outflow) inflow  ZB& (R )RA (41,423) (17,058) 699
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REMBRRMEE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45 ARTF MR R ER K
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HEEE R RE 91 67
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRRZRE 157,126 157,113
Investments in associates REtE RN R 21 E 122 122
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B B A B Fk I8 116,374 106,088
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BArBEFAEMZH
Wz =T R 10,245 11,108
Other receivables H 4th fE W R IE - 4,840
283,958 279,338
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T84 % B {th fE g 3018 10,528 10,089
Bank deposits with original maturity  [R% 83 B #8238 =18 A 1
over 3 months RITIE K 173,130 40,000
Cash and cash equivalents WENERIRS 53,479 197,368
237,137 247,457
Current liahilities REBaE
Accruals and other payables fEATE A R EMEMERR 4,830 4,926
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS B /B R B FK IR 135,772 140,342
Amount due to immediate holding FET E IR A a8
company 75 382
Amounts due to associates JEAT B & R B FRIE 59 11
140,736 145,661
Net current assets REEEFEE 96,401 101,796
Total assets less current liabilities EEABEBABERE 380,359 381,134
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IRRMEE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45 ARTZHBARR K EER K

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Capital and reserves EXREHE
Share capital A& 2 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits Eita A 104,531 104,444
Other reserves HibfEE 6,911 7,687
379,591 380,280
Non-current liability EREBAE
Deferred tax liability EIERIBA & 768 854
380,359 381,134
The Company’s statement of financial position was RRABZHBEHRARERRNFESS
approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZZE-WF= A+ 0B &R EE
directors on 14 March 2024 and are signed on its & WHTHAATFEERREZE
behalf by:
Teo Siong Seng Chung Pui King, Rebecca
RIAE EMER
Director Director
EE EFE
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45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

REMBRRMEE

45 ZERTFZMBAARR KRR

(&)
(Continued)
Investment
Movement in the revaluation Accumulated
Company’s reserves reserve profits Total
ARFZEREE REEMERE Z58F Bz
US$'000 Us$000 US$'000
TErn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2022 NZE-—F—Ff—H 6,639 162,013 168,652
Profit for the year AEERH = 68,983 68,983
Fair value gain on equity BARLBEGALM
instrument at FVTOCI, FENG ERTA
net of tax effect (MRTBEE)
AR BEKE 1,048 - 1,048
Total comprehensive income FREENELE
for the year 1,048 68,983 70,031
Share repurchased and cancelled  B& {7 B8 & BUH - (2,958) (2,958)
Dividend paid to owners IHARRBRRRE
of the Company - (123,594) (123,594)
At 31 December 2022 R-TE-—&
+-A=+—H 7,687 104,444 112,131
Profit for the year R A — 61,154 61,154
Fair value loss on equity BARBEFALMD
instrument at FVTOCI, 2EMEZERSTA
net of tax effect (MBEHBETE)
AREEEE (776) = (776)
Total comprehensive (expense) FRZE(ZH)KERE
income for the year (776) 61,154 60,378
Dividend paid to owners XAARRERERRE
of the Company - (61,067) (61,067)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=&
+=B=+-H 104,531

*EW“ FERRAEPIFE2971K5TE - K

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2023, calculated under section 297 of NAIRZE-_=F+=-A=+—H7A
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounting to 5K 2 f##£104,531,000F T (=
US$104,531,000 (2022: US$104,444,000). T4 : 104,444,000 T) °
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFUBRE

2023
—EC=E

Sales Mix HEAS(UHESR
(as a percentage of sales) ~ HA )

Manufacturing and leasing: ~ BUERFAB ¥

Dry freight containers TERME
Refrigerated containers RREERM
Tank containers i3

US domestic containers EBAEERA
Other specialised containers ~ Efi 5@ 578
and container parts REFBRY

Logistics services i AR5

Total bl
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For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLFE

2022 2021 2020 2019
“EICF ZRC-F 0 ZECRF ZENR
% % % %
78 88 68 64
- - - 13

8 3 6 5

- - - 3

10 6 16 11
% 97 90 %
4 3 10 4
100 100 100 100




Five Year Financial Summary

IEMBERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=t1-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-zf -—T--F -E--% -“ZT-TE “E-NE
Us$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TER SE S

Revenue EE2 ] 382,470 776,455 1,151,764 274,305 712,209
Profit (loss) from operations &£ %7 (&518) 10,261 86,959 245,463 (9,337) (95,960)
Finance costs NBER (343) (366) (1,083) (799) (14,515)
Investment income REBA 16,569 7,804 5,738 7,381 9,629
Fair value (loss) gain on fTEeMIAY

derivative financial AREEER)

instruments Yrgs (365) (5,686) h83 109 (382)
Gain on disposal of HENBARZ W

subsidiaries - 412 8,457 7771
Gain from derecognition of &R |FFERIRE R

financial assets measured ~ (EMSRAE

at amortised cost FislE — 27,001 - -
Share of results of associates  JE{FBEE N Rl 2 215 1,349 761 1651 (829)
Share of results of joint EHEELEY

ventures ¥ (135) 196 408 127
Profit (loss) before taxation B AT&EF (&) 27,642 89,925 279,071 7,870 (94,159)
Income tax expense FrSRIERR (5,149) (33,360) (70,606) (3,120) (16,638)
Profit (loss) for the year REERN(EE) 22,493 56,565 208,465 4,750 (110,797)
Attributable to: FEfE
Owners of the Company ALAIRE 19,438 46,340 186,802 4,576 (110,230)
Non-controlling interests BB EER 3,055 10,225 21,663 174 (567)

22,493 56,565 208465 475 (110797)

Earnings (loss) per share SRR (EE)
Basic 2K Us0.82 US1.92 Us7.73 Us0.19 US(4.56)

cent Al cents I cents il cent &1l cents Il

Diluted BE N/A N/A N/A US0.19 US(4.56)
&R N i cent L cents Sl
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Five Year Financial Summary

2023

—EBC=F

LEHBERE
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BeER
Net assets FEE
Equity Ei
Fquity attributable to owners K7 TR &R E {5 1€ 25
of the Company

Non-controlling interests IR R S

Total equity Bns
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Us$'000
e

156,467
(141,832)

614,635

551,780
62,855

614,635

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019
“E-CE ZRC-F 0 ZECRF ZENR
US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$/000
TET TET TET TXIL
812,253 994,002 657,349 673412
(153,376) (260,757) (123,663) (110,705)
658,877 733,245 533,686 562,707
595,826 676,272 497,592 525,810
63,051 56,973 36,094 36,897
658877 733,245 533,686 862,707




BRHEELEERRAT

SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED
19/F, SUP Tower, 75-83 King's Road, Hong Kong
BAREBTS-83RM S HIRAE1912

Tel B : (852) 2598 7831
Fax 88 : (852) 2598 7847
E-mail BE  : info@singamas.com

Website #81F : https://www.singamas.com
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